
 
 
 

Finance and Best Value Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date: Wednesday, 21 January 2009 
Time: 
 

6.15 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Mark Delap 
Tel: 0151 691 8500 
e-mail: markdelap@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PARTY WHIP  
 
 Members are asked to consider whether they have personal or 

prejudicial interests in connection with any item(s) on this agenda and, 
if so, to declare them and state what they are. 
 
Members are reminded that they should also declare, pursuant to 
paragraph 18 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, whether 
they are subject to a party whip in connection with any item(s) to be 
considered and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of the whipping 
arrangement. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 14) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meetings held on 26 November and 22 

December 2008 and 7 January 2009. 
 

3. FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT (Pages 15 - 20) 
 
4. GENERAL FINANCIAL MATTERS (Pages 21 - 30) 
 
5. PROJECTED BUDGETS 2009-2011 (Pages 31 - 40) 
 
6. FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING (Pages 41 - 68) 
 

Public Document Pack



7. COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT (CAA) - USE OF 
RESOURCES (Pages 69 - 84) 

 
8. CHANGE PROGRAMME (Pages 85 - 106) 
 
9. CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT (Pages 107 - 

110) 
 
10. TRANSFORMING ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES - ACHIEVING A 

STABILISED AND SUSTAINABLE BUDGET (Pages 111 - 114) 
 
11. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The public may be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 

the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information. 
 
RECOMMENDATION –  
 
That in accordance with section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following item of business, on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined by the relevant 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to that Act. 
 

12. CORPORATE ICT SYSTEMS BACK UP AND RECOVERY (Pages 
115 - 118) 

 
13. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



������������	�
����
����������������

������������������

�
���������	�
���
�������
����

�
��������� �
������
�� ��������������������

�
� �
������
���  ���
�!��

"�#
������
$�%�
&����
�

$�'�����
��
 �(����
)����*����
�

�
�

++� ���
�������
����������
��������������
�
#�������&������*����
��
�������&����������������,���
����
��,��-�������� ����������
����
������
��&�������� ��������
�� ������!��������	� �.��
	� �
��������� ���������������
&���������&���/�
�
#�������&�������������������������
�������
��������	�,���������
�,���!��,��0��
.�
����1������&�����"����������
�������)����	�&������� �����&���� ���-���� �
� �� ,�����
&��,�����
������
��&�����������������
�����
������������	��.��
	��
����������������������
�����������
.�����&��,,��!������!�����/�
�
�
���������������
���&��������/�
�

+2� ������
��
�
3��� $�����
�� 
.� 4�&	� ()� ���� 5����� #���!������ ,��������� ���� �������� 
.� ����
������!�������
��

�"�,�����������
��1��
����
���/�
�
�
������
�� '�����
�� ��.������ �
� ������� +
� �
�� 1��
���� 
����� ���
-������ 6��!���

��78
�00��������9������� �����
�������:���,,�
���� �
�������!��
.�&
����!��
� ����
.�����,���!��,��
.�����,��;�����	����.
��
&��<�
�

•� 5.���� =>���������
��� ��� ������
�� �
?	� ������� ����&
���� =����������������
.� ������
��,�����
��������
>?�

�
3�����������.�������
��������0@�
���

�"�,�������
������3����.
����!�5�����"
�����
"�������� <� 5�������!� �� "���������� ���� "����������� 6��!���	� &����� ��9������� ����
�������������� ������
��������
.� ������������#������.
��"
��������������A������
��
���� ����$�����
��
.�5�����"
�����"�������	� ���
����� �
�
�������,�
!�����������������
�
��������B,���������� �����
�������� ���������
�� �
� �������!�����
��.���/�3���������
���� �
�!��� �
� ������� �� ����� 
��&����� �
��� ����$�����
�� ���� ������������#������
&����������
��������������������������������������.�
������$�����
��
.�5�����"
�����
"�������� ����� ���&��� ����� �
� .����� �� .���� ����� .
�� �� �,������������!� ����� ���� �����
,�
,
���� .
�� 

� $�������/� 3��� ������ ���
!������ ����� ���� ����� ,�
,
���� &
����
��������..�������.
���
����������	��������������*����������&������������������
����
�
��&����������������B������������������!�
.������
����������� �������
��7/�
�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 2

Page 1



�
������
����
�!���
���������������������
��������
��������
������,�
,
���������

.� ���� �,������������!� ���� ��!�������� ���� ,�
����� ��� ����������!� ��*��!� ,����� 
�� ��
����������&
�����..���������,����������������
.�����4��
�����
�,�.�
����������!/�
�
C
�������.�����
�	����������
���
����������
.�����������!	�����������,�
,
���������������
��������
�<��
�

•� ����� �
�������!� �
���������
�� �
� ���� ,�
�������� ���������� �
� ������� ����� ����
$�,��������
.�5�����"
�����"���������������
�����!���.
�	�
��&����������,�
-������

����,����
.�D+/E����,
������
�������
�������/�

�

•� 3
������.������������������������������������������
�����!����
����������������
�
!������ ������,�������
.� �
���������� .����!� ���� ������������ ����� ����,�
.���� ����
,�������
.��B,���������
������.�������������� ���������
��������������,���������
�
���!������
����!��/�

�

•� 3
� �
������� .������� ���� �������������� ��� &����� ���� 
��!����� 
���� �
���������
��
��� �
� ���� �B����� 
.� D7/E�� ���� �
� ���������� &������� �
������
���!� ����
,�
��������� ,�
�������� &���� ,�
,����� .
��
&��	� ���� �
� ���*� ���� ��������
����������B,������
��/�

�
3��� ������ ��.������ ���
� �
� ������� 
@� �

� "�,������� 
����� �4
���� �
���������
���
������ �4���� 5&����� 
����� ���� &��� ,������� �
� ��,
��� ����� #��*� �
�����!	� ��
��
�,� 5��
������� ��� 3�������� #���!������ ���� ����� ,��������� &���� ���� �&����
FA����������1..�����
.�����G���:/�
�
������������
�
�� ��!"#$��%&'�(#�#��#!��)����*+,-�".�,�.�,#$�#!��.+,%#����)�#!��.��#+,-��!����
�,�//�
�0#�.&�1�",��/2��(#�&�1�/332�&��"001��������
�

•� �+,%#��4/��/2��(#�&�1�/332 ���1�'�(#���	%�-�#�/335�/3�� �
�,�#!��)+,"��0"1"-1"0!��)�#!��01�6".&���")#�1�781���1�"#+�,��+,�1��"#+�,�#�9$�
#!��*�1���7#!��"(!+���.�,#��)�#!����"�0+1"#+�,���%��#�89&��+,��1#��:�

�
�/ � �!"#� #!�� �+1�(#�1� �)� ��%�#� 
�(+"�� 
�1�+(��� ",�� #!�� �"&+,�#� ��.&�1� )�1�

�(+"���"1��",���,(�%�+�,�&��1�;%��#���#��"##�,��#!��.��#+,-��)�#!����..+##���
#��&��!�����,�//���(�.&�1�/332�+,��1��1�#��"��1����(�,(�1,���<01������&=�#!��
��..+##���+,�1��"#+�,�#��#!����%�#�
�(+"��
�1�+(���&%�-�#��!�1#)"��:�
�
�4 ��!"#�#!��(�,-1"#%�"#+�,��",��#!",>���)�#!����..+##���&��"((�1����#���"1>�
?�%��+,-�)�1�!+��"(!+���.�,#�+,�&�+,-�,".����,���#.�,#��))+(�1��)�#!����"1�"#�
#!�� 
�("�� ?���1,.�,#� �!1�,+(��� �*"1��� /332$� +,� 1�(�-,+#+�,� �)� *�1>�
%,��1#">�,�+,��1�"�%1=��","-�.�,#��,�&�!"�)��)��+11"�:�
�

+E� ��������
����������?�
����������
�
3��� $�����
�� 
.� C������� ,��������� �� �������� ��� �������� .
����� 
.� ���� ��������
,
����
�� 
.� ���� �����������
����� ������������ C���� ��������� ��� ��� +��"�,�������

���/�(�����
����������������,�����������+0�1��
����
���������
�����������������
�
���
���!��������������������<��
�

Page 2



•� 3��� �
�,
����
�� 
.� ���� 
��!����� 
���8
��7� ���!��� ��� ��,�������� ��������!�
�!����������!������,
�����
,��
��/�A���
&����
� �������������$�,��������
.�4�&	�
(�����)��
����������5�����#���!�����/�

•� #
���
���!� �!������ ���� 
���8
��7� ���!��� ��������!� ���� .��������� ��,������
��� 
.�
������������������
��/�

•� 5�����,����������������!����������
��!��������!��/�

•� 5���B,������
��
.���������������������������.���������9�����!�.��������������
�/�
�
3��� $�����
�� �
�������� ����� ���� �
���
���!� ���������� &��� ������ �,
�� ����
��.
�����
�� ,�
������ &������ ��,���������� .��������� �
���
���!� ��,
���� ���� &���
�,���������������������
������������!�
.�������
�������/�(��,�
��������������
.�����
.��������� ,��������� ��� 5����� "
����� "�������	� ��������� ���� G
��!� ��
,��� ����
)�!�������
�/� (�� �
�������� ���
� �,
�� ���� �..���� 
�� ���� 3�������� #���!������
���!����
.������
�������.������������*���/���
����
���
���!���������������������������
��������������
����������������������.
�����,
������
��
&��!/�(���
�������������
,�
-����
��� &���� .
�� �� D0/
�� ������,���� ���� ��� ���������� ����� ������������ &����
��������������!�,����������
&����*8�
&���������
���������.����/�
�
(����,
����������.
��
&��!������
�,����
��
.�����
��@8
�������
����	�����
�����������
��
&�������� ������,����
.� D
/E�/� A��������
�	� ���� A���������C����5������)�,
���
���� ��!���!����� ���� 
���
��� 
.� ���� ������� ���������� ����������	� &����� ������.����
�
�������!� ��,�
�������� ��� ������� �������!� ���� ��,������
�� ������ &����� ��������
D+���������������
��
���������������.�
������A���������C�������
���8
��7/�3�����
&�����.�������������
���
����������������������
.��������
����
���
��������
.�D0/+��
.�
���� 4
���� 5���
����� 6�������� ��
&��� A��������� �456�A�� !����/� �
���9������	� ����
,�
-�����������������+0�#�����
��7�����������.�
��DE���
�D00/�������������������
���� �!����� �
� ���!������ ���������� 
.� D�/7�� .
�� ����!�� ���� .���/� (
&����	� ����
��,����
.���������!��,��������	���������.���������,��������	��.��
���
�������	�&
����
������������������������
�D
/0�����+0�#�����
��7/�
�
A�� ���,
���� �
� �
������� .�
�� �������	� ���� $�����
�� ,�
,
���� �
� �
������� ��
������!��
.� ����#
���
���!�"��������� �
���
&�,�
-���������������� .�
������
��!�����
�!����� ���!��� ��� &���� ��� �������
��� .�
�� �����9����� ����������� �!����� ��� ����
�������/�(�����
�,�
,
�����
��������!������������
.�F���..�����!��:��������
����
��������
��������
��������*��/�(
&����	����&�������&����
.����������
�����������"����������
���
���!��������
.�52���������
�������� ��������
��.���������
������������ ����� �
����
�B������/�
�
������������!"#$��%&'�(#�#��(�..�,#��."���+,�1��"#+�,�#��#!��+,)�1."#+�,�#��&��
+,(�%����*+#!+,�+#$�#!���+,",(+"����,+#�1+,-�
#"#�.�,#�&��,�#��:�
�

+�� ���@������	��?��
�/335�/3����
�
3���$�����
��
.�C�������,�������������,�
-���������!����.
��
��7;
�00	��
��
�������
&��������,���
��
.������
�,����������",�����!�)����&�
��@���")�/�3�����������
���!���.
��
���8
��7�����!�������������
������
��+�#�����
����&���D+�
/�������
�����,
������,
���������
�����������������������.����.
��
��78
�00/�A��������
�	�������
&�������������
.� 
����������
,������&�����&���� ��*���� �
� ��,���� 
�� ���� .���������
,
����
�� 
.� ���� 5���
����� 
���� ���� ,���
�� 
��7� �
� 
�00/� (�� ���� 
��� �
��� 
.� ����
,
�����������
�����,
������������������
���������������������,����&
���������,
�����
�
� ���� �������� ��� ���� &���� ����� &���� ���
����/� (�� ��,
����� ����� ���� !������
���
������ ��� ���� $�4�� ��� ,���� 
.� ���� ������ ����� .��������� ����������� &���� 
����

Page 3



�������������������
������������������
.����������
,������������.�����
������,����

������!�����������������.
��
��7;
�00/�
�
(������
��������������,
����
��&������!�����
���������������
����������������������
��
�
� �..�������� �����!�	� ���� !�,� ���&���� ,�
-������ �B,��������� ���� ������,�����
���
������&
��������� �
��������!���������
�������
��
.� �����!�����8
�� ����������
�
������ 3�B/�(�� ���� 
��� ���� �..���������� ����� ���� ����� �!����� ��� ������������ ����
�
�������� ����� ���� ����������� ���!���� ��!!������ ����� �..���������� 
.� D
0�� &����
��9������.
��
��78
�0������D0�/+��.
��
�0�8
�00/�
�
A�����,
�����
��
�������.�
�������������������
���
�����,
����������
.�������
�
���
����!� ��� ��.����
�� ��B�� ����	� ���� $�����
�� ���������� ����� ���� ,�
����
�� .
�� ,��� ����
,����������������
.�
H�����.
�����
������+H����������������
�������
����������
�����,��
�/�A�����,
�����
�.��������
������	���������������������.���������,
���&
����
���,����������
���������������� �������
��7�&������!�����
�������������������������
�
���
.�.������������!�/�
�
������������!"#�#!��01�'�(#���&%�-�#��(�,#+,%��#��&��1�0�1#���#��#!���"&+,�#�
",��#!���+,",(��",��	��#��"�%�����1�+�*�",��
(1%#+,=���..+##���+,��+,��*+#!�
#!��"-1����)+,",(+"��",��0�1)�1.",(��.","-�.�,#�#+.�#"&��:�
�

+@� �����
���	��?���
����?
��
�
5������������!�
.�������������
�����
�������
������������
E2���.��������������
.�
���!��� �����!��&����,�
,
�������� ��.������ �
� ���� ���������1������&�����"��������
�
��������.
����!�����
���������
����.
�������������!�
.������
�������
���������
��
0E� $�������� 
���/� 3��� ,�
,
���� &����� .���� &������ ���� ������ 
.� �����1������&� ����
"���������
��������&����
�

•� �
�,
�������
���������'..����������;�D0	E��	����
�
3���$�����
��
.�C�������,���������������,
���
����
���������'..���������	�&���������
������
��������������������������������
E+�����
�������
�������.����/�3�����,
���
����������������
.� ,�
!����� �
&�������������!� ���� �����!�� ���!��� 
.� D
/
E������

�������� .������ ,����� ���� ���!���� .
�� �..���������	� &������ ���� ��
����� �
� ���� ��
���
��������� ��� �����&���� ������
���������"�����!���,,�
���������������
��2�"�,�������

���/� C
�� �����.�����
�	� ���� $�����
�� ���������� ����� ���� ��,
��	� ���� ���� �����!� ���
������.���	�������
����&�����
�,
������
�������/�
�
������������!"#�#!��&%�-�#��"�+,-�01�0�����&=�#!���"&+,�#�&���,��1���:�
�

+�� ?�����
���������
�������
��
�
3���$�����
��
.�C�������,�
������ ��.
�����
��
��3��������#���!�����	��
���
���!�

.� ���� ,���������� �������
��	� ���� ,
����
�� ��!�����!� �
������ 3�B	� ����
���� �
��
$
������� )���	� !������� ����� ���� ����� ���
��� �
������
�� ���� ���� ,������� 
.�
6���.���/�(���
���������,
�� ��������������
�
���������������� ���������� ����� ����
,����
.�����!�� ��� ���� .������������*����&����
��� ��,���������,����������/�3���I%�
��
�
���&������
�������������������!�.
�����������
�������������
���������*�����..����

����.����
��.�!����/�3���������������,���
.������������
��&
���������������
&������
.���������������������&
����������
�.������.
�������!�����������
���,�
��/�
�

Page 4



3���$�����
��,�
��������������
.������
�����:�������������	�&������
�������D7�/������
+�� "�,������� 
���/� (�� ���� 
��� ���� ,���
��� 
.� ����������� ���� �
�������� �����
�����!�����,���
��
.�.�������������������������������,������������������&����6��*��
���� 6������!� "
�������� &���� ������������ ����� 
���� &���� ������� 555� ������ �
����
���*��� .�����
��&���� ����$����#���!������1..���� �$#1�	����'B��������5!�����
.�
(#�3�������/�(
&����	� ��� �����&���� 
����� ,������ �
����	� ���� ��&� ������������&����
�
&������ 
���� &���� ���� $#1/� 3���$�����
�� ,�
������ �������� 
.� ������ 
.� ������� 
��
������������ ���� �
�������� ����� ����
�!�� ���� ����� 
.� ������� &���� ���� $#1� &���
�������������� �������	� ���� ��������� 
.� ���� ������������ ��&���� �

*� ,��
����� 
���� ����
�������/�
�
A�� ���,
���� �
� �
������� .�
������������� ���������� ����� ����4�5�&��� ��� ��!�����
�
������&����(#�3������������&��������.������������*����&�����������	���������
�����
&
�����!�����������
���������������/�A�����,
�����
���.��������
�����	������!!������
������.����������
���
��������������&����,������,�������������
������������������!���
.�
.��������� ��..��������� ���
������� &���� A��������� 6��*�	� �� ��������� ��� �����������
��������&
���������������������
���������������
������3�B/�
�
(��,�
��������������
.� ���� �
�����
��
&��!�
.� �����
������������+��"�,�������
����
���� ���������� ����� �����
������ ���������� ���� �
� ���,
����� �
��
&��!/�(�� ��,
�����
���
�
����������
�����
��
.�����������������
������
��2	�&�����!�����
��������
�������
!������� .����
�� ��� ��*��!� ��,����� ������!�� ������
��� ���� ��� ,�
������ �������� 
.�
�
���
���!� 
.� ,���������� �
��� �������
��/� 3����� ���
��������� ����� ���� ���������
����!������������
���&������������&����������,�����������!�	�&�����&���,�����������
�..
������/�
�
������������!"#�#!��1�0�1#�&��,�#��:�
�

+7� ������������
A�������
�����������?�������
�
3��� $�����
�� 
.� C������� ��,
����� �,
�� ������� ,�
!����� ��� �
�,
����� )��*� ����
A��������� #���!������ ���� 
�������� ������,����� �����
,������ ��� ���� �
���!�
�
����/�
�
������������!"#�#!��1�0�1#�&��,�#���",��"�)%1#!�1�%0�"#��&��01���,#���#��#!��
,�<#�.��#+,-��)�#!����..+##��:�
�

2�� ����������������������
�����?��/332�6�/3����
�
3��� $�����
�� 
.� C������� ,��������� ���� �������� �
�,
����� ��
��������� "�����!��

���8
�00	� &����� ���� ����� �,,�
���� ��� ���� ������!� 
.� ���� �������� ����� 
�� 2�
"�,�������
������������0@����.���������&
������������������,�
������������������
.�
�����
������.
��������B�������������/�A��&�������!�����
�����������������!��!��!�����
��������������,�
������������������
.������
������.
�&�����
����������..��������������
�����!�� ���� ��� �
�������� ����� �����
�,
����� ��
��������� "�,,
���I���� ���"I��
���� ����� !����� ����
�������,� 
.� ���� "�����!�� ���� ���� ���,
���������� .
�� ����
��,���������
�/�
�
3���$�����
���
���������,
����������!��!�,�
����������!�����������,
����������
���� ��
����� �
� ���� �����
�� &
���� ������� ����� ���� ,�
��������� ����������� ����
,�
�������&����.������
�,������&����'I�$���������������
��������
�������)����	�����
�������,���������
��&
���������������
���&�������
���
�������������������,,�
���/�

Page 5



�
5���������
�!��������.�����
�� ���������
���
��
���
���!������!��������
�������������
���� �
��������&����,�
,���������!��������
���
����&���� ����
�-�������
.���������!�
����,�������
���
�������������������!�
.��
�����
��� ��,�
����������������������
.
���������������/� A�� ���,
���	� ����$�����
�� ���������� ������
���
���!������!�������
&���� ���� ���,
���������� 
.� ����������� ����.� 1..�����	� &�
� &���� ��9������ �
� ��,
���
��������������
����
����0�H��
������������/�
�
������������!"#�#!��1��+������10�1"#���1�(%1�.�,#�
#1"#�-=�&��,�#��:�
�
�
� � �

�

Page 6



������������	�
����
����������������

������������������

�
��������		�
���
����	����

�
��������� ����������� ��������������������

�
� ������������ 
����������

�
�� ����
�

�

�!������ ������������ ����"�����#��!������$�%����������

��&�''����#��!������$�(�)��*�����
�

����������
���� ����������� ����+��'����� �

�
#��,���������� ������������ �+�
�"����

��)����
��

�
�

-.� ���
�������
����������
��������������
�
��
�����/������*���������������/����������������!�����������!��0�������� ����������
��������������/�������� ���
������� ������'���������� �$����� ����������� ���
�����������
/���������/���1�
�
��
�����/������
�������������������������������������!�����������!���'��!��.���$�
����2"��"��/�����%������������������(������/������� �����/���� ���0���� ��� �� !�����
/��!���������������/�����������
���������������������������$�����������������������������
������������$�����/��!!��'������'�
���1�
�
3��������������������/����
���1�
�

-	� ����
�����������
��
����
�
������
���������������
��	�
�
�������

�
�����	
��	�������
�
4����������
������.5��		�%�!��
����	���������
������6-��	7�3�"�
����	����������

�������� �$�,����� %������%��"����� ��!������ ����� ��� 		�%�!��
���� 	���� ��� ���� �����
���$��
������������'�����!��0���������'��������$����$���	���8	��9�/���:91.
��/�����
/���.�1;<����"���������'��1�&����$�'������������������$$����������"��'����=�������$�
������!���
���� ���	���8	��9����� ����
�!���
�������� ������$������������ �����/�����
�����������!��0�������"���!�������	���8	��9�����	��98	�.�1� �/�"������/���������
����� �� ��'��$������ ��������� ��� ����"���� ������� ���� )������ ������� ���� ������� �����
�����
���!�������������������������������/�����������������!�������
�����������������'�
������ $��� ������"�� ���'����� /���� !�����'� ����������� ��
����� ��� ���������1� &���
�������� 
�
���� $��� %������ ����� ���� #��������� ��

������ ����� ��
����� ��� ����
���"�������"�����$����������������������������������/����"������$$���������!���������������
��

�����������/���������"����/�����=�����������������������"��������$���1�
�
,���������=���������/����'�����������������
���'����$��
�
,%%�/����������������

�
����$��� ���������� #���������������� ����4�����������>����?�����2"��"��/�����

Public Document Pack

Page 7



%����������

���������������������������@!����������������

������ ���������������
�������'��������$���1�
�
&������������������=������������$��������$��
�/��*� ���/��������/����������!���� ���
������

��������������
�������������������������$�����$����/��'����
�����A��
�

•� &��'�"�����������'����������������������!���������������������������������������

�!���
�����$�,�����%������%��"�������
����������'���$�������/����������!��0������
�"���!�����$�:61;
���!����������������

�����1�

�

•� &�������$��
�
�������������������������"�����������������'�����������������������
'�"���� ������!��������$� ��

��
����� $����'� ���� ���"�������� ����� ����!��$���� ����
!��������$��@!����������"�����$�������������� ������������������������!���
�������
���'�����������'��1�

�

•� &�� ��������� $������� ���� �����
�������� ��� /����� ���� ���'����� �"��� ��

��
����
������ ��� ���� �@����� �$� :91.
� ���� ��� ���������� /������� ��

��������'� ����
!������
���� !���������� /���� !��!����� $����/���� ���� ��� ���*� ���� �����"��
����������@!���������1�

�
 ����!�����������/������ ����!��0�������@!���������$��� ������!���
����/����������� ���
�����/����!��"�������������������!��"�������"��'��!��!������/���� ��*��'� ���'��� �����
������!���������
!��
���1� ����

�����������/�������$�������������������������������
!��'����� *��� ���������� ��� ���� ��
��'� /��*��� ������ ��
������ �� !��0������ ���'���
�����$���� ��� 6.������� 	��9� �$� :;1;
1� ������ ���� �� ��
���� �$� �������� ����� ���� ����
!��������� ��� �
!���� ��� ���� $����� �������� ����/������ ��� ���� ���� ����� !�������� ��� �$$���
����������� ���/���������!������������������������������ ���$���������"��'���$�:.
1�3 %�
)������ ���&��/���/��*��'�/����
,%%� ��� 0���������"���!����� $������/����"���������
�@�����'�!��*�'����$��������=�����'�0�������"���
�������������'�$�����������

��
�����
��� ���� �������� ����� ���� ���� ��"���� �$�
���'�
���� ��� 
,%%� /���� ��*��'� �������� ���
�
�������������!��0�������"���!���1�
�
 �� ��!������ ����� ������!���
�����������=����� ���������� �����/������������������
$��������������
��������'��$��������'��1� �/�"���� ���/���!��!���������������������
������$�����!��$��
��������
������������������!���/����!�������������������������$���
���'���
��������'�!��!����1�,���
�����$������� ��������"��� ��������'��������'������'�
�$�������!���
�������������
���'�
�������
��������������"��"�
����/�������!������
$������� ��������'� !������
����� ������ ���� $��������� ���"����� /����� ���!� $������1�  ��
��!������ ����� ����� ���� $����� �����
�� �$� ���� ��

������ ����� ���'��� /����� ���
��!������� ��� ���� ���������� �������'� ��

��
���� ��� �������'� �@!���������� ����
���������$����$$�����������������"������8�?(������������$�����'����������/���� ������
!�������B���������
��/�������!����������
����!�����������������������������������
��������'� ��"��/��'� !��*�'��� �$� ����� ����� ��� ������ !��!��� ��� �������� ..5� �$� ����
������� ������,����/�������������������������������!!�������������������������������1�
�
)������'�����������:91.
���!���������%�!��
����	���������
����������

��������������
/��� ���� ��
!��� ��� C�"��� ��

��
���B�� ���� /��� �� C!�������� �����
���B� $��� ����
��!���
����������
���$������"�������������!�����$��������������������������	���8	��91�
&��� 
�������� ��

������ �!��� ���� �����
�������� ��� ������� �� ����������� ����
���������������'��1� �/�"���������������
����=����������
!��
�������'���
���������
����
�����$�/�������=��������
!��@���'����������������������������/����������'�����
�
!���� ����� ����1� &��� ������ �$� ���� ���'��� �������� ��=������ /������ �� �/��"�� 
�����

Page 8



!������ ���� �� "���� �������'��'� �'����� ���� ������ ��� ���� �����@�� �$� ����'��'�
��
�'��!����� ����'����� �� ����'��'� ������� �����
�� /��� �����'� ��� ��
����
!��������1�,������������$� ������

��
���� ���������� ����� ����������!��*�'����=������
������!���
���� ��������/���� ���� �����'�
�����$��!!��@�
������:.	1;
� ���	���8	��9�
���� ��� ��

������ ����� !��'����� ��� ������ /����� ��������� ��� ���� �������� !��0������
!��������������������'��$�����1�
�
��
����� ��

������ ��� ���� ����� $��� ��� ��������� ���'��� ��� ��� ���� ���� ����������
����� ������'�� ������ /��� ��� ���
���� �$� �@!��������� ����� /��� ��!������������
�@!�������� $��
�!��"��������������������"����������
���'���� ����������������!����
���������$������1�&�����/������������������������������
��������/����!������!�����
��� �������� ���� ���'��� �����$���� ����� /���� ���������� ���� �����"����1� ��
����� �����
�@!�������!�����������������������������������"�����$������������&�������������������
��
�!�������
���'����$������'��!�����1�
�
&���
��������!��"���������!�����/���� ��'���� ��� ���� ��"����$���&������������������

�
����� �����
���'����/�������������������$��
�������������$������ ��������������
��$������ �!���$������� ��� /��*� ����'� �������*��� ��� �� ��������� ��"��� ��� ��������� ���

�
�����1� ������ ��

��������'� %�����'���� ���� ����� ��"���!��� ���� �
!��
������
�����!��"���������������$������������������������������$�!��!������)����������������$���
���"����������'������)�����B��������%�����'���3�����,�������������!��"����������������
��$��
������ �����!!���� ��

��������'�����!������
��������������������� ����)������
�����
�1�  �� ��!������ ����� ����� ��� �����'����� ���� ��

��������'� �!!������
����'������ ��

��������'� �����'�
����� ���� ����� ����������� ������ ����

���'�
���� �$� ���� 
�������� �$� %�����'��� ����������!�� �������� ��� 3 %�)�����1� &���
��������������$� ���� ����'�����������'�
�����/������������ ��

��������'�/��������
������� ���� ������� ���� ������� ����� �����
��� $�������� ������� �� ���������
����� ����
��

��������'����)������/�����
����)�������������

��������'����������1�
�
&��� �������� 
�
���� $��� %������ ����� ���� #��������� ��$������ ��� ���� ��$$������� �����

�
������$�����+����������!����������������'�������

�������������

�����������
�������������������@!���������$��������
�����'������/���$���������/������'���� ���
���� �����"�������� ���/����������1�&����������!���'�����$�����$$����������������� ����
������$�����
�����'�������

���������������������������!�����������$����������������
/�������!������ �������
�
����1� �/�"������������"��� ����
������ ������ ������������
$�����������"���������$�����������@������������
�����'1�
�
#��/���
�"����������������� ����������������������������������������A��
�
D�.��&����������!������������1�
�
�	�� &���� $������� 
���'������ ������� ��� ��*��� ��� ����"��� ���'��� �$$���������� ���
	���8	��91�
�
�6�� &���� ����� ��

������ ����

����� ���� ���� �$� �� 
���� ��������� ����
���� �$�
���'��������=����
����������������
���������������!!��������$����������������0�������
$����������1�
�
�-��&������$��������!�������!�������!������������������@��
�����'��$��������

�����1E�
�
&��� $����/��'� �������
� ��� ���� 
������ ��� �����������  ���� /��� !��!����� ���
������������������������������������������������&�''���A��

Page 9



�
D�.��&���� �������

������/����
����������/��*��'� �����������!��/���� ������&83 %�
)�����������/�����������"��=����������"����������$$�����������������"���1�
�
�	��&�����������

�����������@����������
����������������������������������������������
��������"��������������!��������������������$$�����B���
�������!��/������������������1�
�
�6�� &���� ���� ����*�� �$� ���� ��

������ ��� ��������� ��� ���� 
�������� �$� ,����� %������
%��"������������������
�
������$�����
���'�
�������
��������������1E�
�
&���
�������������������� ����������!������'������������
�!���$��/������������������
����������/����'����1�
�
������������
�
 !"��#$%�%#��&�'�&%�(��)�%��*�
�
 +"� �#$%� ,-&%#�&� .$)$/�&0$�� $1%0�)� (�� %$2�)� %�� ���0��&� (-�/�%� �,,010�)10��� 0)�
+334�+335*�
�
 6"� �#$%� %#0�� ��..0%%��� &�1�..�)��� %#�� -��� �,� $� .�&�� &��0$(��� ��%0.$%�� �,�
(-�/�%$&7� &�8-0&�.�)%�� ($���� �)� $� .�&�� &�$�0�%01� $''&$0�$�� �,� %#���� $&�$��
�-(9�1%�%��,�-1%-$%0�)*�
�
 :"� �#$%� $� ,-&%#�&� -'�$%�� &�'�&%� (�� '&���)%��� %�� %#�� )�;%� .��%0)/� �,� %#0��
��..0%%��*�
�
 <"� �#$%� %#0�� ��..0%%��� =��1�.��� 1����&� =�&20)/� &��$%0�)�#0'�� =0%#� %#��
������
� �0&&$�� $�� $� =$7� %�� $1#0���� 8-$�0%7� ��&�01��� $)�� �,,010�)10��� 0)�
���0��&7*�
�
 >"��#$%� %#0����..0%%��� 0��$);0�-�� %#$%�.$%%�&�� 0)�&��$%0�)� %��#0�%�&01$��1$����
�#�-���(��&��������$�����)�$��'���0(���%��&���$����,,01�&�?� %0.��%��1�'��=0%#�
1-&&�)%�0��-��*�
�
 @"� �#$%� %#�� %#$)2�� �,� %#�� ��..0%%��� (�� $11�&���� %�� %#�� �0&�1%�&� �,� ��-�%�

�10$��
�&�01���$)��%��%#����.�.(�&���,�#0��.$)$/�.�)%�%�$.�0)�$%%�)�$)1�*�
�
�
� � �

�

Page 10



������������	�
����
����������������

������������������

�
���������	�
������
�������

�
�
������� ���������
� �������
���������
��

�
� ���������
�� �����
���

����� ����
��!���
����
�

��"����
#����$����
�

�
��%������ ���������
�� ��"������&��%������'�(�)��������

�
�
�

*+� ���
�������
����������
��������������
�
)�,-�
�� �
����$�������������
� �����
����������%�
�������
�%
�.�������� ����
�����
�������������� �������� ���,������� ���������������	� �'���	� ��������
�� ���,�����������
 ��������� �
�/�
�
)�,-�
�� �
��
�,���������������������������������
�	�%�
���������%�
��
�%��01��'�
����23�
3�� �����(�
�������
�����
��#����	� �����
� ����� �
�� ��-.���� ��� �� %�
���
 ��%��������������� �����������,�������-���������
������	��'���	���������
���������������
��������
���'����� ��%%�����

����,���/�
�
���������
�� ���
��	� �����
���	� "���� �������$���� �����
��� ����
� %�
������ ����
���� ���
����������,����4
���'�
,������

���5�(�
�������6�����#�3�� �	�����'�
��������� �
��
,�,-�
���'�3�
�����,�����,������,,������������������-���''������-�����������,��
�'�����(�
�������6�����#�3�� /�
�

**� ����
�������������
���
����������

�����������
�
6�� ���� 
�7����� �'� ���� ����
	� ���� ��
����
� �'� 8� 	� "#� ���� 6����� )�����,����
%
�������� ������-����� 
�%�
���'� ��������'�!9�����3����� ����(�
�������6�����#�3�� �
�(6#�����-�����,�������:*���
�;�3�,-�
����1��
�'�
��	� ���������-����
�'�

������
�������,,������'�
���
�����/�4���
�%�
������������3������'�
��
���'�
,������

��<������
�'�������� ����
��
� ��� �,%
�3����
3��������3�
�=� %
�3����-����
�3����� '�
�,����=�����
��%%�
�� ���� 
�����
������ �'� ���� >�
����	� %�
������
��� ���� ,���� ��%
�3��� %�
��/� &��

���,,��������3�������?��,	��3�
�'��
����
�	������3���%�����
���������� �
$��'�0��
�����@�'@���@�
�� ,����@%�
%���� ��,%��9��	�  �����  ����� -�� �� ,�9� �'� -
���� �� �
-��������� ���� �������,����� ��� �9������� '���������/� 4�� �����3�� ���� ��3��� �'� ��
3����
�,%
�3�,���	�  ������ ��,������������ ����
������� �3�
���� -��������� 
������� �����	�

�7��
�������
�������
�3�� ��'����������������<��%
�%�
�����������
����������������������
��,-�
� �'� %�-������ '������ %
�,����/�4��� 3������ '�
� ���� '���
�� ���������� ������ ����

�%�
�� ����'�,�����,%
�3���'���������	�-����������,������������,����������-��������/�
�
&�'�
,������ ���%
�����������������,,���������
�����������������3��������-��,�������
�����
�A�
���'�
� �'� ������	�  ����� �,������� ��� �%%
�9�,������ ?+/
,� %�
� ����,/� 6�

Public Document Pack

Page 11



,�
�������������������� ��������%
�����������
�����������%�����������3�������
���������
�����
���'���-
�
���������%�
�������
��/�
�
4�����
����
���������������3�����,�����
���3���������������'����-������#�3�� ��
��%�
�����  �
�� %
��
�,,��� '�
� �����
�� ���� ���%����� ��� ����A��0�� ���� ��� %
�3����� ��
-
��$�� ���'������������������'�?*B,�������'�����C���������<��%����	� �������������
-����
���,,�����/�&��
��%����������,,�����'
�,�,�,-�
�	�����������������������
������3������'�?+/
,�%�
�����,���������-��������
���	�-�������-����������'���������

������ �'� ���� (�
������� �������������� �%����� 
���,,������ -�� ���� #�3�� � �
��%	�
��-.������������
���
��
���'�
�-��+0�)�
�������/�"����,,���������������� �����������
(6#	�����6�������,,�������D����'�#����
����������,���� �������$�����
�%�'
�,���
��� �� 0� �'� *� 
�����	�  �����  ����� ��3�� �� '�
���
� ���
�,������ $���$@��� �''���/� "��
����%�������������%
�'�

����%����� �������-.����3��.����,���	�-�����,,������������'�
���������������%���������-����%
�'�

��	���,%������
����3����� �������3�� ���-��
������'�������� ��
�	�����
��
�'�
����������������������-��������-�����/�
�
4�������
����������
�7�����������%
������������'�
�%�
������������-�����������
���
-��������-��������0:�6���������
�����0+�)�
������1	� �����������������'�
,������
��� 
�������� ��� ���� -��$���� �'�,�.�
� %
�%�
��� 
�%��
�� �'� ?0�,/�2�� ���� ��3���� �'� ����
��
����
��'�8� 	�"#�����6�����)�����,���	�������,,��������
��������������9�,%��

�%�
�� �'� ���� ��%���� ����'� !9�����3�A��
����
� �'� ��
%�
���� (�
3����� ��
�%�
���
��
'�
,����� )�����,����� ������� -�� �������
��� ��� �%��� ��,,�����	� ���� ��%����
 �
��,�����3����-������,�,-�
���'�����%�-���� ��� �
���������������/�
�
4��� ��
����
� �'� #�����
������ %
�3����� ��'�
,������ ��� 
�������� ��� ��,%�
������ �����
����-����,���� ��������
� ������ �����
������ ���� 
���
�� ��� ����%
�3�������'� ��-
�
����
�����%�
�������
��/�"� �3�
	�������,��
�%����'���

������������3����-�������'�%�-����
�
���%�
����������������-������$��� ������������/� &�� ���� �������'���,,�����,����-��
,�,-�
�� ���
�������������''�������������� �����-��'�����-����,��
��������	� ��������
�
�9%
������ ���� 3�� � ����� ���� ��-����� ������� -�� 
�7������� ��� 
�@������� ����
��,��
�%���������
���%�
��������/�
�
&��
��%����������'�
���
���,,����'
�,���,�,-�
� �������

������������3������%�����
%
��
�,,���'�%
��
����3�������9�����3�� 
�.�3�����������
�'�������� �����������3�
�
 ����������-���������������%������9%������
�/�4�����
����
��'�E���������3����� �����
������%����������������
�����������
�7��
��������'�
��%�������-���������������%����� ���
�����������3�������	��
���������������������'� ��'���'	���������/�����
���
�%��
������
,����������� ������ ���� -�� ��%��������� ��������� ����
� �9%������
�� ������ -�� �'� ���
��,%����� ���������������
����'�������/�4�������
��9%
����������3�� ������������-�����
-��
�7���������� ���$��������?��,��� ��3����-��� ���������%������
��
�,,����������'�
�����������-�������������������������9��������������'���'��9�������'���������/�
�
4��� ��
����
� 
�%�
���� ����� ���� #�3�� � �
��%� ���� ����
��$��� �� 
�3�� � �'� �''����
����,,�������/� 4�� ���%� '���� ���� ������ �'� ����3�
���� ���� %
�%����� ,����@%�
%����
��,%��9��	� ���� ��������  ����� �����3�� ��� ������ �� ��� %�
� ����� 
��������� ��� ���� � ��
����,,�������� ������ -�� ��00/� "�� ��,,������ ����� �����  ����� ,���� '� �
� �''����
-��������� ��
����������
����
������'��%���%��������,,�������=���
��������3�
����
'���
� �%���� %�
� �,%�����=� ���
������ ���$� ���
���=� ����,�
�� '��9�-���  �
$���/� >��
��00	�������,����
��� �������3���3�
�?0,�%�
�����,	� ����� ����7��3�����������
����%�
������
��������������������4�9/�
�

Page 12



4�������
���,,������ ����� ����%�-����,�����������
�����-��� �
���'� ����?0�,�%�
�
����,�������'�
��������%�
�������
�����,%�
��������������,������
������'�?*,�%�
�
����,���������9%
������ ���� 3�� � ����� '��������������-�� ������� '
�,� ������4� ���
3�� � �'� ���� ������� -���'���� ��� -�� ������� '
�,� ���
������ ���� �'� � �,,���� ����
�9�
�����'���������/�4�����
����
��'�#�����
������
�%�
���������'��������'�?���$��3�
�
� �����
������-�����-�������'
�,���)(�'�
�'
���� �,,����'�
��3�
�:�<����������
�
0:<�/� &�� ��������	� ��

��� "������ ���� '������ ���� ���� �'� ��,� �7��%,���� -�� ������
%��%��/� "� �3�
	� ���  ��� ����$���� ����� '�
���
� '�������  ����� -�� �-������� '
�,� ����
��4/�4�����
����
�
�'�

�����������������������
�����'���

��������������
������
�����
���� �,�������������
��9%
����������3�� ������������-�������������������
� �����
����
 ��� �����'���� �������

��� ����� ��3�� �����-��� ��3���� �'� %
�3������ '�
� � �,,���� ����
����
��%�
���'�����������������,,�����������������'���
3�������
�/�
�
&�� ���,�3���-�����������
�"�����������������-�����������
�!���
����5��
�
F4���� ����� ��,,������ 
���,,����� ����� ���� %
�%����� �����
�� %
��
�,,�� -��
 ����
� �	�����5��
�
����4��������?:/�,�
�%��
��
�7��
���'�
�-���������-����3������������������'�������
�%��
��
���%�
���
����'��������-����%��������/�
�
�����4����������3�����'
�,��''����-���������-��-
������'�
 �
�������%
��
���/�
�
������4�������-�����������������?��,�%
�%�����'�
��� �-���������,�������-��
�7��
��	�
��3����?0/1,�%�
�����,��'��
�*����
�/�
�
��3�� 4���� ���� -������� �'� ���� ��3����� 
�7��
��� -�� ��-.���� ��� '�
���
� ��3�����������
 ������� �''������� ���� %
������ �������-������ -�� ���� %�-���� ��� �����
�� ���� �����
���
'���������	��������3���������������������������������� ����������4/G�
�
&�� ���,�3����������,���,����-�����������
������
�����������������-�����������
�
���
���5��
�
F�0�� 4���� �������,,������ 
�7������ ������-����� ��� 
�3�� � ���� ���������� %
�%�����	�
��3����
���
���������'���� ����������������������<���3�
����'���������%���������
�
����4��������?:/�,�
�%��
��
�7��
���'�
�-���������-����3������������������'�������
�%��
��
���%�
���
����'��������-����%��������/�
�
�����4����������3�����'
�,��''����-���������-��-
������'�
 �
�������%
��
���/�
�
������4�������-�����������������?��,�%
�%�����'�
��� �-���������,�������-��
�7��
������
��������
���/�
�
��3��4���� ������-�����-�� 
�7������� �����3�� 
���
�� ����������-������ ������� 
������-��
,�,-�
���'�����%�-������������������
������
���
����%%���������
� �����%�%
�3���������
����(�
�������6�����#�3�� /G�
�
4����,���,���� ���%���������

�����*�+��
�
�
�

Page 13



��������� ��� !"#���$�� ����$%�!&� �'��� '!�� �'(��� �#���!%#!)� #!� $��*�"%� �+� �,-�
.���/-�0��
�
�,-� �1'%� %1#�� ��22#%%��� $�3 ��%�� %1�� �'.#!�%� %�� $��#�/� %1�� � ))��%���
*$�*��'��&�1'�#!)�$�)'$��%��%1��+����/#!)�'!��%��%1���� !"#�4�����$'���+#!'!"#'��
*��#%#�!5�
�
�#-��1'%�%1��67892�$�*'#$��$�3 #$���+�$�. #��#!)��.��#!���%#)'%���%������#+�%1����
$�*'#$��#!�*'$%��$�#!�+ ���"'!�.��"'*#%'�#���8�
�
�##-��1'%�%1���'�#!)��+$�2��++#"��. #��#!)��.��.$� )1%�+�$/'$��'��'�*$#�$#%(8�
�
�###-� �1'%� #%� .�� !�%��� %1'%� %1�� 69:2� *$�*����� +�$� !�/� . #��#!)�� 2'(� !�%� .��
$�3 #$���#!�#%���!%#$�%(8�
�
�#�-��1'%�%1���'.#!�%�.��$�3 ��%���%��1'���$�)'$��%��'""���#.#�#%(�#�� ���$'#����
.(�2�2.�$���+� %1��* .�#"� '!�� %�� "�!�#��$� %1�� "$#%�$#'� '**�#��� #!��$'/#!)� *�
*$��#�#�!�#!�%1��
%$'%�)#"�����%����#�/8�
�
�
� � �

�

Page 14



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
FINANCE & BEST VALUE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 JANUARY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT 
 
1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides a summary in tabular format of the current position of the 

revenue accounts and General Fund balances. 
 
2. MONITORING STATEMENT 
 
2.1 The monitoring statement is attached to this report and includes the following: 
 

- Composition of the original 2008/09 budget by department including 
agreed savings and policy options which now includes the Department of 
Law, Human Resources and Asset Management. 

- Monitoring against the 2008/09 budget including the financial implications 
of any Cabinet decisions. 

- Anticipated variances against the original budget. 
- Explanation of variances and areas identified as requiring further attention. 

 
2.2 The monitoring statement is based upon the information provided within 

departmental financial monitoring reports and is updated and submitted to 
each meeting of this Committee. 

 
3. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 The statement presents an update of the revenue budget and General Fund 

balances as at 30 November 2008. 
 
3.2 At this stage of the financial year there are reports of financial pressures in:- 
 

a. Adult Social Services - continue to project a £3.5 million overspend. 
Cabinet noted this position on 4 September 2008.  The Director of Adult 
Social Services presented a report to this Committee on 22 December 
2008 and is due to the present an update to this meeting of the 
Committee. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 15



 
b. Children & Young People – now projecting a £0.8 million overspend 

essentially because of the implementation of prior year targets, issues 
in respect of employee savings targets and care costs for children. This 
has reduced from an earlier £3 million projection primarily through the 
use of grant funding opportunities. 

 
c. Regeneration - experiencing difficulties as options for delivering service 

re-engineering savings have yet to be agreed and the potential 
overspend is £0.6 million. As part of the mid-year review of Reserves 
and Provisions reported to Cabinet on 10 December 2008 the sum of 
£230,000 was returned to the general balance. 

 
3.3 Treasury Management activities continue to be affected by the volatility of the 

financial market. Close monitoring has resulted in increasing investment 
income, a reduced need for temporary borrowing and also for borrowing to 
fund the capital programme. The current projection is a £2.6 million 
underspend. 

 
3.4 Following the completion of the 2007/08 accounts the outturn was reported to 

Cabinet on 26 June 2008 and the Statement of Accounts to Audit and Risk 
Management Committee on 30 June 2008. There was a net underspend and 
an increase in the balance at 31 March 2008 of £2.5 million. 

 
3.5 The Insurance Fund Annual Report was presented to Cabinet on 9 July 2008. 

The outcome of the annual actuarial assessment identified continuing 
improvements in claims handling and repudiation rates which enabled £3 
million be returned to General Fund balances from the Insurance Fund in 
2008/09. 

 
3.6 The Government issued a Determination on the distribution of the Local 

Authority Business Growth Incentive (LABGI) grant for previous years in June 
2008. The Wirral allocation of £1.3 million was reported to Cabinet on 23 July 
2008 and added to the balance. 

 
3.7 A report on energy related costs was presented to Cabinet on 9 July 2008. 

Budget variations of £0.9 million were approved for 2008/09 in respect of 
Children & Young People and Technical Services. A further update on the 
energy related contracts due for renewal that could further impact upon the 
balance is being presented to Cabinet on 15 January 2009. 

 
3.8. Cabinet were advised of £1.7 million of highways maintenance expenditure 

being eligible to be capitalised which represents a £2.2 million reduction on 
that included within the 2008/09 budget. 

 
3.9. On 6 November 2008 Cabinet agreed to fund the improvement teams in 

respect of Procurement and Creditors, Change, Customer Services 
Development and Adult Social Services Reform totalling £2.2 million from the 
Efficiency Investment Budget. 

Page 16



 
3.10. The impact of the energy pressures, if realised, and the variations, if not 

contained, would see the balances become £6.2 million. This is detailed in the 
table:- 

 

Details £million £million 

Projected General Fund balances at 31 March 2009 
when setting the budget for 2008/09 

 5.0 

Cabinet decisions   

Financial out-turn for 2007/08 showed an underspending 
and contribution to balances (see 3.4) 

+2.5  

Release of Insurance Fund reserve to general balance 
(see 3.5) 

+3.0  

Receipt of Local Authority Business Growth Incentive 
(LABGI) grant to general balance (see 3.6) 

+1.3  

Funding for street lighting energy and Children & Young 
People transport costs (see 3.7) 

-0.9  

Reduction in the highways spend eligible for 
capitalisation (see 3.8) 

-2.0  

Funding of improvement teams from the Efficiency 
Investment Budget (see 3.9) 

+2.2 +6.1 

Projected variances / potential overspends   

Overspend (see 3.2) 
        Adult Social Services 
        Children & Young People 
        Regeneration 

 
+3.5 
+0.8 
+0.6 

 

Underspend 
        Treasury Management (see 3.3) 

 
-2.6 

 
 

Potential liability 
In respect of fuel and energy costs in 2008/09 (see 3.7) 

+2.6 -4.9 

General Fund balances at 31 March 2009 based 
upon the projections at 30 November 

  
6.2 

 
3.9 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report. 
 
4. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
5. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

Page 17



 
9. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are no particular implications for any Members or wards arising out of 

this report. 
 
11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
11.1 None were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
12. RECOMMENDATION 
 
12.1 That the contents of the financial monitoring statement be noted. 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
FNCE/3/09 
 

Page 18



WIRRAL COUNCIL  FINANCIAL MONITORING STATEMENT 2008/09  POSITION AS AT 30 NOVEMBER 2008 
 
 ORIGINAL BUDGET 2008/09** MONITORING 2008/09 COMMENTS 

Department Savings 
Target 

Policy 
Options 

Agreed 
Budget 

Savings 
Target 

Policy 
Options 

Cabinet 
Decision 

Projected 
Variances 

 

Expenditure £000 £000 £000      £000 £000  

Adult Social Services 4,494 20 86,434 X 
 

 

 

ü 

 

 

 

- +3,500 Pressures remain on care services from underlying commitments and 
working of procurement target. The £3.5m overspend was noted by 
Cabinet on 4 September. Further update to the Finance Committee on 
22 December and then to Cabinet. 

Children & Young People 3,981 20 70,560 X 
 

 

 

ü 

 

 

 

+120 +600 Actions have reduced projections from earlier £3m overspend. Due to 
delivery of prior year savings (£0.5m), staff (£0.4m), child care (£1.2m) 
and transport (£0.3m) offset by use of grants (£1.8m). Procurement 
savings to be identified. Cabinet decision was regarding fuel costs. 

Corporate Services 289 441 5,112 ü ü - - No issues identified. Original budget split with Law, HR and Asset Mgt. 

Finance 1,696 40 21,048 

ü ü 

-2,200 - Housing Benefit is the largest and most volatile area. Cabinet decision 
is Efficiency Budget paying for reform/change related teams in Adults 
and Finance (£2.2m). 

Law, HR and Asset Management 249 115 1,105   +148  Cabinet decision is transfer from Treasury Management. 

Regeneration 821 225 41,229 X 
 

 

ü 

 

 

- +800 Procurement savings to be identified. Difficulties delivering Service re-
engineering (£0.6m) and income targets (£0.2m) leading to potential 
overspend of £0.8m with pressure on energy costs and income. 

Technical Services 1,237 30 35,529 ü 

 

 

ü 

 

 

+2,780 - Building control / land charges income and procurement savings being 
reviewed. Cabinet decisions on street lighting energy (£0.78m) and 
reduced capitalisation (£2m). 

Treasury Management 0 200 11,755 N/a ü -148 -2,600 The financial market volatile and investment returns lower but close 
management of cash flow has increased investment income, reduced 
need for temporary borrowing and borrowing to fund capital schemes.. 

Merseytravel - - 25,311 N/a N/a - - Fixed amount - no change. 

Local Pay Review - - 4,546 N/a N/a - - Cabinet report 22 May with Phase 1 payments made in July/August. 

Bridging Finance from Balances - - (1,900) N/a N/a - - Asset savings and Adults income from fees 2009/10. 

Contribution from Balances - - (2,202) N/a N/a -700 - See Cabinet decisions regarding fuel and energy costs, capitalisation 
and the reform/change related teams funding. 

Budget Requirement 12,767 1,091 298,527    +2,300  

         

Income         

Revenue Support Grant - - 18,016 N/a N/a N/a N/a Fixed amount-– no change 

Area Based Grant - - 28,390 N/a N/a N/a N/a Government still to confirm final allocations 

National Non Domestic Rate - - 129,413 N/a N/a N/a N/a Fixed amount - no change 

Council Tax - - 123,217 N/a N/a N/a N/a Fixed amount - no change 

Collection Fund Deficit - - (509) N/a N/a N/a N/a Fixed amount - no change 

Total Income   298,527     Fixed amount -  no change 

         

Statement of Balances         

As at 1 April - - 8,593 - - - 5,000 Opening balance - forecast 1 April 2009 

Contributions from Balances - - (4,102) - - - -  

Contributions from Reserves - - 509 - - - +3,000 Release of Insurance Fund Cabinet 9 July 

Cabinet decisions - - - - - - +3,800 From 2007/08 accounts £2.5m (26 June) & LABGI £1.3m (23 July). 

Cabinet decisions      - -700 Fuel/energy (23 July) - potential £3.5m of which +£0.9m allocated), 
reduced capitalisation (+£2m) and use of Efficiency Budget (-£2.2m). 

Issues – Projected Variances - - - - - - -4,900 Based upon present projections for Adults, Children, Regeneration and 
Treasury and potential energy costs (further report to go to Cabinet). 

BALANCES AT 31/03/08 & 31/03/09   5,000    6,200 Projected balance at start / end of year 

Key = No concern for item   üüüü         

Key = Concern for item   X       

** The Original Budget for 2008/09 has been re-allocated per Cabinet on 25 September as a consequence of establishing the Department of Law, HR and Asset Management. 

 

P
a
g
e
 1

9



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 
FINANCE AND BEST VALUE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 JANUARY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
GENERAL FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report provides information on treasury management, monitoring of the 

prudential indicators, the position regarding Council Tax, National Non Domestic 
Rate, general debt and cash income collection and the payment of Benefits. 

 
2. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
2.1. Current Economic Environment 
 
2.1.1 The UK economy is officially in recession and the immediate future looks very 

gloomy. Unemployment figures are continuing to rise and with the demise of high 
street names such as Woolworths these figures are expected to deteriorate.  

 
2.1.2 The predicted fall in inflation rates has begun with the official measure of inflation, 

CPI, falling to 4.1% and the RPI down to 3% for November 2008. These figures are 
expected to continue to drop rapidly; however, there is still uncertainty as to how 
low inflation will fall, with deflation still a possibility next year.   

 
2.1.3 The Bank of England (BoE) base rate was reduced to 2% in December 2008 and 

according to the minutes of the last meeting a bigger cut was only resisted because 
of the effect it may have on the currency. This news makes further cuts over the 
next few months inevitable and interest rate forecasts have again been revised.  I 
am now assuming that rates will fall to 1% early in 2009.     

 
2.2. Investments 
 
2.2.1. The Treasury Management Team invests surplus money for periods varying from 1 

day to 10 years, in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, to earn 
interest until the money is required by the Council. This surplus money occurs for a 
number of reasons including; 

 

• General Fund Balances – money available to fund future expenditure  

• Reserves – earmarked money for future spending plans 

• Grants received in advance of expenditure 

• Money borrowed in advance of capital expenditure 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 21



2.2.2 As at the 30 November 2008 the Council held investments of £84.3m. The table 
below details these investments;  

 
 Table 1: Investments as at 30 November 2008 
 

 Investments with: £m 

Banks 23.9 

Building Societies 24.3 

Debt Management Office 7.9 

Other Local Authorities 22.5 

Money Market Funds  4.9 

Other Unit Trusts 0.1 

Gilts 0.7 

TOTAL 84.3 

 
2.2.3 Of the above investments  £5.7m is invested in instant access funds, £68.6m is 

invested for up to 1 year, £6m is invested for up to 2 years and £4m is invested for 
up to 5 years.  

 
2.2.4 The average rate of return on investments as at 30 November 2008 was 5.60%. The 

graph below shows the rate of return achieved against the Bank of England base 
rate and the 3 month LIBOR (the inter bank lending rate); 

 
 Chart 1: Council’s Investment Rate of Return in 2008/09 
 

2.8000
3.0000
3.2000
3.4000
3.6000
3.8000
4.0000
4.2000
4.4000
4.6000
4.8000
5.0000
5.2000
5.4000
5.6000
5.8000
6.0000
6.2000
6.4000

01
/0
9/
20
08

08
/0
9/
20
08

15
/0
9/
20
08

22
/0
9/
20
08

29
/0
9/
20
08

06
/1
0/
20
08

13
/1
0/
20
08

20
/1
0/
20
08

27
/1
0/
20
08

03
/1
1/
20
08

10
/1
1/
20
08

17
/1
1/
20
08

24
/1
1/
20
08

Date

In
te
re
s
t 
R
a
te
 (
%
)  BoE Base rate

3 Month LIBOR

Wirral Councils Average Investment

Rate of Return

 
 
2.2.5 The rate at which the Council can invest money has fallen considerably over the 

year, in line with the falling BoE base rate.  
 
2.2.6 During November 2008 I reinstated some banks and building societies onto the 

Approved Counterparty List. The institutions reinstated are all UK based, AA rated 
and have received Government guarantees of support, if required in the future. The 
Council also continues to invest in AAA rated money market funds and the Debt 
Management Office (DMO).  

 

Page 22



2.2.7 The 2008/09 budget for investment income is £2.7m; as at 30 November 2008 
income of £3.7m had already been secured. Investment Income is currently forecast 
to produce a surplus of £1.2m in 2008/09. This is due to: 

 

• The prevailing money market rates of interest have been higher than 
expected primarily due to the credit crunch which has benefited the new 
deposits made during the early part of the year.  

• Following the Treasury Management Team restructure in 2007/08 the 
Council has become more proactive in finding the best investment 
opportunities and thereby earned better returns. 

2.2.8 The security of the investments always takes priority over the returns. 

 

2.3 Borrowing 
 
2.3.1 The Council undertakes borrowing to help fund capital expenditure. To date no 

additional borrowing has been undertaken in 2008-09. The table below shows the 
total borrowing of the Council as at 30 November 2008. 

 
 Table 2: Borrowing as at 30 November 2008.  

Borrowings £m 

PWLB 113.7 

Market Loans 173.6 

TOTAL 287.3 
 

 
2.3.2 The Council is able to borrow from two main sources, either from the Public Works 

Loan Board (PWLB), which is effectively borrowing from the Government, or from 
the market, i.e. direct from the banks.  

 
2.3.3 The Council currently has no temporary borrowing. Temporary borrowing is used to 

finance unexpected short term cash flow problems. The Treasury Management 
Team maintains an accurate cash flow forecast to minimise the risk of unexpected 
cashflow problems.  This work generated savings in 2007-08 of £350,000 and it is 
hoped that it will generate further savings in the future. 

 
2.4 Monitoring of the Prudential Code Indicators 
 
2.4.1 The introduction of the Prudential Code in 2004 gave Local Authorities greater 

freedom in making capital strategy decisions. The prudential indicators allow the 
Council to demonstrate that it is complying with the statutory responsibility of 
establishing prudence and affordability within its capital strategy. 

 
2.4.2 Below is a selection of prudential indicators which demonstrate that the treasury 

management decisions are in line with the capital strategy, which is prudent and 
affordable.  

 
 Net External Borrowing and Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) Indicator  
 
2.4.3 The CFR measures the underlying need to borrow money to finance capital 

expenditure.  The Prudential Code stipulates that net external borrowing should not 
exceed the CFR for the previous year plus the estimated additional CFR 
requirement for the current and next two financial years. Table 3 below shows the 
cumulative CFR and net borrowing of the Council.  Page 23



 Table 3: Net External Borrowing compared with CFR. 
 

  £m 

CFR in previous year (2007-08) 312.3 

additional CFR in current year (2008-09) 23.6 

additional CFR in 2009-10 9.4 

additional CFR in 2010-11 10.7 

Cumulative CFR 356.0 

    

External Borrowing as at 30 Nov 2008 287.3 

 
2.4.4 Net external borrowing does not exceed the CFR and it is not expected to in the 

future. This is a key indicator of prudence. 
   
 Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary Indicators 
 
2.4.5 The Authorised Borrowing Limit is the amount determined as the level of borrowing 

which, while not desired, could be afforded but may not be sustainable. It is not 
treated as an upper limit for borrowing for capital purposes alone since it also 
encompasses temporary borrowing.  An unanticipated revision to this limit is 
considered to be an exceptional event and would require a review of all the other 
affordability indicators. 

 
2.4.6 The Operational Boundary is the amount determined as the expectation of the 

maximum external debt according to probable events projected by the estimates 
and makes no allowance for any headroom. It is designed to alert the Authority to 
any imminent breach of the Authorised Limit. 
 

 Table 4: Authorised Limit and Operational Boundary Indicator 
 

 Sep 08 Oct 08 Nov 08 
 £m £m £m 

Authorised limit 445 445 445 

Operational Boundary 435 435 435 

Total Council Borrowing 287 287 287 

 
2.4.7 The table above shows that neither the authorised limit nor the operational boundary 

was breached between September and November 2008. This is a key indicator of 
affordability. 

  
 Interest Rate Exposures Indicator 
 
2.4.8 The Prudential Code requires Local Authorities to set limits for the exposure to the 

effects of interest rate changes. Limits are set for the amount of borrowing/ 
investments which is subject to variable rates of interest and the amount which is 
subject to fixed rates of interest.  

 
2.4.9 To give the Authority flexibility during the current unsettled market conditions the 

upper exposure limits have been set at 100% for both fixed and variable. Table 5 
show the interest rate exposure as at 30 November 2008.   

 

Page 24



 Table 5: Interest Rate Exposure: 

Interest Rate Exposure 
Fixed Rate 
of Interest 

Variable 
Rate of 
Interest 

Total 

    

Borrowing £277m £10m £287m 

Proportion of Borrowing 97% 3% 100% 

Upper Limit 100% 100%  

    

Investments £10m £74m £84m 

Proportion of Investments 12% 88% 100% 

Upper Limit 100% 100%  

    

Net Borrowing £267m £-64m £203m 

Proportion of Total Net 
Borrowing 132% -32% 100% 

 
2.4.10 The table above shows that borrowing is largely at fixed rates of interest and 

investments are at variable rates of interest. This was considered to be a good 
position while interest rates were rising, due to the credit crunch, as the cost of 
existing borrowing has remained stable and the investments, at variable rates of 
interest, have generated increasing income.   

 
2.4.11 However as the environment changes to one of falling interest rates the Treasury 

Management Team has begun to adjust the position. This can be done by investing 
in more long term fixed rate deals, to maintain investment returns into the future, 
and by looking to restructuring debt to benefit from cheap interest rate payments.   

 
 Maturity Structure of Borrowing Indicator 
 
2.4.12 The maturity structure of the borrowing has also been set to achieve maximum 

flexibility with the Authority able to undertake all borrowing with a short maturity date 
or a long maturity date. Table 6 shows the current maturity structure of borrowing. 
 
Table 6: Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Maturity Structure of Borrowing £m 

Under 12 months 3 

12 months and within 24 months 14 

up to 5 years 43 

5 years and within 10 years 57 

10 years plus 170 

Total 287 

Page 25



3. REVENUES COLLECTION 
 
3.1. The following statement compares the amount collected for Council Tax in the 

period 1 April 2008 to 30 November 2008 with the amount collected in the same 
period in 2007/08. 

  Actual Actual 
  2008/09 2007/08 
  £ £ 
 Cash to Collect 119,235,255 114,684,077 
 Cash Collected 90,291,615 86,192,387 
 % Collected 75.7% 75.2% 
 
3.2. The following statement compares the amount collected for National Non-

Domestic Rates in the period 1 April 2008 to 30 November 2008 with the amount 
collected in the same period in 2007/08. 

 
  Actual Actual 
  2008/09 2007/08 
  £ £ 
 Total Collectable (including arrears)  67,074,730  60,690,845 
 Amount Outstanding    16,893,910  13,131,090 
 % Outstanding 25.19% 21.64% 
 Amount Collectable 2008/09 64,282,667 57,745,975 
 Net 2008/09 Cash Collected 48,846,201 45,974,106 
 % Collected 75.99% 79.61% 
 
3.3. The improved situation in Council Tax collection is due to the increased take up and 

prompt administration of Direct Debit and ongoing prompt recovery.  The reduction 
in collection rate in Business Rates from 2007/08 levels is mainly as a result of the 
new 100% level for empty property rate which accounts for approximately £5m of 
the increase in the amount collectable for 2008/09.  In addition the current economic 
climate and the recent creation of rates in respect of port occupations amounting to 
over £1m in respect of 2008/09 are also having an effect on collection.  Comparison 
with similar local authorities shows a similar drop in collection. 

 
3.4. The following statement provides information concerning collection of local taxes 

from 1 April 2008 to 30 November 2008. 
 
  Council Tax Business 
   Rates 
 Reminders/Final Notices 47,465 2,862 
 Summonses 15,149 1,081 
 Liability Orders 12,096 667 
 
 Recovery action in progress 
 Attachment of Earnings 1,184 - 
 Deduction from Income Support  4,229 - 
 Accounts to Bailiff 6,647 379 
 Pre-Committal Warning Letters 2,549 - 
 Committal Orders Issued 4 0 
 Debtors Committed 0 0 
 

Page 26



Current Status of Agent Work in respect of Committals for 1 April 2008 to 
30 November 2008. 
 

 Warrants of Arrest issued by Court (Bail and No Bail)  95 
 Warrants of Arrest (Bail) to Warrant officer  90 
 Warrants of Arrest (No Bail) to Warrant officer  39 
 Returned successful (Bail)   72 
 Returned successful (No Bail)   47 
 Returned other reasons (Bail)   5 
 Returned other reasons (No Bail)   0 
 
3.5. Insolvency cases to 30 November 2008 
 
 The following information concerns Council Tax recovery work which involves cases 

where Insolvency action or charging orders against properties are used. 
 

New cases from 1 April 2008 to 30 November 2008 
 
Bankruptcy 10 
Charging orders 12 
Winding up orders     0 
 324 
Status of Insolvency cases at 30 November 2008 
 

Winding-up paid 3 
Charging orders granted 30 
Winding up Order 1 
Supporting other petitions 3 
Cases paid 78 
Bankruptcy orders 94 
Cases closed 84 
Ongoing cases   31 
 324 

3.6. Fees and Charges 
 
3.6.1. The following budgets and income received relate to other sources of cash income 

generated by the Council:- 
 

 

2007/08 
Budget 

Income to 
30-Nov-07 

2008/09 
Budget 

Income to 
30-Nov-08 

i. School Meals £1,404,000 £744,113 £1,578,400 £992,655 

ii. Sports Centres £3,457,100 £2,100,952 £3,579,300 £2,007,643 

iii. Golf Courses £859,800 £641,545 £885,600 £598,377 

iv. Burials and Cremations £2,344,600 £1,263,922 £2,429,200 £1,397,029 

v. Building Control Fees £876,700 £497,100 £796,700 £417,400 

vi. Land Charges £464,600 £247,500 £470,100 £140,300 

vii. Car Park (Pay and Display) £2,591,500 £1,416,400 £2,424,200 £1,532,000 

viii. Car Park (Penalty Notices) £1,116,300 £690,000 £1,149,800 £636,800 

 
3.6.2. Further explanation on the above budgets and income collection performance is 

provided below: 
 

(i) Schools Meals:  Currently it is expected that the budgeted income will be 
achieved. 

 Page 27



(ii) Sports Centres:  Currently it is expected that the budgeted income will be 
achieved. 

 
(iii) Golf Courses:  Due to the adverse weather conditions over the summer it is 

predicted that there will be an adverse variance of £150,000 at the year end. 
 
(iv) Burials and Cremations:  Currently it is expected that the budgeted income 

will be achieved. 
 
(v) Building Control Fees: The 2008-09 Building Control Fees budget has been 

adjusted to reflect the 2007-08 shortfall. However, Income continues to 
decline and it is likely that there will be a significant deficit by the year end, 
possibly in the region of £200,000. 

 
(vi) Land Charges:  Land Charges income is declining and there is likely to be a 

deficit during 2008-2009.  Current predictions are in the region of £200,000.  
The housing market is continuing its downturn and new buyer enquiries have 
slipped.  A decline in the local housing market is a principal factor in the 
reduction in the number of local Land Charge searches being received. 

 
(vii) Car Parks Income (Pay and Display Tickets): Currently it is expected that the 

budgeted income will be achieved 
 
(viii) Car Park Income (Penalty Notices): Currently it is expected that the 

budgeted income will be achieved. 
 
3.6.3. Sundry Debtors 
  Actual Actual 
   2008/09 2007/08 
   
 Amount Billed in last 12 months as at 30.11.08 £78,951,400 £58,508,101 
 Total outstanding as at 30.11.08 £20,785,473 £21,189,137 
 Arrears at 30.11.08 £12,927,088 £13,323,013 
 Number of invoices in arrears at 30.11.08 12,376 11,291 
 Number of reminders 01.04.08 to 30.11.08 21,999 26,111 
 
 The increase in sums billed reflects the increase in Adult Social Services accounts 

now being issued.  However it is important to note that the total outstanding includes 
the sum still within the normal settlement period.  The arrears sum reflects debts 
over one month old and this has remained constant despite the overall increase in 
accounts. 

 

Page 28



4. HOUSING BENEFITS 
 
4.1. The following statement details the number of claimants in respect of benefit and 

the expenditure for Private Tenants and those in receipt of Council Tax Benefit up 
to 30 November 2008. 

  2008/09 2007/08 
 
 Number of Private Tenant recipients 26,638 25,760 
 Total rent allowance expenditure £69,227,673 
  
 Number under the Local Housing Allowance 3,567 - 
 scheme (included in the above) £5,749,551  
  
 Number of Council Tax Benefit recipients 35,217 34,790 
 Total Council Tax Benefit expenditure £26,310,273  
 
 Total expenditure on benefit to date £95,537,946 
 
4.2. The following statement provides information concerning the breakdown according 

to client type as at 30 November 2008. 
 
  Private Tenants Owner Occupiers 
 

Working age and in receipt of J.S.A. 13,562 1,706 
Elderly and in receipt of J.S.A. 7,021 5,540 
Working age and not receiving J.S.A. 4,119 798 
Elderly and not in receipt of J.S.A.   1,936   3,045 
Total  26,638 11,089 
 
There are 37,737 Benefit Recipients in Wirral as at 30 November 2008.  By 
comparison there were 37,266 at 30 September 2008. 

 
4.3. Housing Benefit Fraud and Enquiries 
  01.04.08-30.11.2008 

 

 New Cases referred to Fraud team in period 1,434 
 Cases where fraud found and action taken 89 
 Cases investigated, no fraud found 
     and recovery of overpayment may be sought 375 
 Cases under current investigation 205 
 Surveillance Operations Undertaken 0 
 

 Cases where fraud found and action taken; 
 Administration penalty 24 
 Caution issued and accepted 49 
 Successful prosecution 16 
 Summons issued for prosecution purposes 12 
 
4.4. Discretionary Housing Payments 
 
4.4.1 Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) may be awarded to provide short term 

financial assistance to Housing and Council Tax Benefit claimants who are 
experiencing difficulty meeting a shortfall in their rent or Council Tax because 
maximum benefit is not being paid. 

 Page 29



4.4.2 DHP is not a payment of Housing/Council Tax Benefit and is funded separately 
from the main scheme.  The Government contribution for 2008/09 is £266,185 with 
an overall limit of £665,462 which the Authority must not exceed.  To date I have 
paid £180,350 

 
5. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
6. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
12.1. None were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
13. RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1. That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
FNCE/7/09 

Page 30



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
FINANCE AND BEST VALUE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 JANUARY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
PROJECTED BUDGETS 2009-2011 
 
 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report presents the projected budgets for 2009-2011 to coincide with the 

period of the Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 (CSR). 
 
2. BUDGET 2008-09 
 
2.1. The summary budget for 2008-09 as agreed by the Council on 3 March 2008 

is as follows: 
 
    £m 
 Base Budget 302.6 
 
 Resources 
  Formula Grant 147.4 
  Area Based Grant 28.4 
  Council Tax 123.2 
  Collection Fund - 0.5 
  Use of Balances     4.1 
   302.6 
 
3. COMPREHENSIVE SPENDING REVIEW 
 
3.1. The Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) 2007, was announced on 9 

October 2007.  An initial report on the Pre Budget Statement by the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer including the CSR was presented to the Cabinet 
on 1 November 2007.  The Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) announced the three year provisional Local Government 
Finance settlement on 6 December 2007 and the final settlement on 24 
January 2008. 

 
3.2. The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement for 2009-10 was 

issued by the DCLG on 26 November 2008, with the details of specific grants 
to follow.  The provisional settlement restated the indicative figures included in 
the settlement issued on 24 January 2008 and was reported to Cabinet on 10 
December 2008. 

 
3.3. Consultation on the provisional settlement closed on 7 January 2009. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 31



4. VARIATIONS IDENTIFIED FOR 2009-2011 
 
4.1. Inflation –Provision is included for pay and prices at 2% and for income at 

3% for 2009-2011. 
 
4.2. Capital Financing – Cabinet on 10 December 2008 agreed the capital 

programme for 2009-2012 at an additional financing cost totalling £3.2m for 
2009-10 and £2.9m for 2010-11. 

 
4.3. Highways Maintenance – provision is included for the transfer of highways 

expenditure of £1.7m to the revenue budget from the capital budget. 
 
4.4. Waste Disposal – The waste disposal levy is projected to increase by 15.4% 

per annum. 
 
4.5. Pension Fund - The Pension Fund has been actuarially revalued as at 31 

March 2007.  The phased implementation of the revised contribution rates 
over three years was agreed by the Cabinet on 12 December 2007. 

 
4.6. Merseytravel – The Merseytravel levy is projected to increase by 4% per 

annum. 
 
4.7. Invest to Save Schemes – The Cabinet has agreed a number of invest to 

save schemes which will reduce expenditure by £0.9m in 2009-10 and by a 
further £0.4m in 2010-11. 

 
4.8. Private Finance Initiative – Increase in PFI payments of £0.4m in 2009-10 

and a further £1m in 2010-11 as the PFI reserve reduces. 
 
4.9. Benefits Subsidy – The Department for Work and Pensions has announced 

that benefits subsidy will be reduced by 3% per annum in real terms, 5% per 
annum in cash for certain elements of the subsidy, a reduction of £0.7m per 
annum. 

 
4.10 Local Area Agreement – Options for the use of the Reward Grant, the 

revenue element of which is estimated at £1.9m for each of 2009-10 and 
2010-11 were agreed by the LAA Board on 19 November 2008 with £1.4m 
being used to support the budget. 

 
4.11. Energy – The increased cost of fuel and energy has been estimated at £9m 

in 2009-10 as reported to Cabinet on 9 July 2008. 
 
4.12. Foster Care Fees - Cabinet on 4 September 2008 agreed to an increase in 

foster care payments of £0.5m for 2009-10. 
 
4.13. Technical Services - Cabinet on 10 December 2008 agreed to increased 

requirements for 2009-10 totalling £0.7m. 
 
4.14. Other Unavoidable Growth – A number of relatively minor items of 

unavoidable growth of less than £0.2m will arise.  These should total less than 
£1m. 

Page 32



5. OTHER DEVELOPMENTS 
 
5.1. There are a number of other developments which are likely to impact on the 

financial position of the Authority over the period 2009 to 2011.  The impact of 
these issues will be reported to the Cabinet as and when they are resolved.  
Some of the potentially most important issues are:- 

 
 (a) Implementation of Local Housing Allowance from 1 April 2008 which 

was reported to Cabinet on 12 December 2007. 
 
 (b) Revised Local Government Pension Scheme introduced from 1 April 

2008. 
 
 (c) Review of the calculation of the Minimum Revenue Provision which 

was reported to Cabinet on 16 April 2008. 
 
 (d) Review of the Local Authority Business Growth Incentive Scheme.  A 

consultation paper on a revised scheme to commence in 2009 was 
reported to the Cabinet on 29 November 2007.  A further consultation 
paper has been received which if implemented could result in a grant of 
£0.2m in 2009-10 and £0.5m in 2010-11. 

 
 (e) Replacement of Planning Delivery Grant with the Housing and 

Planning Delivery Grant which was reported to Cabinet on 25 
September 2008. 

 
 (f) Review of Supporting People Grant to be undertaken in 2009 with the 

grant to be absorbed into the Area Based Grant from 2010-11. 
 
 (g) Implementation of supplementary business rates which was reported to 

Cabinet on 29 November 2007. 
 
 (h) Review of the Area Cost Adjustment. 
 
 (i) Review of the population statistics to include the effects of recent 

migration, which was reported to the Cabinet on 16 April 2008. 
 
 (j) Review of the funding of social care with proposals to be released in 

2009. 
 
 (k) Transfer from the PCT of responsibility for the commissioning of social 

care for adults with learning disabilities from 2009-10.  Agreement with 
the PCT on the scale of the transfer had to be reached by 1 December 
2008.  The PCT has reported that the transfer should be £6m. 

 
 (l) Transfer of the responsibilities of the Learning and Skills Council to 

Local Authorities from 2010. 
 
 (m) Introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy in October 2009. 
 
 (n) Implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards from 

2010 which will increase leasing costs. 

Page 33



 
 
6. BALANCES 
 
6.1. The balances for 2008-09 have been set at £5m but the Audit Commission 

has restated its view that balances should be a minimum of 2% of the net 
revenue budget which for Wirral would be £6m. 

 
6.2. The financial out-turn for 2007-08 was reported to Cabinet on 26 June 2008 

indicating a net underspending fo £1.6m, and additional late grant notifications 
totalling £0.6m. 

 
6.3. Increased energy and fuel costs for 2008-09 estimated to total £3.5m were 

reported to Cabinet on 9 July 2008. 
 
6.4. The Insurance Fund annual report was presented to Cabinet on 9 July 2008 

incorporating a transfer of £3.0m from the Insurance Fund to the General 
Fund. 

 
6.5. The receipt of additional Local Authority Business Growth Incentive grant 

totalling £1.3m was reported to Cabinet on 23 July 2008. 
 
6.6. Cabinet on 4 September 2008 agreed a projected overspending of £3.5m in 

2008-09 on Adult Social Services, of which £0.8m will continue into 2009-10.  
Cabinet on 16 October 2008 agreed to bring forward the closure of Feltree 
House thus reducing the projected overspending in 2008-09 by £0.2m and in 
2009-10 by £0.5m.  The Director of Adult Social Services has reported to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees that the projected overspending is likely to 
exceed this figure but this has yet to be reported to the Cabinet. 

 
6.7. There is a projected overspending of £0.8m on Regeneration. 
 
6.8. Following the Audit of the Accounts for 2007-08 the capitalisation of highways 

improvements has been reduced from £3.7m to £1.5m in 2008-09 as reported 
to Cabinet on 16 October 2008. 

 
6.9. Cabinet on 6 November 2008 agreed to fund the following improvement 

teams from the Efficiency Investment Budget in 2008-09. 
 
   £000 
 Procurement and Creditors 1,022 
 Change 635 
 Customer Services Development 183 
 Adult Social Services Reform     360 
   2,200 
 
 In 2009-10 the cost of the Adult Social Services Reform Team will increase to 

£518,000.  Funding of these teams from the Efficiency Investment Budget will 
allow the original funding to be added to balances. 

Page 34



 
6.10. Cabinet on 10 December 2008 agreed to transfer reserves and provisions 

totalling £360,000 into the General Fund balances, £230,000 of which is to 
offset the projected overspending in Regeneration. 

 
6.11.   £m 
 Balances as at 1 April 2008 5.0 
 Out-turn 2007-08 1.6 
 Additional Grants 0.6 
 Insurance Fund 3.0 
 Energy and Fuel - 3.5 
 LABGI 1.3 
 Adult Social Services - 3.3 
 Regeneration -0.6 
 Highways Improvements - 2.0 
 Improvement Teams 2.2 
 Reserves and Provisions 0.1 
   4.4 
 
7. EFFICIENCY REQUIREMENTS 
 
7.1. The gap between projected expenditure and anticipated resources will need 

to be bridged by a combination of savings and/or increased Council Tax. 
 
7.2. Cabinet on 13 March 2008 agreed the following efficiency targets for 2009-11 

but reserved the right to vary these targets during the year. 
 

Department Target 
2009-10 

Target 
2010-11 

 £000 £000 

Adult Social Services  4,620  3,780 

Children and Young People  2,350  1,920 

Corporate Services  710  580 

Finance  740  600 

Regeneration  3,060  2,500 

Technical Services  1,620  1,320 

  13,100  10,700 

 
7.3. The efficiencies agreed in preparing the budget for 2008-09 included £0.9m in 

Adult Social Services which will become effective from 2009-10. 
 
7.4. Cabinet on 16 October 2008 agreed a number of efficiencies:- 
 
  £m 
 Children Residential Care 0.7 
 ERIC Service 0.5 
 Housing and Council Tax Benefit 0.6 
 Treasury Management 0.5 
 General Efficiencies 0.6 
  2.9 

Page 35



 
7.5. Cabinet on 6 November 2008 agreed a number of efficiencies:- 
 
  £m 
 Supported Living 1.0 
 Reform Care Grant 1.5 
 Corporate Procurement Contracts 1.5 
 General Efficiencies 0.5 
  4.5 
 
7.6. Cabinet on 27 November 2008 agreed general efficiency proposals totalling 

£1.0m. 
 
7.7. Cabinet on 10 December 2008 agreed a number of efficiencies:- 
 
  £m 
 Nursing Home Fees 1.0 
 General Efficiencies 0.3 
  1.3 
 
7.8. I am assuming an annual Council Tax increase of 4%. 
 
7.9. The Minister for Local Government has confirmed that the Council Tax 

capping limit will remain at 5%. 
 
8. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. The projected budgets for 2009 to 2011 are compiled from the base budget 

for 2008-09 approved by Council on 3 March 2008, the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2009-2012 agreed by the Cabinet on 23 July 2008, and 
updated for the issues outlined in this report.  The projected budgets are 
shown in the Appendix. 

 
9. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
10. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising form this report. 
 
11. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
12. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
13. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. There are none arising from this report. 

Page 36



 
14. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
15. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
16. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
16.1. Comprehensive Spending Review – Treasury – October 2007 
 Medium Term Financial Strategy – 2009-2012 – July 2008 
 Provisional Formula Grant Settlement 2009-10 –DCLG –November 2008 
 Estimates 2008-09 – March 2008 
 
17. RECOMMENDATION 
 
17.1. That the projected budgets continue to be reported to the Cabinet in line with 

the agreed financial and performance management timetable. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FNCE/297/08 
 

Page 37



APPENDIX 1 
WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 
PROJECTED BUDGETS 2009-2011 

 
 2009-2010 2010-2011 

 £m £m 

Base Budget  299.6  311.9 
Increased Requirements   
Pay Inflation  3.4  3.3 
Price Inflation  3.6  3.6 
Capital Financing  3.2  2.9 
Highways  1.7  - 
Waste Disposal  2.2  2.5 
Pension Fund Revaluation  0.5  0.5 
Merseytravel  1.0  1.0 
Private Finance Initiative  0.4  1.0 
Benefits Subsidy  0.7  0.7 
Energy and Fuel  9.0  - 
Foster Care  0.5  - 
Technical Services  0.7  - 
Area Based Grant  2.7  - 0.4 
Supporting People  -  10.3 
Unavoidable Growth  1.0  1.0 
Efficiency Investment Fund     2.9      2.9 
  333.1  341.3 
Reduced Requirements 
Income Inflation 

 
 -1.0 

 
 -1.0 

Invest To Save  - 0.9  - 0.4 
LABGI  - 0.2  - 0.3 
Children Residential Care  - 0.7  - 
ERIC Service  - 0.5  - 
Housing & Council Tax Benefit  - 0.6  - 
Treasury Management  - 0.5  - 
General Efficiencies    - 3.3  - 0.2 
Supported Living  -1.0  -0.3 
Reform Care Grant  -1.5  - 
Corporate Procurement 
      Contracts 

 
 - 1.5 

 
 - 

Nursing Home Fees  - 1.0  - 
LAA Reward Grant    - 1.4  - 
Forecast Expenditure  319.0  339.1 
Balances       1.6           - 
  320.6  339.1 
Resources   
Formula Grant  152.7  157.9 
Area Based Grant  31.1  41.0 
Council Tax  123.2  128.1 
  _____  _____ 
Forecast Resources  307.0  327.0 
   
Shortfall  13.6  12.1 
Council Tax Increase  4.9  5.1 
Efficiencies required  8.7  7.0 

Page 38



 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



���������	
����
�
����
�
�
�
���
�������������
�
�����
����
�������������	
����
�

��
�
������
����������
�����
�
���
���	������
�
��� � ����	
�����	������
�
����� ����� ��� �	
������ �

�
�� ��� 

��
��� �������
�� ��
�������� ��
� �
�
� �

�
	��	�� �	�

��

��
�������
��

��
��	�
������
����	���� �	��
���

�	����
������	���
���

������
�
�������	���
���
��
��
����	��	�������
���
����
�

�
	�
�� !�"
��
��

��

�
��� ���������
�
#���� ��
� ���	� �	���
	�
� ��	��	�
�� ��� �
� ��
� 
��	����� ��������	�� ��
� ��	�	�����

�

���

�� �����	� ��
� ������� 
��	���� ���
� 

�

������	�� ��� 	����	��� �	�� ������
�
�
��������
�����������������
���
�����	�	�������
$
�����	��	�
���

�
#����� ��

����
	
����
����
�����
%

����	���
��
	����	�	�������	��
�
	���
��	�������

����� �	�� �	�
���
	��� ����� 

����
�� �������	��� �	���
� �	�� �� 

���
�� 	

�� ��
�
�
���
�
����

���	���&��
�

���
�����������	���
���	$�	���
���
���������
�����

��$� '#� ������	� ��� �	�
���
	��� ����� �	� (�
��	���� ��	$� ��������� ��


� 

���	��

�

������������������������������
�

���


���

�
#���#� ��
� ��


	�)� �	�� �
�*
��
�)� ��
��� 
��	����� �������	� ��� �����	�� �������	���

�

���

�� ���	� ���� ���� 

��� �	� ��
� ��	�	����� �
���
� ����� ����������	�� ��
� ��
�
�
���

�� ��� ��
���

��� (	�
���
	�� "�
��
��)���*�
� �	�
���
	�� ���
�
�� �	�� ��
�
+
�&
�
���	��� �	�������
�� ,�� ����� ��
� �
�
����	�� ��	$�� ����� ��
� ��
���	�� ���	��

��	�����

�
	���	�����
��	������
��
��
�	���������	����	�
���
	�������

����

�
#��� � ,���	��� ����� ���$�
��	�� ��
����	���� ��	��	�
�� ��� �

$� ������	���	� �
��

��� �	�

����
��	�� ��
� �
��
���
�� �
�� ���� �	� ��
� ��
��
��
� ���	� ������� 

���	���	�� ��
�
��������	���
�������	���	����
���	�)��������	�
��
	�
)���
���
$�
��	
����
��
�����

�
#�#�� ��
��������	���
����	��

��
���	���
��
��

����	��
���

�	����
��
��
���
���	�����	��

��
���	�	������	��
��$�����
���������
��

��
���������	�����
��
��
	�����
�
���	���
�
���
	���
�����
��	�

��		�	���
�*
�����

��

�
	����
���

��	� ��
�
���
������	��
�

� �	� ����
� ��� 
	���
� ��
�� ��� �
� ����
�
�� ��
�	�� ��
� �
�
�� (	� �

��� ��� ��
�
�����
��	���	������
������	)��������
��

�
	�����
���
���
)�������

��	���
�
���

�
#� �� ��
� $
�� ����
�� ���������
�� �	�� 

���
�	�� ��� �
� ���

��
�� �	� ��
� ��
������	��

�

�����

���
-��

�� ��	��	��	���
�
����
	�������
��

��	��������	���
	��.�

�� ���
�

������	������
�	���

�������$
�����

������

	.�

�� �
�
����
	���	������
�
	�����	������
���
��
�������
��

��
�.�

�� ��	��
�
	�� ��� ��
� ���
	����� ��

��
	��� �	� #!!/0!1� �����	� ,����� "������
"

���
�)������

	�2�3��	���
���
��	��4
�
	

����	.�

�� �
�����	�����
	���
���
��
���	�������
����	��������
����
�#!!10�!��

Agenda Item 6

Page 41



�
��� �������
�����
��
����������
���
�
 ��� 5	�� �6�
���#!!/)�����	
����


����
����	���7����
��
��
����	��������
����
��

������
������	�8�������

��
���

�����	��
�������

��)�
	����	�����������	���
��
�	�� �
���
� ��� ��
��
� �	�� ����
�
� ��
�
� ����� ���
	����7� ������ �
� ����
�
��� ��
�
�����	� �
�� ���
� ��
�
� ��*
����
�)� �	�� ��
	����
�� 
�
�
	� ���
����
� �
��
���
�� ��
�
���
��
�
	���	���
��
�
���
����

�
 �#� ����� �
����	� �	����
�� 	�

����
� �	�� �

��
��	�
� �	������
�� �	� ��
� �
��
���
�� ��
�

���
��
�
	�� �

��� ��
� #!!/0!1�� ��
� 	�

����
� �	����
�� ��
� �
��

��� ���
� ���
���
)������
	�
��

���	�	���	����
��

����
��
�
	�������
������
�
����

�
������ �� !"��#$%&'�(()�((�
�

�%$*%�((�+, �-�
��

�����	��	�
�������$
���
�����
��

����	�

����	����
�	���

����(	���������
9
	
����:(9;��	��<�	
���

	��������	����&��
�

)�

������	���	���
�
��
	
����
�
��������
��

	�	
���
�����
��
���	�=���"

$

��,�����	�
�������	����
��
���

���>��	�����?
�
����
	���	��"$�������
�	

����� :�>?";)� ��
����� ��
�
��
$�	�� ��

��� �
��
���
� ���� ���������	
�� ��������� ��� �����
�� ��
$�
���
�
���
��	����
��	�	���	�
������
	���	���	
��������
���


���
��
���
���
��
� 

���� ���� �
��
���
� ���� ����
�
�� ���

����
� ������
�� ������ �	����
�
�����
��	�� �)!�@� ��
$�
��� 

���
	��� �
�����

��7�� ����� �
�
��
�� �����	���
��
�	���
������
	���(������������
�
���
��
%�
	���
���
�	

�������
$�	�������$�	��


�


��� ��� ���

� �
��	������	�� �	�����	�� 4
����


�� "������ <�	���
��)� �
���
��
��

��
�����	��6

�
����
�A�

��	��4
���
���������������������

	�
	��	�
�����
��
����	��������������	�
����������
����
���	���
$��
	��
�	������
��
�����
�����
����������	
���

	����	��(	���������9
	
����

����
	����

�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
��
���


	���������
��	������������	������
�������
��
��	��	
������
	���	���
�
BC� �	�� ����� ��� 
%�
��
�� ��� �
�� ��
�
� ��

� ��
� 	
%�� ��
��
���	���)� ����� =",�
�

	����	���

���
���	������
���
�	����	�����

��
��
�>?"���	��	�
������

����
	�
������

	�
	������
����
���	��
�����	������	��	��
��
���
$�	��+
������
�����A�	��	����
�#!!10�!��	��#!�!0����	�����
���	�

	�
�������
��

��
�������������	�����	������������	�����

����������	�	�����
����
���
4
�

��� ���������	������� ����
	�
� ���
��������� 

��
��� �����

��D�� <����� ,

��
,�


�
	�)� ��� ��� ����
��	�� ��� 	��
� ����� ��
� ��
$�
��	
��� ��
�
�� ��� �	� ��

����
�����
	��	�� ��
�
���	��������
�
�
	���

������
	��	����
������
�
��	����������
���	������� ���
��
�
	����
�
��������
��������
�������E��

	�
	��5����
� �	���
�


�

������������	���

�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
��

��� ����� ��	��	�
� ��� �����
�� 
��	��������� �	�����
� 

���
	��� ��� ���
� �	���

������
	������
�����������
��	�����	

���
� 

���
	��������

� �	�
������
	��
�������
������
�	��������������	���	��������
����
����

��
	������
������
���
$
��
���������� ��
�
��	��������	��
	����

�����	��	�
�������
$���
�	�����������
�	

��
���� 

���	����� ��� �
�
���� 
������
	�� �	�� �$����� ������)� �	�����	�� �
�
����	�� ��
�������

����


�
	�����������	�����
	�
������

	�
	���	����
���
$�	����

���
�
��
���
��������	��	�
�����
���
�����

���	�������������
������	�
���	���	
������
���	���� �	�� �	�
���
	�� ��
��
�����


���
��
���
�����

��� ��� ��
��

� ���
���	�� ����

Page 42




	���
�
	�� ����� 
�����

�� ��� 
	��

� ��
�� �
	
���� �
��� ��
� 
�	�
� ��� �����
��
�

���
�����


�����������

�
������ �)"%�,(���)2�%3%/(��
�

�%$*%�((�+, �-�
��

��� ��	��	�
�� ��� �����
�� 
	�

�
��
��
����� ��
����� ��
���

����F��
��
���
�
�	����
���


	��<,,���

������
�
������
��

	�����
�
���	��

��������
�	���

�
���	
������	
������
����	������
��������

��������	���

����	����

���
��
���	����
����
���	���
�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
��
���


	�� �
�	�����	��� ��	��	�� ��
�	
������	
������
��� ��	���
�� �	�6�
���#!!1�
�	����

������	���� �����
$�	�� ����
�������� ��
�+�
���
���?
�
����
	��,�
	���
:+�?,;� � ���
	��

� ������	�� ����

���������� �	���

��� ��� �	� ��	
������ ��
�+����	���
9���	
��� "����
�� "������������	� �
��
���
� :9""�;� �	�� ����� ��
� ��������
��
��	�
�������
�4
���	���?
�
����
	��,�
	����
��

��������������������
���
���	��������������	
��
�������

�	����,��

����


��
�	�������
�� ��
�����	
���������
� �����

���
��	�� ��
�9""�� ��������
������	
���
�
���������������
����������
	���
���


	��
��	������������	��
�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
�
� ��	��	�
� ��� ��
$� ����� ��
� +�?,� ��� 
	��

���

��� ����� ����
� ��� 

���	���
�
��
���
����������
������	
��
���	���

�������
����
�

������� �)"%�,(��'�4�'(�$1�%�"5"'/)*�
�

�%$*%�((�+, �-��

4
�����	��
��
����
�=����G�"
��
��

����
��	�

��
������
��	��H�I������������	�
�	�

��
� �	� ��
� ����� ���
�

� : 1�/@I;)� �
���
���� ��
� ��� ����� ��
�
	� ����
�
��		��
���

��
����
��
����
�
�����@)!!!� 

���
	��������

	������
�
���	������ ��
	����
��
�����

���
	����

�

����

�
��
���
������

�����	���	��
�����	���

��������
�
����
��
�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
�����	��	�
���� �	�

��
���
���������	��	���
�

��
���	����	����	���
������
��� �	�
�

��������������$
��
�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�

6�����5�����	���

�����	��������
�
���
�������
���=�	��
��G�6�
���#!!1)�����������
�
�������	�

��
��
�
������

�����	���(	��������	��	���


��

�����	��

�
�����
���

�
����
��	�
����
���	����	�������	���

������
	���
��
���
�����������

����
�����
�
�����	��������
�
���+
��3
�
�

,��������������$
�����
��	�+��
��

�#!!/������
	������

�������������

���������

�
��
�������� ��
� ��
����.� ��
�
� �

��� ��	� ��
	� �
� ��
�
�
�� ����� ��
������
�������	������	�

��
���
���������	���

,� ��	��	�����������

	����� �	����4,����������
���������	������	���������	�
���
�� �	� 
�������	� �	�� ���

	
��� ���	�� ��
���������	� �����

�� ��� 

���
�
��	����	����	��
�
����	���	�

��
�

�����	��
��
���
�

Page 43



����6�� �� !"��2.���$!)"/'0(�",%7$)�1$$23%/)2�
�
� �%$*%�((�+, �-�

��
�(	�
���
	���	�>	

���>�����
	����
��
���
���	��	�
�����

���
�
������	�)�
�
��

�������

��
�
���������	
���	�"
��
��

��
5	� ��
�#J�"
��
��

�#!!/�����	
�����
��
�� ��
��

����	���� ��
�"�����	��������
B	��� �����	� ��
� ?
��
��
	�� ��� <��)� &�4�� �	�� ,��
�� 6�	��
�
	�� ��� ���
��
�

	

��� 
�����
	��� �	�� ��� ��
$� ����� 9���	
��
�� �	�� ��
� �����	���� ��� 
���
�
���

	
��������
��
�
	��	

�����

���
���

��7����
��	������
�	�)������$
������	�
��� 

���
� ��
��	� 
������	�� �	�� ��� ���	� ��� ��� ��
� �4
�� �����	���� ��
��	�


������	��
��
���
��
,���
����
���	���
�����
�

��
�)���
�������
��
�
����
	�������
�"�����	��������B	���
��� ��
� 
���������
	�� ��� �� ������
� ���	�
� 5����

� �	�� �� "�����	�������� :�

�;�
<�����	�5����

�� ,� 

��
�� ��� ��
�>������
	�� �	��,����	��
	����������

� ����
�

	��
���
�����
��

��������
��
�������	����=���?
��
�����	�����
�

��
�������
�
����
��

�
	�
�������
��������

��	� �?
�
��

�#!!/��
����>	

���,��

	
��������

�����
��

	�

�
���
���	���

�	����	��������������
��
� 
	

��� ����	��� �
����
� ��� �������,	� 
	��
�	�
	���� ���

	
��� ����

�
�������	�:����
����
������;������

	��
����
���	�������


	�����
�	��
���
������
��
������
����	�����
�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
>	

������������
�
��
	����	�����	������

���
��������
��
���	�����	���

���$
������
�����
��	����%�������	����	��������
����	���7���		����
%�
	����

��,���
�
���
�����
��
������
���7��
	

�����	�������	����������	���

���
���
(�� ��� ������ ����� ��
� ������
� ���	�
� �	�� �4
�� �����

�� �

� �����	�
�� �	�� ��
�
"�����	��������B	��� �
�����������	���� ����
��������
������	� ��
�	
���
��
��
	���
��
�
� ���� 	
�� ������ �

� $
�� ��� �
��

���	�� +(� �/J)� �	�
� ��
� "�����	��������
:�4
�;� <�����	� 5����

� ���� �

	� �����	�
�� �
� ����� �
� ���
� ��� �����
�
� ��
�
�
�
����
	�� ��� ��
� ��

��� �4
�� �
����
� �	�� �
����
� ��
� ���
�
� �	�� �5#�

������	�

������	��	�������
����
������
���
������
��� 
	��

� �	�

��
�� ���

	
��� ��� ����� �
��
���� ���	���� ���	���� ������ �	��
��	��

����
������
����	�����
�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
��
� "�
��
���� ,��
�� 4
��
�� ����� ��	���

� 
	

��� ��	�

�����	� ��� �� $
��
��	���

����	� ��
�	�� ��
� ��


	�� 

��
�� ��� ���� ��
� ���	���7�� ������	��� �	�� �����
��$
����
��
���
�

����
	�����	����
,�����
� 
	

��� ��
�
�� ��� �
�	�� ��	����
������� ���	���� ������ ��� �
�� �� ���
��	
�
����

���������7���	�

���	��	�����
	

���

������	��
��������
>	

���"���	���

$������ ��$
�����
� G���+��
��

)������ K� 
�
	��� ��
���� ��
�
���	���� ��
� 
�����

��� ��
�
�� ���� �

	� �
�� ��
� 

�
����
	�� ���  !� 
	

���
�������	���
�����
����������
��
��	������	���
,����
�������
���
$������
�+����	�����?
���
����	���
$�	��E
���)��������	����
��
��
���
�	

����

��������	����
���

��	����

�����
�	

�����+&"��
���)������
��	�
�� *��	������

��������	������

	��
����
���
��	�� ��
� ��
�
����	���	
��
�����	� ��
����	���7��������
����	�
�"�
��
������,��

	
��)�>	

��)��
�	���
��
�	��,��������	����
� *��	�� ���	�������� ��$
�����
� �	�+��
��

�#!!/� ��� ���	���
�
�����>	

���"���	���

$��
�

����8�� �� !"��)!+7�%�$1�3�$3'��&/''� �$%�(�%/$!('5�/)9!%� �/)�%$, �,""/ �)2(��
�

Page 44



� �%$*%�((�+, �-�
+���

������
���
�$���
���
��

��������	*�

����	��	�
�����������(	���
���������
�

�
�� ����
������ ������ �������	� ��� 9
�	�� ,����
	��� ���	� #� F

�� ���� ��$
	� ����
��
4
���������������������	�����
�������KHI�����
��

���

�



����
�	
�����
�
�
����� ��
�����	��
��#!������

�� ������ ��������������

��

����	���
���

���	��
/1I� ��� �
��

�� �������� ����� ��
� ���
�
� ������� �
� �
����
�� �	� ���

� �

��� ���
��

����
�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
+
�� �������	�� 	

�� ��� �
� ��
	����
�� �	�� ��


�� �	� �
�

� ��� 
���� ���� ��
� 9
�	��
,����
	������	�#�F

���������	��
�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
��
�	

�� ��	��	�
� ��� ��
$� ����
��� ��� ��	���
� �
��

��� ��� ����� �
��
���� ��
�
���
��
�
	����
��
$�	�� �	���
�	

���������� ��
������
�����
�������?
�	$�?
���	���������	������
�
�����
�
	�
����

���
�	
%�����
�

��	��
�������	��
��
���
�������	���������
����� ��	��	�
� �	�����	�� E�� E������� �	�� H���

�� >��� 4���� "��
��� 5����

�� �

�
��	��	�������
���

�	��4����"��
���>�������	��	��
���
���	�����������������
����
��
�9�
������ �,�	
��"�������4����"��
����������	� ���
	���
��
������

	� ���
���$�����������������
�����
�
	�
���	���
�+
��3
�
��
(	��������	��	��	�����

��	���	�� �	���
����
����������	� �	���
�	

���������� ��
�
�����
���
�	����
���	������5����

��
�

����:�� �%$+$2��*%�,2�%�/) �3�) �)"��,) �".$/"��
�
�%$*%�((�+, �-�
�
��

��� ����� ���
�

� ����	��� ��	�� $
�� �

��
��	�
� �	������
�� ��� ���	�����	����
���
��
�����	� ��
����
��

���� ����� �
�
)� �	���
������
� ���
��	
����������
	����
"����� ���
� ��$
	� 

���	��������� ��
� ��
� �

��	��������	� ��
	��� �	�� ���
� �

	�
����
�
	��	�� ���	�
�� �	�� �
�����	�� ��
�
� �
	
���� ��
�������� ����� �

����� �����
����

����
���	��	����
����
���������	����
��
��������
����
��

���
���

���
,� �
����
�� �
�*
��� ��	��
�
	�� �
���������� ���� 
	��

�� ����� ���	�
�� �


�
�
���


�� ��� �
����	
�� ����� 
������ ������� �	�� 
��$� ���
���
	�)� �	��
��
���	��
>�������� (������ ,��
���
	��� ��� ��
� �
�*
����� ��
� (?
,� 

��
�� ��� &
�����

�
�����	���
�� 

��
�
�� L��
����	���7����
�	

������������

������� ��� ��
�	���	��
����

������
���
	�
����*��	����
$�	�M���
"�
����

�� �	�
���
	�� ��� ?,""� 2� �
���
�� ��

� �
���� ��� �
�
���� 
�
��� �	�
�	�

�
	���	� 	
���
$� 2� �� 
�	�
� ��� L�
�	�����	��� ��

� �

���
�M�� ��
� &��
�
,��
���
	�� �	�� 4
���
�
	�� �
��� ��� 	��� �	� ����
� �	�� ��� 
��
���	�� ��
�


���
�
	��
�������
���� ��
�����
� 
�	�
�����
����

� �

���
�������� ���
	��

��
���
��� �
�	��

�� �
��� ��������� ��

� �	�� ��


� ���
��
���
)� 	
�� ��������� �	���
��
�
� �

���
�� ������ ������� ��
� 	

�� ��
� �
��	��
�� ��

�� ��


� ��� �� ��
�	��

���
	�
� ���
��
��	��
���	�� ���
��
�� ������
�� �
����
���
����� ���
� ��
��
��
�
��

���
���
�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
��
� ?
��
��
	�� ���� ����
	�
�� ����*�
� 

��
����

� ��� �
�	���
�� ������� ��

�
�	����	��	�
��������
����	�����	����	�	������

���

���
�����
�	�� ��
� 	
�� �	��
�����	� 

���

�� ��
� �� 	���

� ��� ��
� 	
�� �

��
��	�
�
�	������
���	���
�	

������������
����������

	��������
	�
���
�	��������

�����
�

Page 45



�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
��
� ����
� 

����	�� �����
�	

������

��
��	�
� �	������
�� ����
�	�� 

����
�������


���������
�������
���
�	

�������
$�	���������
������
,���


��
�
���
��
��������

	������
��������

�����	�	������

���

�)��������
�
>�����
	������	� :9���
��"�����������	�"�
��
��;���	���

�����?
��
��
	���� �
�
�)�
��	$
�������
��
�	���
�����	������	�
��
��
���
�9��
���
,���


�	���
������
���
�=��	��"�
��
����+

������
���
	�������

	�
��������
��
���������������
��
�*
�����	��

������	�
�����
�="+,�����
��������
�����
���������
���

��� ����
�����
���������	�� �	������	)��������
������ ��
�
���
��������������
��
���	�����
�
	�	������������
�)��
	�����
����)����

��
���
��	����


���
?,""�����������	�

��$
	�����
���
����
��

������
���


��BC���
�������
��
>�����

�� ��
� ��


�)� ������ ����� �
��	��
��
� ��
� ?
��
��
	�7�� �����
�
�	����
�
	�� �	� �
���	�� �������
� �
�����
� ���	��
��� �	������� ���
������ 
	���
��
�
���

� ������ 
�����

�� ��� �������� � (�� ��� �	�
	�
�� ����� ����� �
�
����
	�� ����� �
�
��
$
�� ��� �� �����	������	� ��� ���� ������ ������ ��
�
� 
������ ��� ��


7�� ���� ��
�
�
+��
��

��������������������� �	���
	��
�

��
�
�����	������
�������


7��4������
?����	�?
�
��

�#!!/��
��
$� �	� 
�
��� �	�

�
	���	� ��	��	�
�� ��� �
� �
��
����
�� ��
� 
%����
� ��
�
�
�
����
	�������
�"���
����	��������
���	����������
���	���

��7��?
�
	����
�����������
$�	���������

�"

���
��>�����
	���?
���

���
��
���
��
C
�� ������ ��
� ��
� ����	����	��������� �
� ��
� ��
��

��
�
����
	����� �	�
�
��
��
�������	����
$����

���
�����������	���
������
��
������	�����������

�
��	����
�����
�������
���

���(	�
�
��
��"

���
���
��
���
�:�("�;��
�

������� �,/(�� $4�%,''� � !",2/$),'� ,22,/)+�)2;� 3,%2/"!',%'5� '$#�%� ,"./�4/)*� 5$!)*�
3�$3'��
�
�%$*%�((�+, �-��
,��C
��"���
���<
�
���#N��	�� N��

��
��	�
����������������	�������������	�����
�


����� ��� ��
$� �	�

��$
	� ������

��
� ���
���
	��� �	� �
�

� ��� 
	��

� ����� ��
��

� ����
��
� �
	����
$� ���� 
��������
��� � ,� �
	�

� ���� ��� ����

	�� ���
C"������� ��� �	� ��	
������ ��
� 	����	��� �

	�� ���� ��
� ������� �������	������ �
���
�
��
�


��	�
���
�����

����
���

��7��������������	
������
���

���������
��
,�� C
�� "���
� #� �����
�
� ����� ��
� ���� �������� ��� 	��� ��������
�� � ��
� ��


	��
�������	���������������
��

��������

	����
�����
�
��HN���
������	������
���,������
��
� �	������
�� �

� ����
� A����

� A������ �
���� :AA�;� �
�
�� 9)� ����� ��

����
�

��
��	�
��	�>	������
������
	�������
�A����

�A�������
����:AA�;��
�
��?��	��
�����	�����	�����
��
�
	����
�������	��������*
�����
��
������

����C
��"���
� �����
�����
�
��
����
������
����	�����	���

�
	���
����
�������� ����� 

�
��
�� �	�����
�
� ����� ��
� �	
� �
� ��

� ���*
����� �
������	���
�	�������	�� �

� ������
� ��	��	�
� ����

��
���
��

� ���	� ��
�	����	��� ����

�� ����
�

��
��	�
� �	�#!!/�����
���

� 

���	
����������
��
���
��������������
� 

�
	��
�		��	�
�
	�����������
��
������	����C
��"���
� �",������������������	�����
�
��
���

� �
��

��� ��
���� ����� C
��"���
� �	����
���� �
��	��
�� �������� �	�
��
�����

��
,�� C
�� "���
� H���

��� ������� ���
� ����
�
�� ��

� J!I� :J!�HI;� ��
� ���
�E�">�
���*
�������,O����
��
�)� �	�����	��>	�������	��6������5�

���)�@@I��������
	���
���
�����
�
��J�,O����
��
���������������
���
�AA���
�
��9��,��,��
�
����


�����
�

	������	�����	�����
��
�
	���	���
��

�
	���
��������������	�	��,G���
��
�)�
�
���@ �KI��	�#!!K����@K�@I��	�#!!/����
�,�

��
����	��"��

��

�����
	������
������	�

��
���

Page 46



����� 

��
�� ��� ���$
�����

� �����

	)� ��


� ��	��	�
�� ��� �
� �� ���
� ���
������ �	�
�

��
��	�
-�

�� ,��C
��"���
�#� ��
�� �

)� 

��
����
��)� # )� �K� �	������

�
	���
����	���
�
������
���

�����

��
���
�>	�����)�6������	��"��
	�
.�

�� ,��C
��"���
� )���
�������


�JK)�HH��	��H1��

�
	���
����	����

�� ,��C
��"���
�H)��
������	�������

���	�����
�������!I���������

	�����
�
��
JN�,O����
��
���	�����	��>	�������	�������������

�����/I��	�#!!K��	��
J!�HI���
�������

��������

	��J�I�����
�
��JN�,O�E��
��
�������

�����
@/I��	�#!!K��	��1/I���
�������

��������

	�

�� A�
��

��	������������
��

��
��	�
����<��$
��,��

������

	)����	��������
�
�
��AA��������	������
����
������� ����
�	���	�

��$
� ����

���
��

�
<,�� ����������
� ��
� �
��

��� ��
�� ������� ���
� ��	
� 
�
	� ������� ��
�
��

����������
���

����

��	�#!!/����	�#!!K��

�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
(��
���	����
�������
����
�6������������C
��"���
��������
����
��
�����
+����	���"�
��
��
����
�������
���
�
��"
���	��E����	�
�
%�
�������������������
��
��
�
��� ��� AA��?)� �	�� "(��� �	���

��� ���
� 
	���
�� ����� �������� ��� ��
�� �
��
��
�
��� ������

����
��
���
�������
����	��� ���AA��?�� ���
�E��

	�
	�����������
�
����
�������	
���������������
�>	�������	��6����)��������
��������
	��
�	�������
���	��
����	���������*
�����

����
��
���������	
�������
��


�����������
������
	�
�����	�

���	����
��
���
���	�����������������$
�����
�
�
����
��

�����
������
�C
��"���
���
(��
���	����
��
��$�	���	����	���
�	����� ��
��
��

������<��$
��,��

������

	)�
���	��AA�������������
��
�������
	��

������<,������
�
���
�
����
	����)���$�	���	���
�����	�� �
��
� �����	�
	��� (	� �������	� ���
���	�� ��
� �

��
��	�
� ��� +����	���
�����
	�
������������������
�������
�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
��

��)�����������������

������������
���
�)��������
�������
�����
�
��	���
�C" �
��
$�	�� ����
��	�������������
���	
������� 
���
	�
� ��� ��
�"���

��	��4
��
��
�������

�� � ��


� �����

	� ���
� ���	�����	�� ��
�����	�� �	� ��
��

��
��	�
����
�	��������������������C
��"���
� �:�
�
��JN;�������������	

�������
��	����
���
��
������	�
	����� ���$
�����

� �����

	� ���
%���	
���	��	� �	����������������	��
��
����� �����
�� ����� ������ ���
��� �

��
��	�
� �

� ��$
	� �	��� �����	�)� ����� ���
�
�
��������
	��	�
���?
���	��
���
���

����
�<��$
��,��

������

	��

��	�����
��
"����������
��

	����
	��	��������	���'J!!��

������� ��
����� ��
�
�����
��� ���
��������	���
$���������
��<��$
��,��

������

	��
�

������� �,1�'5�%� !"��2.��)!+7�%�$1�'$$&� �,12�%�"./' %�)�
�

�%$*%�((�+, �-�
��
� 	���

� ��� �����

	����� �

� ���$
�� ���

� ��� ��
� �
�
� 
	�� :6�
��� #!!1;� ���
��
�
�
�����

���
����8<����(	�"
��
��

�#!!/���
��������	�����	�����
���
�
������
@!/��
�
� 
%�
��� ��� 

�
��
� �
��

	� #J!� G�  !!� 

�


���� 
���� ��	��.� ��
�
� �

�


��
������
����

���
����
���
�
����������K�I������
�
�

�


����������
��

������	�
�	������ ���
���
	�� :+(� @/;�� ,� ����� �

�
	���
� ��� ��
$� �
��

���	�� ��� �	� �	������
���
���
	��G���	��
���������
���
�$	���������	����
	����

�

����"��������

�G�
�	�� ��� �	�������
������������	�

���	��	����� �
��

��� ��
� 

�


���� � (	�"
��
��

�
#!!/���
��������	�����	�����
���
�
������J � I��

Page 47



5�
���
�
��������

���
���
�	���

����

�
���

�


�����
���#@I�������
�
)����# I�
�
��
�����<���	���

����� 

�
��� 

�


�������	���
�� �������

��
�����
��

���
� ���
������ �	�� �
��

��� 

���	�
�� ��� G� ��� 
���
	�
�� ����� ��

������� �

� �
����	��
���
��
���
������

)��	���

�
	��������

	��	��������
���
�	������$��	���

�����	��
���
��"��
�

�
���

�


�����������������
����
��
���
)���	�
������������������
��
�

� 	��� 

���	�	�� ��
	� �		
�
���
���.� �	�� �
���
� 

��
	� ��� �

$� �
��� ��
	�

%�

�
	��	����
��

�����������
���(	�"
��
��

�#!!/���
��������	�����	�����
���
�
��
����#JI��
5�
� ��
�
�� ��� ��� ��$
� ��

� :+(� J1;� K#I� �
� ��

� �	������ ���
���
	��� �

�
�����
�
�������	� K���
$�	�� ����)� �	�� :+(�@!;� /!I��
���

� ��

� ���
���
	���
�

������
�
�������	� J���
$�	�������� (	�"
��
��

�#!!/��

��������	�����	���
��
�
���
�
�������+(J1�@/�#I�+(@!�@!I��
�����

�����������������	
������
�)��
�������
%�
���������
��
��

	��@!�G��K!�
�����

	�������
����������
��
����	����	��9
����
�����
��	�����
��������
��

	��!�G�
�JI���������

	����*
�����������	����
��

	��	���
���4��

��������:+(�@J;����
�
��
�
�� ��� ������
�@I��
� �
��)������

	��������
��
��
������
����*
��� �����������
�
��
����	����	���
�	����
��
�
)��������
��

	����*
�����������	���
������
�
���
�
��

� :+(� @H;�� (	� "
��
��

� #!!/� ��
� �������	� ����	��� ��
� ��
�
�� ���� � � +(@J�
�@�#I�+(@H�#�/I��
�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
"��
��� 

����	�� ��
� 	���

�� ��� 	��� ������ �
����	�� �����

	� �
����	�� ���$
��
���

���
	���������

���

������

����
�
�	

���G���)���


������
�

�����
��������
	���

�� ��� �����

	� ���� �
���
� ���$
�� ���

)� ���
�

� ��
� �
	���� ��� ���
�
�����

	� 

���	� ���$
�� ���

� ��� 

���
�)� ��� ���
��
���
� ���	�)� ������ �	����
�
�����
�)��

������	�����
����
5	� �� �
��� ������ �
� ����� �
� ��
	�����	�� �����

	� ����
� ���	�� 	

�� ��� �
�

%�
���
����������
����
�
�

��
	����
.�

���
���
���

�5
�

������
���

����
���
����	�� ��� ���
� �
� ��� ����
�
� �

��	
	�
� ��
����� �������	� �
� "�
�����
E��
���	��������


�������
��	����������
�����
�
������
���	�$	��	������

	7��
	

����
�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
?
�
����	�� �� ��	����
	�� ���
����� �	�� ��
�
� �	�

���	��	�� ������ ��
	� ���
��	�
	
��� ���
� ��	�


	�
� ������ �� ������	�

���	��	�� �����
	� ��
� �
�
�� ���
��	�

	� ������ �� ������ �	�� 0� �
� ������� ��

�	��� �� ������ �
��
����	� ���	�� �
�����
��	�
	�	�� ��� ���
� ��	�


	�
�� ��� 
���
	�
� ��� �����

	� �	�� ������
�� 	��� �
�	��
����$� �	� �����)� �
� 
%�

�
	��	�� �
���� �	�
� �� �
�����	� ������
� ����� ��
� �
�
�� ���
��	�

	�������������������
���	�


	�
���������
���	�
	
�����
>�����
����������	���

����������

	������

����*
������"
����	�#!�:�����

	�,���
�1/1;��	��

��
����
�
���
������	�
����
�������
�<
����E��
$

��	���
��
������
��
	�������
��

���

	�0���

��
��

���
%

����	���40��
�������������
��������
�
��
�����	�������

�	�
�
	����
��
���
�
��������

���
���
�	���

���������

	�����
���������

	��������!������
�

	�����#!!1������������ �	����
���	���

����	�������������

	7�����	���	����
������
�
��������)�������	���	�����
������

	����*
�������	��	�

�����

��
�

��	������	��
������
)��	�� ����
������

	�����
���������

	��� ��
��� ��	���

������� ���
�G� ���
�
�

��	
� ��
��

� ��


� ��� 
���
	�
� ����� ��
�� ����� �
� ���
��� �����
�
�� �	� ��
�
�����	���� ����� 	�� �
�

� ��� ���)� �
� �� ���

�����	� �
�

�� ����� ����� 

���

� ��
�
�

�
	�����	��������
���	��
���
	�
�������
�)����
���	����	�����
���
	���	��
�	��������
�

Page 48



����<�� �+3%$4��2.��!(��$1�2.���$!)"/'0(�',) �,) �,((�2(�
�

�%$*%�((�+, �-�
��
��
�	����
�� ��������������
� ��
����	���7��"�
��
����,��
��4
��
�� �	� ��
� ����

�
���
� 	��� �

	� ��


��� ,� ��
$�	�� �
���� ��� �
	��
� ��	��

�� ���� �

	�

��������
������	�

��$
��
�
	��

�����
��

��
��������
����	���7�������������	��
���
���� ���
�
�

��
����

�	��������
�
��	��������
�

��
�
���������	
��� ���
�
"�
��
����?
�
����
	�����	���
�<
���

��	�������
���"

���
��������������
��
��
��������
�

��	��������
���$
	���
��
�������
�������
�"�
��
����,��
��4
��
���

�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�
4����	
����	�
	�	�
��	��	
�
���
�� ��
����
��� 

���
����� ��
����	���7��������	��
����$� 

���	�� �������� ��


� ��� �� �
��
���
� ��� ���		
�� �

�
	�����
�
���	�
	�	�
� �	�����
.����
�

)����
	� ��
���
������	��������	��� ��� ��� �	
������
�
������	��

�

	��
���
��������
�

�
������	���	���		
��

��
�����	���	���
��

� >	

������������
� 
��
	����	�����	���� �	� ��
� ����� �
�
�����	�����	�����	���� ��� ��
�
���	���7���		����
%�
	����

�����
���,���
�
��
���
���	������
����	���7��
	

���
��������������	���

���
���

�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
,� ����� 

��
�� ��� ��
� ���	���7�� �����
� �	�� ����	���
����
� ������	��� :�	�����	��
A�������
��6�	��
�
	�� �

�	�
�
	��;� ��� �	�

���� ����� �� ��
�� �������	�� ��� ��
�����

�	���

����������	����	����%���F�	������
���
���	
����
��
� 

���	�	�� ,

�� 

��
��� ���
� ����
	�
�� �	�� �

� �
�	�� 
%�
���
�� ���

	��

���
�,��
��4
��
���
��

��
���	���9�
��������
���������
?��������	�� �

� �	�

���� ����� ��
� ���� �	�� ��
� �����
� :�	�� ���

� ���
	�����
��������	������	��
���
���
���
�	

�;� ���
%���

�����
��	���
�� ��
����

����
����
���
����
(	��������	�����	
��

��
����

��
�	���

��

���	-�

�� ,	������
��	����$�������	�
	�	�
�:���
��

�������	������	����	;�

�� ,��
������������	������	������	��
�
	���	����	

������������������
���

�� ,��
������������	����
������������
�
��������%�,2��,�(!(2,/),7'��,) �(2,7'��7! *�2;�3%$4/ /)*�4,'!��1$%�+$)�5�
�

�%$*%�((�+, �-�
��
����	����9���
����
�#!!/0!1�������


���	�6�
����	�����������
�
�������
�
��J�������

�����
�
	������
�	��������	���
��
��
� 

����
� ��	�	�������	���
�	�������
�����
����������
�����
	����� ��

��
	���
�	���	�

��
��8�	
����7� 

���
�
�����
���

��
	��	������
���
���� �	�,�����"������
"

���
�����

��
�
���������	
���	�"
��
��

��
��
� ,		���� >�����
	��� "���
�
	�� #!!K0!/� 

��
�
�� ��� ����	
�� �	� =�	
� ����
�������
����)��	������
��
	���)���


�����E��

	�
	���	�=�����
,� 

��
�� ��� ��
� ����� ��
	��	�� �

��� ��� ��
	����
�� ��� ��
� ,����� ���������	�
8��
	���
����
�7�����

��
�
���������	
���	�"
��
��

�#J��

� ��
� ?�

���
� ��� A�	�	�
� �
����
�� 

����
� �����
�� �	� ��
� �
�*
��
�� 9���
��
�������	��������	
���	���������������
�
�����

����
�������	��
��

	�����	
���	��
���
�� 5����

�� ��� ���
��� ��
� ����������	�� �	�� ���

��� ��
� ���� �
��

	� ��$
���
��
	���	��

���
�
���

�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�

Page 49



��� ���

��� ��
� ��
	����
�� �

��� ��� ��

��
	��	�� �	� #!!/0!1� ��� 
	��

� ��

����
��
	��

���	�������	���
�

���
�
����������
��
���

��
�����E��

	�
	����
�����
�
�
	����	�

��
������+(��K1��:��
�	
������
����
�	���	�������

�
���	�����	�;��
�����


���������	���
��	�������
�����
����
�#!!10�!����6�
����!�#!!1��
�
�$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�
��
�?�

���
����,�����"������"

���
������
�����	��

����
������
���������	
���	�
�
��

����	����������	����
��
��
��
	��������
���
���
��������	� 	��� 

�
��
�� �
��	�� ��
� 

��
��	�� ��� +(� �K1� �	�� �� �
�*
����	� ��
�
#!!/0!1����

���

���	�5����

��
��
��
�*
��
��9���
���������	� ��� 

����
��� 

��
�
�� �������	
������� �	�
���
	�0�
����	���
�����	���
�	����$
	������
����
��
���
����
���
�

��������+3%$4��2.���$!)"/'0(�7! *�2/)*�3%$"�((�2$�1!''5�%�1'�"2�/2(�3%/$%/2/�(�
�

�%$*%�((�+, �-�
��
�#!!/0!1����	����9���
�� 

�������	� �	����
��

�


	�
�� ��)��	�� ��	$��
�� ��)�
��
����	�����
��
���
���
,	�>�����
	���(	�
���
	��A�	�����'J� �������	������

��
�������
�������
�#!!/0!1�
����
���������
��

�����	����
������
���
�����

��
�
���
��
����	���� ��
��
��
�� �	�����	�� ��
�������

�,��
���"�
��
��)�6
������

��
A�	�	����� "�
��
��)� (��"�
��
��� �	��4��$�"�
��
����


� 

���
�� �	� ��	
������ ��
�
��


����
��
��
����	��	����
	����
��
���������	
���	�# �=�����
(	�"
��
��

�����	
�� 

�����
�
������� ��
���
��
��
����	��
��
���
�� ��
�#!!/0!1�


���	������
��
��
���
����
�#!!10�!��
��
�����
���
��
��������

	���
��

�

��	
���	��

������ ��
� �	��
�����	���������
6
��

���	��5����

�����
�

����
������
�����
��

��

����
�����	�����������	�
��
�$
�����	�
���

�
�.,''�)*�(�%�+,/)/)*-�

� ��
� �

�
	�� ��	�	����� ������
� ��� �
�	��	�� �������	��� �

���

�� �	� ��
� ��������
�
���	���� 

���
�
���	�� ��
��
���

����� ��
�������	����*
����
����� ��
���
��
��
�
���	���������	$�������
��
���	�������������	���
��	�������
�����
����
�#!!10�!��

�
� �$#�#�0%��+,&/)*�1!%2.�%�/+3%$4�+�)2(-�

��
�>�����
	���(	�
���
	��A�	�������������
���
� �	�������
�������

���

�

���
�
��
����
���

�����

��
	
������	������	�
����	���
��
��
�����

��������
����	���������������
��	��	�
������
�������
�����
���
���	���
��
����
,	�� ���������	�� ��
� �	�

��
�� 

���
�
�)� �	�����	�� �
��� ��
� �������� �	�� (��
�
��
���
�� 

���

� �� 9���	
��� ���
� ������ ��� �
����
�� ����
����

��	�� ��
�
��


���
��
���
���

Page 50



�
 �H� ����� �������	�� �
����	� ������ ��
� �

��
��	�
� �	������
�� �	�� $
�� �
�*
���� ��
� ��
�

�
��
������
����
��
�
	���

���#!!/0!1���
�
��6��� �� !"���$%&'�(()�((�
�

�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

(���
�
	�����	������
�A����>������
	��
�	��"$��������	�

��
��
��
�"

���
�� E4>>+� �

�
��6��� �)"%�,(���)2�%3%/(��
�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	�
��
�
��

?�

����	����
�
��
��

��


����
�
,����	�

<5�,<�
H�#/�

+���

����
	
��
����	
���
���
������
�����
�
��
��
�����
��

���9�F��
�
9���	
���
<�	$��	���

���
����
���

��
���������
���
�����
�
��	������	��

#@#�� #@#�� �@!�� �K��� ,��

�� �
��

����������
�
��	���
��
�	�������
����
�
�

��
��	�
�
��

���
������
���
�

�


���	��
����
�
�	�

��
��
�
��	����
���
�
�

���
���

�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

(���
�
	�����	������
�>	�

�
��
�
"�
��
���

��
��
��
�"

���
�� E4>>+�

��

����
��	��
���
�����
�
	�����	����
�����)�����

���	����	��

���	���

	�

�
��
��
�
����
	���	��
����	
��������
����
��
��
��

��
��
��
�"

���
�� E4>>+� ��

�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	���
�
��
?�

����	����

�
��
��
��


����
�,����	�

+(�
�J#�

��
$�	����
�
�
���
��	��������
��
$��
	
�����

�K�KHI�
:<��

����
9
��

;��

�K�# I�� �K�/HI�� �K�# I�� E


	�� 	0��� ��

+(�
�J �

��
$�	����
�
�
���
�������	��
���������
$�
�
	
������	���
�
��
���
�

��
��	��
	
������
������
:�+A;��

 J�##�
:<��

����
9
��

;��

 J�!K��  J�##��  J�!K�� E


	�� 	0��� ��

Page 51



��6��� �)"%�,(��'�4�'(�$1�%�"5"'/)*�
�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	���
�
��
?�

����	����

�
��
��
��


����
�,����	�

+(�
�1��

4
�������
����
�����
����
��

�
����
�����

@ @�
:<��

����
9
��

;��

@!!��  �J�� #/K� J�� ,��

�� 	0���

E


	�����
�2�

�����	�����
���

��	����

�

�������
�
�����	�������	���
��

�
�

��
��	���
��

����	�

%�
��
����

+(�
�1#�

�

�
	���
�
�������
�����
����
��
	��
��
�

��
)�


�����	���	��
��������	��

 HI��  JI��  @I�� H!�J!I��
5�

�
�

��
��	���

	0���

��
���

��

��
��	�
���	�
�
�
%����	
�����
�	
%�
��
���������

�����	��
��
��������	���	����������
�
�	�������
���
���	���
�	�

��
��	��


	�����
��,��
����)�	����


����
������	����


���

�������
��������
��*������
��
�
�
	��
��

������(�������������������
�
�

���
�������������
������	�
�	�

��
��������
�����I��	�
��
� HI���
�
���

���
*���������
��,���
��

�
���
���
	��������
����
����
P ���

�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

(	�

��
���
���������	��	����

	��
�
�

$�������
����	����
�
�

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+� �

�
����
�����
���	��������	��	�������
��
�������
����

���

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+�

��

>	���
��
�

�����	���	����	��������	�
�����	�����������
��

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+� ��

�
��6�6� �� !"��2.��"$!)"/'0(�",%7$)�1$$23%/)2��

�
��


��

�	���

��
��	�
��	������
�����

��
����
�������
��
�����

�����P#��
�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

��	��	�
���
�>	

���>�����
	���
(	�
���
	���
��
���
�

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+�

�

?
�
�����	������
�
	����

����4
��
�	�������
��

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+�

�

�
����
���?
�
���

7��E���
���
�
"�����	���
�?
�
����
	��

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+�

��

?
�
����
	�����"�����	��������B	���
�����	���

������	����

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+� ��

�

Page 52



�
��6�8� �� !"��)!+7�%�$1�3�$3'��&/''� �$%�(�%/$!('5�/)9!%� �/)�%$, �,""/ �)2(�
�
��


��

�	���

��
��	�
��	������
�����

��
����
�������
��
�����

�����P#��
�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

?
�
�����	�������
������
���

�
����
���
���
�������	)��
��	�	����	������������

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+�

�

(���
�
	��
	��	


�	���
���

�����
���
��
�
�����

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+�

�

��
$������6

�
����
������
�������
�
,����
	��4
������	���
�	

��������
���
��
�
�������
����

�
��	�����"

���
�� E4>>+� ��

�
��6�:� �%$+$2��*%�,2�%�/) �3�) �)"��,) �".$/"��

�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	���
�
��
?�

����	����

�
��
��
��


����
�,����	�

+(�
� !�

"��������

�
���
	���


�
���	��"
���
?�

��
��
"����
��
:?�

���
����
	���
�	��(	���������
9���
��;�

 ##� �� #H��� #JJ�#�� �JJ�@�� 4
��� 	0���

��
�?�

�������
	���
�
��������	��	��	�����
��	���
���
���$
�������
?�

�������
	����	��

%���
�	��

���	������
�
���
��

�����	��	������

	�

��	����	�
��


�
	����
���?�

���
����
	���"������	�����
��
�
���

�

���������
	�
�
�
%���

���	��
�

����

����	��
��
�

���
�
��
���,�6�	���
�	��
E
�������
��������
��
�������
��$���	��
�
	��
�����	����	���	���

��
�	�����	�������������
A
���,�
���#!!1���
4
���
�
�,��������	�
"���
��:4,";�������
��	�
����
��	��(	���������
9���
���������
��	�
�����	���
��������

+(�
� J�

��


��


�
���	��
	

���
���
���
	��
�
�

��
���	��
����
������
��


7��
�

���
)��
�
�����
��	��
�	��
�����	�

�/�!I�� �/I�� �!�!I�� # �@ I��
5�

�
�

��
��	���

	0���

�

��
��	�
���
������
	
��	����	����	������
�
����
%�

�
����
�
���
����

�
	���6�	�����
��	���
�	�����
�

��
��	�
������
��	��	�
)��	��
��	���

����	�������
�
���
����

�

�����
�
���
�����
�������
�<,,�


��
����

+(�
� @�

�
���
�
�����
�
�����
���
�
�	�
�
	�
	����
��
������������
�

���
��:����
������;�

#�/J�/!�� #�/J�/!�� #�@��� # #@�HH�� ,��

�� 	0���

��


	������

�
�

��
��	���	��
��


����
������	����	���


���

������

�
	���
��
�
���������
�


�

��
�������	���
�
	
��?
��
��
	����
���	���

Page 53



+(�
�H@�

,�����������
�
�
	�	��
����������
���	�

������
	���

/� I�� /I�� @�!I��  �JI�� 4
��� 	0���

��
�	
%�����
�

�:P ;�
�����������	��	�

��
�
��
�����
���
�
�����
��	����
�=59"�
:=��	����5�

����	��
9�

�

��
������
"���
��;��
��
���
�
�	��
	�

�	����
�*����
��
$
���
�

�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

>	���
�
	���	��

����
�
	�� ,�����"������"

���
�� E4>>+�

�

��


��"�
��
��� ,�����"������"

���
�� E4>>+�

�

,��
����	�����
���
	���

�	�
�
	��� ,�����"������"

���
�� ,69>4�
��
�
����
����
���	�����	��
�������
�
	�����	�
�����
��
���
����

���

�
�����	���	�
�
	�
	�
� ,�����"������"

���
�� E4>>+�

�

?
�
����"
���?�

��
��"����
���

���
�� ,�����"������"

���
�� ,69>4�

,����	����	��	�����
��	��
��	���
�	���
�����
���,�
���
#!!/�

���
�
����������	�
����
��������
��	�����
��	��
�	�������������
����	�
�����	���
������C
��
�
�
	��
����

��	��������	���
	�����

(���
�
	����
�"�
��
����A
��
��
$���
�
&
������	���
���
�	��

,�����"������"

���
�� ,�����	��"������

�

=��	��"�
��
����+

���,��
���
	�� ,�����"������"

���
�� E4>>+� ��

�
��6��� �,/(��$4�%,''�� !",2/$),'�,22,/)+�)2;�3,%2/"!',%'5�'$#�%�,"./�4/)*�5$!)*�3�$3'��
�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	���
�
��
?�

����	����

�
��
��
��


����
�,����	�

+(�
K#�

,���
�
�
	���������
����K/�
���	�����
������
�>�
���3
�
��
A��	�����	�"���
����������
����
@��	�
���������
�����
���	�
�

��	���"�������	��>�����	���
?
�
����
	���	��
�����	������	)�<�	����
��	��
<��

����

JHI�� H/� I�� JH�!I�� H/� I�� 4
��� �
��

�
������	��O��

+(�
K �

,���
�
�
	������
�
��H��
�
����
��	������>	�������	��
6��������C
��"���
�#�

�� KHI�� �� KHI�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
KH�

,���
�
�
	������
�
��J��
�
����
��	������>	�������	��
6��������C
��"���
� �

�� K!�KI�� �� K!�KI�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
KJ�

,���
�
�
	�����J��
���

�,O��
���
��
�����E�">��
�

������
	���	�����	��>	������
�	��6�����

J#I�� H1�1I�� J#�!I�� H1�1I�� E


	�� �
��

�
������	��O��

+(�
/ �

,���
�
�
	�����<
�
��J��
�
����
��	�"��
	�
����C
��"���
�
 �

K@I�� K � I�� K@�!I�� K � I�� E


	�� 	0��� �
������	��O��

Page 54



�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	���
�
��
?�

����	����

�
��
��
��


����
�,����	�

+(�
/K�

"
��	��
����������

����
	��
���
	�
�
��
�

�
:<��

����
9
��

;��

J�KI�� �� J�KI�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
1#�

+�

���	����
������
��

	���
�
���
�������
��	��#!I��	���
�
>�
���3
�
��A��	�����	�"���
�
�
����
��	����
�

���

 ��JI�
:<��

����
9
��

;��

 #�!I��  ��JI��  #�!I�� E


	�� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
1 �

�
��

����	����#��
�
����	�
>	�������
��

	�C
��"���
���
�	��C
��"���
�#�

�� / �JI�� �� / �JI�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
1H�

�
��

����	����#��
�
����	�
6������
��

	�C
��"���
���
�	��C
��"���
�#�

�� K@�1I�� �� K@�1I�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
1J�

�
��

����	����#��
�
����	�
>	�������
��

	�C
��"���
�#�
�	��C
��"���
� �

�� #1�1I�� �� #1�1I�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
1@�

�
��

����	����#��
�
����	�
6������
��

	�C
��"���
�#�
�	��C
��"���
� �

�� J1�1�� �� J1�1�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
1K�

�
��

����	����#��
�
����	�
>	�������
��

	�C
��"���
� �
�	��C
��"���
�H�

�� J/I�� �� J/I�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
1/�

�
��

����	����#��
�
����	�
6������
��

	�C
��"���
� �
�	��C
��"���
�H�

�� ##��I�� �� ##��I�� �� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
11�

<��$
�����

������

	�

����	��
�
�
��H��	�>	���������C
��"���
�
#�

@!I�� @��JI�� @!�!I�� @��JI�� E


	�� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
�!!�

<��$
�����

������

	�

����	��
�
�
��H��	����������C
��"���
�#�

@#�JI�� @��JI�� @#�JI�� @��JI�� E


	�� 	0��� �
������	��O��

+(�
�!��

<��$
�����

������

	����
���	��
J�,O���E�">��:�
�
������
	�;�
���C
��"���
�H�:�	�����	��
>	�������	�������;�

� �JI�� �!� I�� � �JI�� �!� I�� 4
��� 	0���

�
������	��0B	�
�������
������
�
�����	�
	��������$
��
���

������

	����

%���	
���	��	�
�	����������������	��
��
����������
�������
���������
���
�

��
��	�
��

���$
	�
�	��������	�)���������
�
�
��������
	��	�
��
?
���	��
���
���

��
��
�<��$
��,��

�
�����

	��

��	�����
��
"����������
��

	�
���
	��	��������	���
'J!!��

���������
�����
��
�
�����
�������������
�	���
$���������
��
<��$
��,��

������

	���

O,��������
���������
������	�
	������

��������
�

�
��
���	�=�	��
���

Page 55



�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

�
�*
������	��������
���
������	�
	��
������


����

������
��������
�
�
	���

�����

	�2�3��	��
�
���
� E4>>+� �

"�
��
��
��(	�

�
	���	��
�*
����
�����

	�2�3��	��
�
���
� E4>>+�

�

>	��

���


��

�	�����������	�5���
��
���
��
�
��

�����

	�2�3��	��
�
���
� ,69>4�

(	�

�
	���	��	�������
��
�
����
�������
��	
��������
�	������
��
���

?
�
������
�	�
�����	�

�
	���	�
��
��
��
�����������
���	�

����
��	��
�	���	�

������	�	���������

�����

	�2�3��	��
�
���
� E4>>+�

�

�
�
�������

�����	��	��

��������
��������
�
	�	���
��
���
���

�����

	�2�3��	��
�
���
� E4>>+� ��

�
��6��� �,1�'5�%� !"��2.��)!+7�%�$1�'$$&� �,12�%�"./' %�)�
�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	���
�
��
?�

����	����

�
��
��
��


����
�,����	�

+(�
@��

���
��	
������
����
�
	������
���$
�����

�
�����

	���
�
�������	�
�������	���	�
��
	����
�����	�
�������
�������
��������
�
����
����
�
�������	�

@/�!�� @/�!�� J!�!�� J!�!�� E


	�� 	0��� ��

+(�
@#�

"������������
����
�
	������
���$
�����

�
�����

	-�
	���

����
����
�
	����

��I�
:<��

����
9
��

;��

� �!I�� ��I�� � �#I�� 4
��� �
��

�
����
���
	����
�������
���	���
���
����������
���
�������
�������
�
�
����
���

�������
�
�
���
	������	����������2�
�

��
�	��
%�
��������	��
�����������
������
��
��
���	���
�
���


	��
����
�
	������

�
	��
��
������	���� 


�
�

���
�����������

����
� �#I������������	���
�
5A"�>?�Q�

��E���Q�
���
��
����

+(�
@ �

"������������
����
�
	������
���$
�����

�
�����

	-��
	����
�������
�
	��

@ �!�� @J�J�� @ �!�� @J�J�� E


	�� �
��

��

+(�
@/�

�

�
	���
����


�


�������
�����

	D���������
��

����	���	����
�	������
���
���
	��

K�I�� K��!I�� K��!I�� J � I�� 4
��� �
��

,�

��
����������


��
��	���
�����
�����
�

	��	�

��$
	��,�
�
�������
����	�������
����

��
��	�
�����	���
�������
�
������
�	��
�

��

����	������	�
�
�

������

�����
���
��
	���������
���,����


���������������
$�������
�	�������
���������

�
����

���	����
���
��
�
	��������
����
����

�

Page 56



=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

�
�
�*
������	�������
���

���
���
�
	���

�������$
�����

������

	�
�

�����

	�2�3��	��
�
���
�

E4>>+�
�

�

�
��6�<� �+3%$4��2.��"$!)"/'0(�!(��$1�',) �,((�2(��
�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�#�
��
�
��

P��
�

�#�
,������

5	���
�
��
?�

����	����

�
��
��
��


����
�,����	�

<5�,<�
@#KJ�

��
�	���

����
��
$�	��
����0������������
��
�������$	
���
���
	�
�

/�J�� ��!�!!� �� ��!�#��
�+����
�
��
�
����
�P#� �

?
����
����
$�����
�	��
�	�

��$
	������
?
��
��
	����	��������������

	��

��������
�����

����
��$
��������	��	�
���
���	��
���

	��

�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

B	�

��$
���"�
��
����,��
��4
��
���
<��)�&4�2�,��
��
6�	��
�
	��

E4>>+� �

?
���

��	������
�
	����
��
���
�
��
��
���

<��)�&4�2�,��
��
6�	��
�
	��

E4>>+� �

�
��6������%�,2��,�(!(2,/),7'��7! *�2;�3%$4/ /)*�4,'!��1$%�+$)�5�

�
��


��

�	���

��
��	�
��	������
�����

��
����
�������
��
�����

�����P#��
�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

,�


�������
�����������������	���
)�
�	����������
	����
��

���
�
����
�
��
��

��
�
����	�����	����"

���
���

A�	�	�
� E4>>+� �

��	���	�
%�
	����

������	���


��
����
����	���
����
��

���
�����
��


�����	��
�����

A�	�	�
� ,69>4�

���
	�����?,""���

��
	��
���' �@��

��
�
�����
����	
���	�H���"
��
��

��
A�
��

�

��
�����+��
��

�
����	
��

4
��
�������
����
���������
	��

��
�
�
����
���
��

���
������������

��
����
�����$�	���	�����
�	

��������
�
�����	����

A�	�	�
� E4>>+� �

(���
�
	����
��
���

�
	����
��
������

	��

�������

���
���	���������

�
�����

��
��	����������	��
�����
	���)�
�	���������	���
���)��	���
�	

�����
��������

���

A�	�	�
� ,69>4�

A�
��

����
��
�
	����	�
�����	������	��	�����
�
��	����	��

���$�	������
�
��
��
��
����	��
�

����


�	��
�
��
��
��

���	��

	��

�������	����
���

�
�
��
��
����

�
�����
	�����
��
��
���

���������
����	�
����	�����	���	��
�����	�
�������������
	������	��
����������

���
��

��������
���	�����
��
���	����
���	���
���
�����		

)�������	����
�
��
�
�
�������
���	��
��


����
������	��

�

Page 57



=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

(���
�
	����


�����	�
��
��
���
�
�������	����
�����	�
)���	�	�����
����
��)�������

����
����	��(��
�
�
����
	���

A�	�	�
�
,�,(�(+E�"�,�B"�

�
9B��4>?�:�,4�;�

����	
����


��# �=�������
�
�������

��

�����
���
�
����
�
	�����	������
�&4�
"���
���"���
	�
����
����
	�	����
���	�
�������	��
�
�
��
��
	���B����
����
����	
���	�#K�+��
��

��

>%�

�����

	�
	�����	��
�����
�
&����	���	�����	������%��
	
������	��
���	������%�����
����	���

A�	�	�
� E4>>+� �

?
���

�	����
�����

��
��
<��)�&4�2�,��
��
6�	��
�
	��

E4>>+� �

�
��6�����+3%$4/)*�2.��"$!)"/'0(�7! *�2/)*�3%$"�((�2$�1!''5�%�1'�"2�/2(�3%/$%/2/�(��

�
��


��

�	���

��
��	�
��	������
�����

��
����
�������
��
�����

�����P#��

�

=�5��%$9�"2� ��, ���3,%2+�)2�
>!,%2�%���(2,2!(�

?*%��);�,+7�%�$%�%� �
@�(���7�'$#A�

�$%%�"2/4��,"2/$)���
?,+7�%�$%�%� �$)'5A�

4
��
�����
�����������	�������
��
��
���
��
�	���
���
��
��
����	��	���
�6
�����
�

��A�	�	��������	��	����
��
��
�

���		�	���
��
��
���

A�	�	�
� E4>>+� �

�

Page 58



�
��8� �$%3$%,2���',)���%1$%+,)"���!++,%5���
�
 �J��� ��
����
����
�����������
���

�������	�����������	���
�����$
���

��
��	�
��	������
��

�	���
�*
���������	���
����	���7��#!!/0!1���
��
��
����	������
��
��	�����
�

��
�

�

�,4��$!%�/) /",2$%(�./2�2.�/%�2,%*�2(B�
�

,�����	��

?���

�#I

E


	

#KI

5�

�

�

��
��	�

�KI

,��



�#I

4
�

�JI

��
�
��	���

�
�

�KI

�
�
�
�

�,4��$!%�/) /",2$%(�/+3%$4� �$)�2./(�3$/)2�
',(2�5�,%B�

�

(��
��
�

#!I

"���
����
�

���


 I

,�����	��

?���

�#I
+���

���������


@!I

?
�

��
��
�

JI

�

�%��$!%�3%$9�"2(�$)�2,%*�2B�

E


	

/�I

,��



�@I

,�����	��

"�����

 I

�

�7(�)"�� ,2,�

!

#

H

@

/

�!

�#

P� P# P PH
��%/$ 



$
�$
1�
�
,
5
(

#!!K0!/ #!!/0!1 #!!/0!1���
�
� A�

����
�

�

.��*%,3.�,7$4��(.$#(�,7(�)"��1$%�����C�<�"$+3,%� �
#/2.�����C����
.��2,%*�2�1$%�����C�<�/(���8� ,5(�,) �2.��
�) �$1�5�,%�1$%�",(2�/(������ ,5(��>��D���(.$#(�,�
 �2�%/$%,2/$)�"$+3,%� �#/2.�2.��(,+��3�%/$ �/)�
����C����

�

Page 59



�
 �@�� �

��
��	�
�>%�
����	���
�
� ����� �
����	� �	����
�� ���� ��
��
��
� ���	� �	������
�� ������ �

� 

�� ��� P��
�

� #� 	���

�	�����	���
��
������
����
��
�
	���	������
���,������

��

��
��	�
�
%�
����	����	��
�
���	���	�,��
	��%�,��

�

�(�+��� ����
�
3
�>	��
��
�
��

3
�>	��
A�

�����

P��
�

�
#�

��
�
��

P��
�

�
#�,������

5	�
��
�
��

?�

����	�
����
��
��

��


����
�,����	�

+(�
�J�

+���

���������
�

���������
	��
�
��
��:�",�# -�
�
��
����,����	��;�
�

��!!!�
���������	�

!� K�
:<��

�
���
9
��

;��

!�HH�� !��/�� !�##�� 4
��� 	0���

��


������

	�����
����
��
��	���
�	���

����
�

���������
	�
����
	�
���
��

	���
���	����
=�����	��"
��
��

)�#!!/��?��
���������
	�
�
�	��,��������
��
��
����������
�
���
���	�
��	�
�����	�������
�
�����

�������
��	�������
��


�

���	��	������

	������������
	�
��
�

��
��	�
��	�������

��������*
����������	�����
�

��	������
	��
������
�5����

���	��	�
���
�����


���
���
�	���

�������
	�
����

+(�
��K�

�@�����/��
�
������
�����

�	����	�

�������	)�

������
	���
�
�
��	�	��:+>>�;�

K�HI�
:<��

�
���
9
��

;��

1�!I�� 1�!I�� �!� I�� 4
��� �
��

��
�,����
����>>��,����	����	�����	�����
�������
�����	
����
�	

�

���	��������
���	����	�
������	��
�������
��	����
�+>>����
�
�����
���

������
�
�
��
���
)������
�
�����>"A)�����
����
	�
�)���������� ���
�	�������	�

�
	���	��
��
�
�
��������	���
���
������

�+>>�)����
��
����
��

����	���������
�
	����	����
$��
������
��
�"
��
��

�E��
�	�

���

����������
��

	�
�
���	���

���������
�
)�����-�1H�1JI����3
�
����
�	��/!�J�I�����K��
�
����������	����

��
�
��
���

����������
��	�>>�����
�
�
�������	������
���	

���
����	���
���
��	�������	�+>>��
���������

�����	��	�
�����
��		����,��������
��
�
�����3
�
�����
��

�������������	��	��	�����
�����
�+��
��

����	�����
���


	�����	�����
��
��

�1!I������
�����
���	�<
�
	�	�����

<5�,<�
H!H1�

������	���

����
���
�������

�)�
�
������
�)�


��
����
���
�������
�����

��������
&64(��	�
���
	��

1J!�� 1J!��  JH�� �1@�� 4
��� �
��

?��������	���������	�
����
�����

�
���
������	��	���	���������E
����4
���
�
���
��
�
	������
���

���
����������������
�
�
�	���������

��
���	�P ����
�
�
����
$
��	�����
�	�

��
�>	

���
�����
	�������������

�
 �K�� ��
��
��
����	��
�*
���>%�
����	���
�

�
�*
���
�
��
������
�

(��
��
�
	��
?
��
��
	��� "������ ��


����
�,����	�

�
��

���	����
�
�
�������	������
�<�����
?
�
����
	��
A
��
��
$�

��
��
��
��
�
"

���
��

,69>4� A����

���
�
���	��	�
������
�������
���

?
�
����
	
������
�����
��	��
�
	��
���
������	����
�
��
��
�����	���
���	�����	��

�������	�2�

	��
�
�
	��

��
�
��	�����
"

���
��

,69>4�

��
�	

��������
����
���

��
�	���������
������
���
�	����
���

	�����
�
	�
������
����
����������
�
��	���
	�
�������
�����	
	��

��
�������
�
	��

����
���	��

���	��������
���

?
�
�����	��
����
�
	���

����
�
��
��
���

�� 4
�
	

����	� ,69>4� �
	�

�����	������5����

0+��
��

�

Page 60



�
�*
���
�
��
������
�

(��
��
�
	��
?
��
��
	��� "������ ��


����
�,����	�

��
$������
�A������
"��
���B	���

�� 4
�
	

����	� ,69>4�
����������	���

�������������
�#����

�A������"��
���0�
?��
���������
	�
��
�*
�����������

������,��

��

,���
�
��
�
����


��	�
>"<E�

��
��
��
��
�
"

���
��

,69>4�
>	��

��
���

������
�*
������	���
�����

����
�
��	���
�	���������������	���	�

�
	���	���


�

	
�
���
��

������

�,��
���
"�
��
���

�� A�	�	�
� ,69>4�

������

���

����	��
����

��
�	��

����	��
�����
�����������	�������
���������	�5����

�#!!/���
�



���
��������

�,��
���"�
��
����������
��
�����
����	
���	�# 
��=�����9�����
	

����
����
���
��
�
�	��
�����F
	�

����
����	���

��
����	�
%�
������
�
���	����
�*
����	�)��	������	����
��
���	��

����
��	�
������
��
������	����
������		
���,	�
���
��
������
���


	���
��������

�����	�

�

��
��
�	��
�

����
	��

������������
����	��
��
������
���

������������
��

�
	��	�
���
����	���7���
��
�

�
	�
��

�
�
�

Page 61



�
 �/�� ������

� �

����$� ��� 	��� 

��
�
�� �	� ��
� ������

� 4
�����	�����

6�	��
�
	��:�46;�����
���	���	����
��������������	����	���������
	����5��
��
� "���
� �� �������	��� ��
�
� �
���
���� 

���
�� ��� �
��	����� "

���
�� �	��
�

���
��
���

������
���	�

���
�����
����	��,�����������K�
	���
�
���


�

�
��
��
�
��� ��
�5�������	��
���
���� �
��	�� �������� ��������	�� :�#;�� ����� 

��
����
��
� 	�
���� ��������� �

	������� ��
� ��������	� 
	���
�
�� �	�

� �	�
��������	��5��
��
��������
	���

��
�
����
���*�
�����


���
�,�����"������"

���
���

�
6�� ��
�
�������
�
���
��
�
H���� ��
�	
�����	���� ��
	�� ��
� #!!/0!1� ��� '#11�������	����
���	���
�	�� �����

��

��
	������	�����
����
��
������
���������	����
���
������	��������������	�����
�
��� ��� ��
� ��


�� ����	��� ��
�
���� ��
	� �
���	�� ��
� #!!/0!1� ����
�� ��
�
�
�*
��
������	�
����� ��6�
���#!!1��


�'J�������	��

�
H�#�� ,�� !�"
��
��

���
��������	)�����
����
���	�,��
	��%�9)���-��
�

?
������ '������	� '������	�

�%$9�"2� ���)�%,'��!) �7,',)"�(�,2� ����,%".����<�
#.�)�(�22/)*�2.��7! *�2�1$%�����C�<�

� J�!�

�,7/)�2� �"/(/$)(� � �

#@� =�	
� �� A�	�	����� ������
	� ��
� #!!K0!/� ����
�� �	�
�	�

��
	��	���	����	�
������	��������	�
��

� N#�J�

1� =���� ��4
�
��
���� (	��
�	�
�A�	�� 

�

�
� ��� �
	

���
����	�
�

� N �!�

# � =���� �� 4
�
���� ��� <����� ,����
���� 9���	
��� E
�����
(	�
	���
�:<,9E(;��
�	������
	

�������	�
�

� N�� �

# �=������A�	��	����
���


��������	��
	

����	�������

	�
2�3��	���
���
��
�	���
��������

� �!�1�

���������	
����
���	�	����
����	�
�����
��	
� �

5�

��
	��
��������,�����"������"

���
��
�������������

	�2�3��	���
���
�
��������4
�
	

����	�

�
N �J�
N��K�
N!�@�

�

B	�

��
	��
���������

���
��6�	��
�
	��

�
���#�

�
�H�@�

���
	���������������
4
��
�
�� ��� ����	
�� # � =���� �	� 

��
��� ��� ��
�� �	��

	

����������	�#!!/0!1�

� �
�#�@�

��)�%,'� �!) � 7,',)"�(� ,2� ��� �,%".� ���<� 7,(� �
!3$)�2.��',2�(2�3%$9�"2/$)(�

� �
 �K�

�
H� �� ��
� �����
���	� ��� ��
� �
�
�
	�� �����	��� 

����
�� �	� �	� �	�

��
� �	� ��
�

�
�*
��
�� ����	�
�� ���  �� 6�
��� #!!/� ��� '#�J� ������	�� ��
� ���	� ��
	��	��
�

���

�� �����	� ,����� "������ "

���
�� ��

� ���	� ����
�� ��� ��
� �	�

��
� �	�
&����	��9
	
�����
�	���	����
��
	
������
����

���
��6�	��
�
	����������
���

�
H�H�� ��
� 

�
��
� ��� ' � ������	� �
��� ��
� (	��
�	�
� A�	�� 

�

�
� ��� ��
� �
	

���

����	�
� ��� �� 

����� ��� ��
� ��	��	��	�� ���
��
�� �

��
��	�
� �	� 

��
��� ���

Page 62



�	��
�	�
��	��
��$���	��
�
	�����������
��
���

��
��	�
�
���
	�
�������
�
�		����,����
�������
���
	���	����
����
	�����������������
���������

�
H�J�� ��
� 

�
���� ��� ��
� ��	��� ����
	�� ��� ��
� <����� ,����
���� 9���	
��� E
�����

(	�
	���
� :<,9E(;��
�	����� '�� �������	)������� 

���
�� ��� ��
�#!!K0!/� ��	�	�����
�
�
)��������
���������	�
��� (	� �

������ ��
���	��
	

��������� ���������


��
����� 'K/!)!!!� �
� �
����
�� �
��� ����	�
�� ����� �
�
� ��� �

�� ��
� �	�

��
��

	

��� ������ ��
� ��


�� ������	�� �	� �
��	����� "

���
�� �	�� '�#J)!!!� ��
� ��
��
������

����	����������

	�2�3��	���
���
��
�	���
���������A�	�	������

���

��
�


���
	����
�����
�����	���
���$
���������
������
�
	

�����	�
�������
�����
�
�
	�


����
��	������	�#!!/��

�
H�@�� �����	� ,����� "������ "

���
�� ��
� �

���

�� ��� �	�

���	�� �
��	�� ��
� ��

�

�

���
�� ����� 

����
�� �	��	���

��
	�� �	�#!!K0!/� 

���	�� (	� �

����������	���
��


� �

� ����
�� �
��	�� ��
� ����
�
�
	�� ��� ��
� ������ 

���

�� ����� �
�
�� ��
�
?�

���
����� 

��
�
�� ����� �������	
���	��������� �
� ��� �	�
�������	�����

	����
�
�	�� �	
����� ����	��� ����	
�� ���� 

���	��
�� ��
� �
���������� ��� �� ' �@� ������	�
��

��
	���
���
���������	������	������

��

�
H�K�� B	�

������

	��	��3��	���
���
���
��

������"�
�����>�������	�+

���:">+;�

�	�����	�� �
�	���
�� �	�� ��
� ��

� ��� ���	�� �
���
� :������ 

����
�� �	� �	�
��

��
	�� �	� #!!K0!/;� �	�� ���	�
�� ��� ���
�� �
��

��	��� �

� �
�*
���	�� ���
��

��
	��� ��
� �����
	�
�� �
��� ��
� 
�����

� 

���
�� ����	��� ��
�
��� �	��
������� ���	� 
%����	�� ����	��� ��	�
��� ��
�
��� ���
��

� ����� ��
� �

���
� 

�

	��	


�	������	����
������ ��
��
�� �
���#!!K0!/� ��
�� ��
����	�����	����
�����
��
��
�*
��
����

��
	�����'��K�������	��,����	����$
	������
����
�

���
�������
�
�*
����	� �
��� ' � ������	� �	�� ��
� ?�

���
� ��� ��	���

�	�� ���

� �����	�� ���


���
��������

�
H�/�� �����	�4
�
	

����	� �	���
��	��
	

����������

��
�*
��
�� ����
������
��	�
�

�������
�����
���	��
���
����

��
�	�����
������	���	���
	�������	���
�����
��
�������
���&��
�

)���
������	���
����
������
���

���
�"

���
�4
�
	��	


�	��
����	�����
�
����
��������
��
���
���#!!K0!/����
��
������
����
��
���
�	�	��
�	���

��
	�����'!�@�������	������$
����

�
H�1�� �

���
��6�	��
�
	���	����
����
���	��
�
	����������������	����
�	

�����

��

��������	���	�
���
	�������

	�

�
	��	



��

����	����
�

���

�
	����
�
�
���
�
����

���	�����
�����	�������
�
���	�#!!K0!/���	��	�
��	��������
���

�
'!�J�������	� �	�#!!/0!1��5���
��	���
�� �
��� ��
� �	�

��
�� 
��
�����


����� ��
�
��	$�	�� �
���
� ���
� �

	� ��$
	� ��� �� ��	�
��
	�
� ��� ��
� ���
��
�� �����
��	��
�
	���	����� ���������
���� ��
��
�
� ��
��������	��� �	���
�

����
�� ��� �	�
��
� �
�

� ��� '!�K� ������	�� ������� ��
��

� �
	
����� �

� �	�������
�� ��
�
�	�

������������ �	� ��
� ��	�	����� �
���
� �
�	�� �	�� ��
����� 

���
�
�� �

� 	���
�
�	���	�
��
���	����

�
��$�0����

�

��
	�E��

	�
	���	�
���
	����

�
8�� ����
�����
�
���
��

�

J���� ��
����������
��
���
���
�#!!/0����������
��
��������	�����	��K�?
�
��

�
#!!K� �	�� ��	��
�
����� ��
�� ��� ��
� ����
�� ������	���� �	�  �6�
��� #!!/����
�
��	���
�	�)�����������
����
���	�,��
	��%��)������

����
��
���	����
��
���
�
����� ��
� ���
��� ��

����������� �	����
���������
��
���#!!K0!/������������


��
�������	
���	�=�	
�#@��

Page 63



�
�3�) � �%/*/),'�

�33%$4,'�
�$%�",(2�

E!)��
�$%�",(2�
��32�+7�%�

� F���� F���� F����
,�����"������"

���
�� #)1J#�  )@1@�  )/�J�
�����

	�2�3��	���
���
�  #)##�� #@) KK� #@)H#@�
��
��
��
�"

���
�� H�!� �)�@!� �)�@!�
<��)�&4��	��,��
��6��� �)/@!� #)���� #)����
4
�
	

����	� #1)!K1�  @)/K@�  @)/K@�
�
��	�����"

���
�� ��) �/� �#)J/1� �#)J/1�

$2,'�3%$*%,++�� ��;�6�� ��;��<� ��;<���

�
J�#�� ��
�

���
�
������
�������
��������

����
��
�
����	���
��
���
��	��

��
����

��
���


�����	�
�)��	�����	���������
������
	���
���#!!K0!/����
��
	

����	�
�����������

�
�������
�������
����
�������
��������
�������	����
��
��
���
��	��
������������
�'H�������	�����	����
����
���
��	�#!!/0!1��(	���
��
������
�)��������
�	�

���	� �	� ��
�
%���� ����	����� 

�
���)����

�� ��
%�������� �	� ��
� ����	����� ������
�
�	����	��
���
�����
���

�����	�
���
���


	���
��
���
��
�������

�������

�
����
��
������
���

�
�3�) � �%/*/),'�

�33%$4,'�
�$%�",(2�

E!)��
�$%�",(2�
��32�+7�%�

� F���� F���� F����
9�

���	��  �)!1#�  !)#JK�  �)!K �
E
�	��G�&64(�� 1)/!!� /)1!!� /)1!!�
E
�	��G�>�������	�� #!)/11� �K)/@/� �K)�!!�
E
�	��G�5��

�� ��)@ @� #�) @/� #�)H/K�
4
�
	�
� H� � H�@� H�K�
��������4
�
����� H)!!!� H)!!!� H)!!!�

$2,'�%�($!%"�(� ��;�6�� ��;��<� ��;<���

�
J� �� ��
� ?�

���
� ��� ,����� "������ "

���
�� ���� ����
	�
�� ��
� ��	��������	� �	� ��



��
����� �	�

�
����
���

� ��������������� ����������	� ��
��
�����	�� 

��
��	��
������ ������������	� �
������	�� ,��� ���
�
�� �

� ��


��

� ���*
��� ��� 

��
��
�
	��	����
�������
������
���	��������	��

�
J�H�� ��
�9�����	��"���������
���
�A���

�:9"A;�G�5	
�������	�

��
�*
�����	��	�
�����

�
��

��� �	� ����
��	�
� ����� ��
� ���
����
�� ��


�� ����� ��
� ?
��
��
	�� ��
�
�����

	)� "������� �	�� A�����
��� ����� ��
� ?
��
��
	�� ����	�� 

��
����
�� ��
�
��	��	�������
���	����
����
%�
��
��
�
����	�#!!1��

�
J�J�� B	�

���
�	����	������
�
�����
�
���������

	7���
	�

������
����	������
�#�

���� 	��� �

	� �K� ��� ��
� �1� �
	�

�� ��
	
��� ��
� 

���	�	�� ���� �


� 

�
�
��
���
���	���#!!/0!1��	���

������
��
	�

�����
��

�
J�@�� ��
� ��	��	�� �
��� ��
� ?
��
��
	�� ��
� �����

	)� "������� �	�� A�����
�� ��
� ��
�

�
���
����������"�
��
��� ����	�������
�� ����
����
���
�� �	�"
��
��

����
� ������
�����
������
��
��������
	������	���

	��������
����
���	���

����	��

�
J�K�� ��
�5����"��
����
	�

� ����	�

���	����������	������
��
���
������
$�������

�����
����	�������	���	�������
��

����	����J������
������
�������������

	���
�
���*
��� ��� �
��� 

��
�
�� �
����� ��
� �� ��
�
��� ��� 

���	�� �	�� 

��
�� ��� ��� �
�

Page 64



�

�
	�
�� ��� ����	
�� �	� ?
�
��

�� ��
� 

�
�
����
	�� ��� +
�� 9
�����	� ���
�
��

���	���
����������	����
����
�A��
����������	����������	�������
�������
	��	�
+��
��

��

�
J�/�� ��
�"�
�����(	�������
��
�
�
	�������
��
��
���
��	����
�����
�
���	��

���
��

��	��	���	�

��
������5�*
����
�5	
�:'J�J�������	;��	����
�"�	��
�4
�
	

����	�
9���
�� :'H�J�������	;�� ��
� ���
�
�� ��	�
����
� ����
��� ��
� ��	������	� ��� ��
�
6

�
����
����
��
��
���
������� �������	��	�

�#!!/0!1�����������
���
��

�


��	
�����������	�����
���������
�
��	����#!�!��

�
J�1�� ��
�&����	��6�
$
��4
	
����(	�������
�:+
�&
�
���	��;���	��	�
������
��

���

�����������
�������������
���
�����
��	��	����	�����	�	�������������	�������
���	��
�
�
���

��� ��
� ��F
� �	�� 	���

� ��� ��
� �
��
���
� 

���

�� ����� ��
�
�
��
���
� �	�� ��
� ��	��	�� ��� �
� ��

� ��
%���
� ����� ��
� 

������	�� ���

%�
	����

��	��

���
�
��$
����	�

�

��
��������	���	��
��

����

�
J��!�� (	��

����������

��
�
����
��
����������
����

���	����
�9�����	�6������������

�

�	
�
�	����	������	��������
�?
��
��
	����
��
�	���
������	��
�
���
$
����
�
���
�
���
���	��	�)����*
��������
���	�����
	�������
���
����


�	����������

����
��
���	��	������������

��
�
����)��	����


����)�����	
���	�6���##��

�
J����� ����	
����������
��������	�����
��	�
��������
���	��������	���


������

��
������

���
��
���
�����	���	���
����������
��
���
��	�

��
������,�����"������"

���
��
(�� �	�
���
����

� ��	�
�� �
��� �
�	�� �	�� ��
� 9
����
����� ����� 9
���
�
��

��
	���
��������	���
�<������������	��

�
:�� ���=���
�
���
��
�
@��� ��
�

���
����
��
��
�4��$�4
����

�������


���������	
���	�� �6�
���#!!/��

����� ���� ��
� ���
��	
� �����
	�� �	�� ��� 

��
�
�� ���
�

��� ����� ,��
	��%� ?�
����������	���
��

����	���	���������	�������
����
	����
���

�
@�#� A�
��������� ��
� 
��$�� ��
����		
�� ���
��
�
	��� �	� ��	�
��� �����	�����
��

	�

����
�
	�
�� ���	�� ����� ��
��

� ��
	����
�� �����	�� ��� 
	��

� ����� ��
� 
��$�� �

�
�
�	����	�
���
���>%����
������������
��
�
����
	����	����
-��

�

�/(&�

$��

��("%/32/$)� �$(/2/4�� ��4�'$3+�)2(� /)� �$)2%$'�
�"2/$)(�

��� ?
���� �
� �

����� �	*�
�� ��� ��
�

���
� ��

)� ������ �
��

)� �
�
�	��	
� ��� ����� ��
� ���	����
��
��������������

��

��
� ��
��� (5"&� 6�	���	�� "��
��� ���
�
�
�����
���


���	�"
��
��

��
@� 

���
�� �
����� 2� ���
��� �

�	�
�
	���
�����
�
���	�����*
��������	��������	��
&
�����2����
���������� �	������
���"

���
��
�����
�
���

#�� A����

� ��� �

��

� ��
����
���
��
0��	��
� ��
� ������� ��� ��
��	�
�����

<����� ��� �
������� 
�����

�� ���
� �

	�
��
	����
����
��
��
���
����
��	�����
����
�����

J�� ��
� ���	���� ��
�� 	��� ���	���	�
�

�	�
�
	��� ��
� �����
��
��
��
����

	�	�
�

,���
��

�
��$���	��
�
	���
��	�	���
����	�
��
�6
��

�������
���


���	�#H�=�����
4
���
�� 

�

�
	�����	� �	� ,����� 2� 4��$�
6�	��
�
	�� �������

� ���� ��


�� ��
�
��
�"
��
��

�����
��

Page 65



/�� ��
� ��
��
��
�� �����
��	�� ��
�
$
�� �
��
���
�� �

� 	��� 
%
���
��

��
����
���

C
�� ��
��
��
�� �


� 

���
�� �	�� 

��
�
��
�������	
���	�# �=������

�#�� �
� ��� 	��� ������ 
%������ ����
��������
� 

���
�
�)� �	�����	��
�
��	�������

C
����
��
��
���


�

��
�
���	��

��
�
��
�������	
���	�# �=�����
,� ���	��
���
�� ����	
��� ���
� �
����
���
��
��������������	�������

	��	�
����
���

�J�� A����

� ���
%
���
� ��
����	���D��
(	�
���
	�� "�
��
��� :�
� �����

�
�����
�"�
��
�������
���

;��

6�	��

���� ��������� �	�� ������ �	� ��
�
(	�
���
	�� "�
��
��� ���� ��

	���
	
��
��
����� ��
� 
���������
	�� ��� ��
�
?
��
��
	�� ��� <��)� &4� �	�� ,��
��
6�	��
�
	���	�"
��
��

��

�K�� A����

� �	� ���
���
��	��
�

�	�
�
	���:�������
������;�

����	
����������
����
���
��	��������������
�
	�����
����������
	�
������
���

#��� "���
���������� ��� (�� �
������	� ���
���
�����	�

(��
��
�
	��� ��� ��
� ��	�
���
��

	��
�	�
	�� ��
� ��
� ���	� (�� ����
�� ���
�
�

	�����
�
	�
���
,�

��
���	����������
�	
��������
	�

���
�
��
������
���������

	��
���
���

#H�� (���������������������	�����	��
	�
�	���
�
��	����

�

���
����	��
�
	��������
��

��
�
���
4
����
� �������
� ���� �

	� ��$�	�� ����
�
�����
%�

	����	�
���
	����	�����	����
6���
�	�� �	�
���
	��� ���
� �

	� ����
��
�������
�E��

	�
	���
>	��	�
����	���
�	�� ��� $
�� ����
���

���
���� �

	� �	�
����
�� ��
����� ��
� ��	�	�����
��	���
�	��

��
���

�
@� � ����
� �

��� ��


� �
��

��� �	� ����
�
	��	�� ��	�
���� ���� 	��� �
��

�
�� ���

���
����
��
���


��	��
�����	����	�����������
��

-�
�

�/(&�

$��

��("%/32/$)� �%�,(� #.�%�� �$)2%$'� �"2/$)(� .,4�� 5�2�
2$�7��3%$*%�((� �

 �� C
�� ���	���� �

���
�� �

� 	���


����
	�� ��� ���
�����	� �	��
����	
��� ��	��	�����
�

�	�
�
	����

��	��
����
��

,�� ����	
��� ��	��	����� ���	�� ���
� 	��� �
��
�

	� 

�
��
�� �
��� ��
� ��*�
���� ���
�
��
��
	�����
���
�
�����
���
���	�����	������
���	�������

	��������$����=�	��
��#!!1��

@�� �����	����
%�
������	���

�	���
�
��

��� �	�

������ �
�
��	��
���
����

��
� �
��
���
� ��
� ��
� ������	��������
���
������ ��� ��
� <,,� ��� ��������� �
��	��
���
���
��

1�� ��
�	

������ �

� 	��� �
���
���		
�� �	�� �
� ��� 	��� ��
$�

��
����
�����������

��

�

��
���
����
$���
��,,�

���
�������������
�
��	�����
���
��

�J�� A����

� ���
%
���
� ��
����	���D��
(	�
���
	�� "�
��
��� :�
� �����

�
�����
�"�
��
�������
���

;��

6
��

����� ��� ��
� ��
��
��
� (	�
���
	��
E
���� ���� �

	� 
��������
��� &��
�

� ����
�	�������

��	�������
�������$
�����
��

�1�� A����

� ��� �
��

��� ��
�


�
	

����	� ��� 
��	���������
�������	���
���

���

6
��

����� ��� ��
� ��
��
��
� (	�
���
	��
E
���� ���� �

	� 
��������
��� &��
�

� ����
�	�������

��	�������
�������$
�����
��

# �� A�	�	����� �	�� 
	��
�	�
	����
������� ��� �
���� �	� �
� �����

� ���
�����

� �	�� ���	� ���		�	��

+���
��

��������

	����
������
�6�?,�
�	���
�����������	�����������
����
���

Page 66



��	�
	��� ��
� ���
�� 	

�
�� ���
�
���

� ��
�6�?,� �
���

�
	��
�
��
���
�

�
@�H� ��
� �������	�� ���
� �

	� ��
	����
�� ��� ����	�� ���
	����� ��
��
��
� ���	�����	�
�

�	���

����*
��������
��

�

��
���	����	���

����	-��
:�;� (���������������������	�������	��
	��	���
�
��	����

� :��;� "���
�������������(���
������	�������
�����	���
:���;� A�	�	������	��
	��
�	�
	���� �����������
���� �	��
� �����

���������

��	��

���	� ���		�	�� ��	�
	��� ��
� ���
�� 	

�
�� ��� �
���

� ��
� 6�?,�
�
���

�
	���
��
���
��

�
��� �
�����������
��
��
�
K���� ��


� �

� 	�� 
����� ����
��	���
�)� ����	� 
�����)� �����	���� ���
��)� ������

�
��

������
�)� ��������
	���#���
����		�	������������	���
���	����

������
���
�����

��
���

�
��� ���=���	
���������
�
/��� ��

�����
��
��
����	�#!!/0����

,��
	��%�,�G��

��
��	�
�6�	���
�	��"����
���
,��
	��%�9�G�A�	�	�����6�	���
�	��"����
���
,��
	��%���G���������6�	���
�	��"����
���
,��
	��%�?�G���
��
��
�4��$�6�	���
�	��"����
���

�
<�� �������
��
��
��
�
1���� ���������	
��

��
����
��

��
��	�
�������
��	����
	������	���

�����
���
��

�

�����	��
�
1�#�� �������
���
�����	���	���
����������
��
���
��	�

��
������,�����"������"

���
��

(�� �	�
���
����

� ��	�
�� �
��� �
�	�� �	�� ��
� 9
����
����� ����� 9
���
�
��

��
	���
��������	���
�<������
�	���
�����	�:<��;����������	��
����
��
���

�
1� �� ����� ��
� 

��
�)� �������� ���
	���
�)� ��
� ��
� ���
�

� 
	��	��  �� ?
�
��

� �
�

�

�
	�
�������
�����	
���	�A
�
��
�����
������

��
�)���������������	����
���
�
�
����
�����
	���
�)�����
����
���������
��	���
���
������������

��

�
�

"�>�&>+�6,??5R�
� �&(>A�>R>�B�(�>�

�

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

 

FINANCE AND BEST VALUE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

21 JANUARY 2009 

 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 

COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT (CAA) - USE OF RESOURCES 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report provides details of the Audit Commission project brief for the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment Use of Resources 2009 assessment which 
covers 2008/09. 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Previous reports have outlined the changes in the Use of Resources (UOR) 

assessment framework in accordance with the move from Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment (CPA) to the Comprehensive Area Assessment 
(CAA). The CPA assessment covered five general themes shown below which 
were further sub-divided into key lines of enquiry (KLOE): 

 

CPA  Theme 

1 Financial reporting 

2 Financial management 

3 Financial standing 

4 Internal control 

5 Value for money 

 
 
2.2 Under CAA, the Use of Resources assessment has value for money at its 

centre and now comprises three themes. These are further divided into 10 key 
lines of enquiry. 

 
2.3 There is a significant overlap between the old and new Use of Resources 

KLOES. The new regime however places an increased emphasis on non-
financial resources. The most significant changes are separate KLOEs 
dedicated to natural and workforce resources. The work undertaken on 
energy efficiency initiatives, in complying with the aims of the ‘Nottingham 
declaration’, and on workforce planning will assist in meeting the requirements 
of these KLOEs. The CAA key lines of enquiry are as follows: 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 69



 

CAA Managing Finances 

 1 Planning For Financial Health 

 2 Understanding Costs and Achieving Efficiencies 

 3 Financial Reporting 

  

 Governing the Business 

 4 Commissioning and Procurement 

 5 Use of Information 

 6 Good Governance 

 7 Risk Management and Internal Control 

  

 Managing Resources 

 8 Natural Resources 

 9 Strategic Asset Management 

10 Workforce (applicable from 2009/10 onwards) 

 
2.4 The Use of Resources score will again be based upon a standard four point 

scale and will again follow the harder test principle with authorities having to 
improve in order to retain the same level. The new standard scores are also 
likely to restrict the number of authorities achieving four stars. The table below 
details the CPA and CAA standard scoring scales.  

 

Score Standard Scale CPA Standard Scale CAA 

1 Inadequate Performance ‘Failure to meet minimum 
standards’ 

2 Adequate Performance ‘Getting the basics right’ 

3 Performing Well ‘Performing Well’ 

4 Performing Strongly ‘Excellence and genuine 
leading edge performance 

 
2.5 The Audit Commission issued further guidance to its auditors on the Use of 

Resources in October 2008 which is available on its website.  The Audit 
Commission project brief is designed to fit in with this guidance.    

 

3. USE OF RESOURCES 2008 
 
3.1  The 2008 UoR assessment will be formally announced on 26 February 2009. 

Authorities received their 2008 notifications on 8 December 2008. The 
notification is however embargoed by the Audit Commission until 26 February 
2009.  Authorities can submit appeals against this initial notification. 

 
3.2 The 2008 assessment was based on the 31 March 2008 position. Since this 

date officers have continued to work on a number of areas to deliver further 
continuous improvement which will be reflected within future assessments. 
Improvement have ranged from reviewing and strengthening the Statement of 
Annual Accounts processes and the production of an Annual Report, to 
developing the Strategic Asset Review and further development of the 
procurement strategy and the change programme.  

Page 70



4. AUDIT COMMISSION USE OF RESOURCES PROJECT BRIEF AND 

APPROACH FOR 2009 
 
4.1 The Audit Commission project brief highlights a number of developments 

within the new Use of Resources: 
     

• The KLOEs are more broadly based than before 

• There is an increased focus on value for money achievements 

• The focus will be on outputs and achievements rather than on 
processes in place 

• The assessment will be more strategically based 

• Guidance will include characteristics of performance but these will not 
be an essential ‘must have’ list  

  
4.2 The audit approach will use a ‘rounded professional judgement’ to form an 

assessment against the key lines of enquiry.  The Audit Commission states 
that this assessment will be on a top down rather than bottom up basis with 
less prescription and use of checklists.  The assessment of risk will also form 
an important focus.  The assessment will also be informed by the outcomes 
from other audit work and assessments conducted during the year. 

 
4.3 The Audit Commission will undertake its fieldwork between January and April 

2009. This will include the review of key documents, interviewing officers and 
Members and reviews of Authority minutes and agendas. Further investigation 
and discussion may follow from this. 

 
4.4 The Audit Commission intends to report the Use of Resources score within 

the Annual Governance Report. This will be reported alongside the value for 
money conclusion and the opinion on the statement of accounts in September 
2009.  The final CAA organisational assessment will be reported in November 
2009.  

 
4.5 The approach outlined above does seem to provide for flexibility and for the 

assessment to be based on a rounded view of achievements.  The approach 
however could also involve a greater degree of subjective judgement from 
auditors.         

 

5. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 There are no direct financial or staffing implications arising out of this report. 
 

6. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

7. HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 

Page 71



 

8. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

9. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

10. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 

11. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no particular implications for any Members or wards arising out of 

this report. 
 

12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
12.1. Audit Commission Project Brief Wirral Borough Council Audit 2008/09 - 

December 2008 
 
12.2 Audit Commission Use of Resources Guidance for Councils – October 2008 

http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/useofresources/guidance/index.htm 
 
12.3 Audit Commission Use of Resources 2008/09 Overall approach and key lines 

of enquiry – May 2008 
 

13. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
13.1 That the 2009 Use of Resources Project brief be noted 
 
13.2 That regular reports be presented on progress on the Use of Resources.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 IAN COLEMAN 

 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
FNCE/315/08 

Page 72



Use of 
Resources
Project Brief 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council

Audit 2008/09 

December 2008 

Page 73



Status of our reports 

The Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit 
Commission explains the respective responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body. 
Reports prepared by appointed auditors are addressed to non-executive 
directors/members or officers. They are prepared for the sole use of the audited body. 
Auditors accept no responsibility to: 

! any director/member or officer in their individual capacity; or  

! any third party.

Contents

Introduction 3

Background 4

Scope and objectives 5

Audit approach 6

Reporting and timescales 7

Audit personnel and key contacts 8

Appendix 1 – Document request 10

Appendix 2 – Key responsibilities 11

Page 74



Introduction

3   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Introduction
1 2009 is the fifth use of resources (UoR) assessment to be undertaken at councils but it 

will be significantly different to the previous approach as it will focus on outcomes 
achieved. The use of resources assessment forms part of the new Comprehensive 
Area Assessment (CAA) from 2009 and will also feed into other relevant performance 
assessment frameworks as appropriate. The use of resources key lines of enquiry will 
also be the 'relevant criteria' for the value for money conclusion that is part of our work 
under the Code of Audit Practice. 

2 This brief outlines the approach we will take to the UoR assessment at Wirral Borough 
Council, who the key contacts will be and the reporting arrangements. The Audit 
Commission published the overall approach and key lines of enquiry (KLOE) in May 
2009 http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/useofresources/2009kloe.asp. It has also 
prepared guidance for auditors to support them in carrying out their assessments and 
made this available to audited bodies on its website at the following link 
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/useofresources/2009guidance.asp.

Page 75



Background 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  4

Background
3 The Audit Commission review of 2007/08 found that the Council's arrangements had 

continued to improve during the period of assessment, from April 2007 to March 2008. 
The overall assessment improved in three out of the five themes. The areas of 
improvement were in respect of financial management, financial standing and internal 
control which all scored level 3. Financial reporting and value for money remained at 
level 2 although there were improvements in arrangements. 

4 The 2008/09 use of resources assessment will consider how well the Council is 
managing and using its resources to deliver value for money and better and 
sustainable outcomes for local people. It is structured into three themes that focus on 
the importance of sound and strategic financial management, strategic commissioning 
and good governance, and the effective management of natural resources, assets and 
people. It will be applied to all local government bodies, including police and fire 
authorities, and to primary care trusts in the NHS. 

5 Many of the new KLOE within the themes are similar to the previous KLOE, although 
there are some new areas, such as the use of natural resources and workforce 
planning. The new KLOE within each of the themes are shown in the table below. 

Table 1 Use of resources KLOE 2008/09 

The new use of resources is split into three themes and ten KLOE 

Managing finances Governing the business Managing resources 

1.1 Financial planning & 
financial health 

2.1 Commissioning & 
procurement

3.1 Natural resources 

1.2 Understanding costs & 
performance

2.2 DQ & use of information 3.2 Asset management 

1.3 Financial monitoring & 
reporting

2.3 Good governance & 
ethical behaviour 

3.3 Workforce planning 

2.4 Risk management & 
internal control 

Source: Audit Commission 

Page 76



Scope and objectives 

5   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Scope and objectives 
6 The 2008/09 KLOE are shown at Table 1 on the previous page. The KLOE are more 

broadly based than previously and embrace wider resource issues such as the use of 
natural resources. The KLOE focus more on value for money achievements, outputs 
and outcomes rather than on processes, and are more strategic and less detailed. 
They are supported by characteristics of performance, which are used as an aid to the 
exercise of the auditors’ professional judgment. The underlying characteristics are 
indicative of differing levels of expected performance, and are not criteria to be 
complied with in all circumstances. 

7 The KLOE and supporting characteristics are based upon published best practice, 
standards and professional guidance, where available, and the principles set out in the 
Commission’s publication World Class Financial Management. 

8 A proportionate approach will be applied to the assessment of the KLOE. The Audit 
Commission has specified in its annual work programme and fees document which 
KLOE are to be assessed over the coming year. The specified KLOE differ for each 
sector in order to reflect sector priorities. In 2008/09, we will assess nine of the ten 
KLOE at single tier and county councils - KLOE 3.3 on workforce will not be assessed 
this year. However, arrangements will need to be in place from 1 April 2009 for the 
2010 assessment so we have had early discussions with the Head of HR.  

9 The objectives of our work are to: 

! make a judgement about whether we are satisfied that the Council has put in place 
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources - the value for money conclusion in the statutory audit report that we 
give under The Code of Audit Practice. We will apply a yes/no judgement against 
the criteria to indicate whether the Council has proper arrangements in place or 
not. A 'no' judgement is equivalent to a UoR score of 1 and a 'yes' judgement is 
equivalent to a score of at least 2; 

! assess how well the Council is managing and using its resources to deliver value 
for money and better and sustainable outcomes for local people which is part of the 
organisational assessment under CAA; 

! inform the managing performance organisational assessment under CAA; and 

! provide intelligence to inform the area assessment under CAA. 

Page 77



Audit approach 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  6

Audit approach 
10 The approach for 2008/09 is significantly different. The emphasis of the assessment 

will be on a rounded professional judgement against the headline key lines of enquiry 
(KLOE) – ‘top down’ rather than ‘bottom up’ approach. It moves away from a checklist 
of criteria to illustrative characteristics of performance included within the guidance. 
Most importantly, there is less focus on prescriptive arrangements and process and 
more focus on outcomes and what difference the arrangements have made.

11 There will again be a four level scoring system, but levels 2 and 3 will be broad 
descriptions of 'getting the basics right' and 'performing well' respectively. Scores of 4 
will be reserved for excellence and genuine leading edge performance. Level 1 
represents a failure to meet the minimum requirements at level 2. The Audit 
Commission is still to determine the approach for arriving at the theme scores and the 
overall use of resources score. 

12 Our work continues to be based on an assessment of risk. The approach for 2009 will 
be supported by evidence gained in previous years and we will update the 
assessments for any changes and improvements and carry out testing to confirm 
arrangements and outcomes. The guidance for auditors available to the Council at 
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/useofresources/2009guidance.asp sets out the 
links to the 2007/08 use of resources assessments. For example, the new KLOE 1.1 
on managing finances links to the 2007/08 KLOE 2.1, 2.2 and 3.1. 

13 We will also carry out detailed work on performance management and procurement 
(separate project briefs will be agreed) and current ongoing work on Ethical 
Governance, Governance of Partnerships and Improvement through Better Financial 
Management will inform the assessment. We also plan to hold a workshop for key 
officers to work through the details of the new approach. 

14 We will undertake the fieldwork during 2009 and scores will be notified to councils in 
the autumn of 2009. Key dates for the 2009 assessment are shown at paragraph 17. 
The key contacts for the audit team and the Council are shown at paragraphs 18 and 
20.

15 We will carry out the work through: 

! review of key documents; 

! interviews with officers and members; and 

! ongoing discussions and review of minutes and media. 

16 There is no requirement for a self assessment. However, if a well evidenced self 
assessment is carried out, formally or informally, it will help us to make a quick and 
robust assessment and ensure that all relevant information is taken into account. 

Page 78



Reporting and timescales 

7   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Reporting and timescales 
17 The use of resources assessment and value for money conclusion 2008/09 will be 

based on the same KLOE and will be reported in the Annual Governance Report 
alongside the opinion on the statement of accounts. The deadline for this is 30th 
September 2009. The following timetable is provisional at this stage and will be kept up 
to date throughout the audit. 

Date Activity/milestone 

January 2009 Agree brief with Lead Director 

January 2009 Workshop for key officers 

January - April 2009 Fieldwork

May - June 2009 Audit team regional quality assurance (QA) and 
internal challenge 

June/July 2009 Review of reports to members 

August 2009 Submission of draft scored judgements for national 
QA

End August 2009 Agreement of value for money conclusion and scored 
use of resources judgements 

Early September Draft Annual Governance Report 

Mid September Final Annual Governance Report 

Late September 2009 Audit & Risk Management Committee (papers out 
one week before) 

October/November 2009 Draft organisational assessment report shared with 
the Council 

Late November 2009 Final organisational assessments reported as part of 
CAA reporting. Issue annual audit letter. 

Page 79



Audit personnel and key contacts 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  8

Audit personnel and key contacts 
18 The following Audit Commission staff will be involved with the work. 

Name Contact details 

Mike Thomas, District Auditor 

Overall responsibility for the audit 

m-thomas@audit-commission.gov.uk

0844 7987043 or 07879 667712 

Liz Temple-Murray, Audit Manager 

Lead contact for UoR 

Manager for KLOE 1.1, 1.3,  2.2, 2.3, 2.4, 
3.2

l-temple-murray@audit-commission.gov.uk

0151 666 3483 or 07769 887358 

Dave Wilson, Performance Manager 

Manager for KLOE 1.2, 2.1, 3.1 

Manager for projects on Performance 
Management and Sustainability 

da-wilson@audit-commission.gov.uk

0844 7987333 or 0774 8930598 

Dave Catherall, Principal Auditor d-catherall@audit-commission.gov.uk

0151 6663497 

Kath Johnson, Performance Specialist ka-johnson@audit-commission.gov.uk

0844 7983579 

Rob Metcalf, Principal Auditor r-metcalf@audit-commission.gov.uk

0151 6663484 

19 The following staff will be our key contacts for the use of resources work overall and for 
the individual key lines of enquiry (KLOE). Ian Coleman and Tom Sault will be lead 
director and contact respectively, responsible for liaising with the audit team on a 
regular basis and coordinating the work, feedback and messages within the Council. 
The Lead Director will keep management up to date with progress on issues through 
the monthly Corporate Improvement Group (CIG). 

20 We have agreed that the three central directors will be responsible for each of the 
three KLOE themes. Supporting this we have agreed key contacts for each of the 
individual KLOE. It is the responsibility of each of the key contacts to ensure that their 
line managers and the responsible Directors as well as the lead Director and Lead 
contact are kept up to date with issues arising on individual KLOE. 

Page 80



Audit personnel and key contacts 

9   Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council 

Name Contact details 

Ian Coleman, Director of Finance 

Lead director for UoR overall 

Responsible director for 'Managing 
Finances' (KLOE 1) 

iancoleman@wirral.gov.uk

0151 666 3056 

Tom Sault, Head of Financial Services, 
Finance

Lead contact for UoR overall 

Key contact for KLOEs 1.1, 1.2 and 1.3 

tomsault@wirral.gov.uk

0151 666 3407 

Jim Wilkie, Deputy Chief Ex and Director 
Corporate Services 

Responsible director for 'Governing the 
Business' (KLOE 2) 

jimwilkie@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8183 

Bill Norman, Director Law, HR and Asset 
Management

Responsible Director for 'Managing 
Resources' (KLOE 3) 

billnorman@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8498 

Stephen Rowley, Head of Support 
Services, Finance 

Key contact for KLOE 2.1

stephenrowley@wirral.gov.uk

0151 666 3525 

Russ Glennon, Head of Policy, Corporate 
Services

Key contact for KLOE 2.2 [also Stephen 
Rowley]

russglennon@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8152 

Simon Goacher, Head of Legal & Member 
Services, Dept of Law, HR & Asset Mgt 

Key Contact for KLOE 2.3 

simongoacher@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8569 

David Smith, Deputy Director, Finance 

Key contact for KLOE 2.4

davidsmith@wirral.gov.uk

0151 666 3491 

Ian Brand, Head of Asset Management, 
Dept of Law, HR & Asset Mgt 

Key contact for KLOEs 3.1 and 3.2 

ianbrand@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8686 

Paul Bradshaw, Head of Human 
Resources, Dept of Law, HR & Asset Mgt 

Key contact for KLOE 3.3 

paulbradshaw@wirral.gov.uk

0151 691 8590 

21 This brief was agreed with the Director of Finance on 17 December 2008.

Page 81



Appendix 1 – Document request 

Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council  10

Appendix 1 – Document request 
To be agreed with key contacts. The following link to the guidance gives suggested 
sources of evidence for each KLOE http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/useofresources/2009guidance.asp.

Page 82



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 K
e
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 

1
1
 
  

W
ir
ra

l 
M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 K

e
y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

L
e

a
d

 

D
ir

e
c
to

r
 I
a
n

 

C
o

le
m

a
n

L
e

a
d

 A
D

T
o

m
 S

a
u

lt

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 

F
IN

A
N

C
E
S

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
- 

Ia
n
 

C
o
le

m
a
n

G
O

V
E
R

N
IN

G
 

T
H

E
 B

U
S

IN
E
S

S

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
–
 J

im
 

W
ilk

ie

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 

R
E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
–
 B

ill
 

N
o
rm

a
n

1
.1

P
la

n
n
in

g
 f

o
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
h
e
a
lt
h

T
o
m

 S
a
u
lt

L
iz

 T
e
m

p
le

-

M
u
rr

a
y

1
.2

U
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 

c
o
s
ts

T
o
m

 S
a
u
lt

D
a
v
e
 W

ils
o
n

1
.3

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

re
p
o
rt

in
g

T
o
m

 S
a
u
lt

L
iz

 T
e
m

p
le

-

M
u
rr

a
y

2
.1

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
n
d

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

S
te

p
h
e
n
 

R
o
w

le
y

2
.2

U
s
e
 o

f 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

R
u
s
s
 G

le
n
n
o
n

L
iz

 T
e
m

p
le

-

M
u
rr

a
y

2
.3

G
o
o
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

S
im

o
n
 G

o
a
c
h
e
r

L
iz

 T
e
m

p
le

-

M
u
rr

a
y

2
.4

R
is

k
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
&

 

in
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

o
l

D
a
v
id

 S
m

it
h

L
iz

 T
e
m

p
le

-

3
.1

N
a
tu

ra
l 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s

Ia
n
 B

ra
n
d

D
a
v
e
 W

ils
o
n

3
.2

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Ia
n
 B

ra
n
d

L
iz

 T
e
m

p
le

-

3
.2

 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e

P
a
u
l 
B

ra
d
s
h
a
w

(n
o
t 
b
e
in

g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
)

Page 83



The Audit Commission 
The Audit Commission is an independent watchdog, driving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in local public services to deliver better outcomes for everyone. 

Our work across local government, health, housing, community safety and fire and 
rescue services means that we have a unique perspective. We promote value for 
money for taxpayers, auditing the £200 billion spent by 11,000 local public bodies.

As a force for improvement, we work in partnership to assess local public services 
and make practical recommendations for promoting a better quality of life for local 
people.

Copies of this report 

If you require further copies of this report, or a copy in large print, in Braille,  
on tape, or in a language other than English, please call 0844 798 7070. 

© Audit Commission 2008 

For further information on the work of the Commission please contact: 

Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, London SW1P 4HQ  

Tel: 020 7828 1212  Fax: 020 7976 6187  Textphone (minicom): 020 7630 0421 

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

Page 84



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
FINANCE AND BEST VALUE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 JANUARY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
CHANGE PROGRAMME  
 
1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 This report presents an update on the change programme agreed by 

the Cabinet on 7 February 2008. 
 

1.2 It identifies four key areas for change, identified from over one 
hundred separate projects considered by Corporate Improvement 
Group (CIG), and identifies progress that could be achieved by April 
2012.  

 
1.3 The report details where potential savings have been identified from 

individual projects. 
 

1.4 It notes that clear management will be essential in driving the 
programme to achieve efficiencies and improve the processes which 
underpin how the Council operates.   

 
1.5 Cabinet on 10 December 2008 noted progress on the Change 

Programme and approved the Change Programme 2009/2012. 
 
2 INTRODUCTION 
 
2.1 On 7 February, 2008 Cabinet approved the co-ordination and 

management of a single change programme through the CIG 
comprising:-   

• Change Team Programme 

• Integrated Financial System Programme 

• Customer Access Programme (CAS) 

• ICT (Information Communications Technology) Developments. 
 
2.2 Cabinet on 23 July 2008 considered an update, which noted the 

progress in assessing and managing the elements of this programme. 
Corporate Improvement Group was in the process of reviewing over 
one hundred separate projects, focusing on those which would have 
the most impact. A need to introduce a project management system 
to prioritise projects to enable effective management had been 
identified.  

Agenda Item 8

Page 85



 
2.3 Investment in the Corporate Change Programme is in those schemes, 

supported by robust Business Plans, which enable: 
 
● the Corporate Plan and Vision for Wirral 
● Corporate priorities, aims and objectives 
 
It is co-ordinated with Council strategies, including the: 
● Medium Term Financial Strategy 
● Customer Access Strategy 
● Asset Management Strategy 

• Information Technology (IT) Strategy 
 
In using IT, priority will be given to using the corporate core IT 
systems of: 
● Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) 
● Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 
● Electronic Document and Records Management (EDRM) 
● Geographic Information System (GIS) 
● Principal Departmental IT Systems 

 
2.4 To this end all the projects identified were categorised into: 

• Statutory/regulatory requirements 

• Cabinet resolutions 

• ICT Strategic Technological Developments 

• Departmental developments 
 

Projects were also assessed against criteria of:  

• Whether or not an appropriate scope had been agreed, 

• Timescales had been identified, and  

• Costs/savings had been identified. 
 
2.5 Those projects which did not meet the identified criteria have not been 

included in the proposed programme. However, the programme will 
need to be continuously reviewed as more information becomes 
available. For example, new legislation may lead to a review of 
programme priorities. 

 
2.6 CIG felt that it was important that the Change Programme considered 

more than IT development projects, whilst accepting that IT is key to 
improvement. The programme therefore seeks to integrate and 
support developments across the Council, although the process has 
been centred on IT projects. To this end, the individual projects upon 
which the programme is built have been proposed by departments, 
through CIG and the process has been co-ordinated with 
representatives from IT Services, the Change Team, Customer 
Services and Financial Services.  

Page 86



 
2.7 For the Change Programme to be effective there is a need: 

• at the highest level, to focus on identifying improvements and 
the timescales in which they could be delivered, 

• corporately, to integrate programmes which are currently being 
developed or managed within departments with this programme 

• for programme management to ensure that all projects and 
resources are co-ordinated, 

• at an operational level, to task individuals with delivering 
individual projects within the timeframe identified, 

• for programme assurance to ensure that appropriate processes 
are in place to enable delivery of the agreed programme,  

• to bring together staff with the necessary skills  to deliver the 
programme within the timescales indicated.  

 
This will require commitment to the programme and use of resources 
corporately.  
 

2.8 Therefore, the proposed programme focuses on four areas for 
improvement – in terms of efficiency and access to services - and 
individual projects have been summarised within these areas. The 
proposed programme is at Appendix 1, and illustrates the potential for 
improvement over the next three years in each area, subject to the 
issues raised in paragraph 2.7 (above).  

 

• Customer Access Strategy (CAS): initially using Streetscene 
Services  

• Common Administrative Processes: including the key 
projects of the new Highways and Engineering Services contract 
arrangements (HESPE), Human Capital Management (HCM) 
[Human Resources and Payroll] and Integrated Financial 
Systems (IFS).  The processes provide the Council with the 
potential for gaining efficiencies and improvements without any 
negative impact on front line services. 

• Strategic Asset Review: this was reported to the Cabinet on 27 
November 2008 and will be a catalyst for changing how people 
work and how services are accessed. 

• ICT Technological Developments: the work necessary to keep 
computers and software functioning and up to date 

 
Clearly, the projects are interdependent and cannot be managed in 
isolation from each other. 

Page 87



 
2.9 The proposed programme is built upon the principles of: 

• Modernised, fit for purpose business processes, enabling 
service improvements  

• Automation of administrative processes  

• Robust, standardised Council-wide procedures for accessing 
and storing information 

• Improved management information availability and usage to 
assist service and investment decisions. 

 
2.10 In delivering the programme, clear management will be essential in 

driving the programme to achieve efficiencies and improve the 
processes which underpin how the Council operates. Managers will 
seek to share and learn from best practice from other organisations 
through such as the North West Improvement and Efficiency 
Partnership. The Council will also build on the enhanced capacity it 
has developed through its MBA course at Chester University. There 
has been significant investment in project management and business 
improvement techniques training. PRINCE 2 project management 
training has been delivered at varying levels to over 170 officers 
within the Authority, enhancing the capacity to manage projects 
successfully. The Council has also benefited from the North West e-
Government Group (NWEGG) NVQ Level 2 business improvement 
programme. 

 
3 CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY (CAS) 
 
3.1 The CAS Programme will be underpinned initially by Streetscene, 

given that Customer Services receives most contacts around these 
services, and will look at whole processes – not just, for example, 
replacing current computer systems. The detailed projects required to 
achieve this will be jointly proposed by Technical Services and 
Customer Services, and will be agreed by CIG.  

 
3.2 The programme area is envisaged to cover: 

• A full review of all Streetscene processes,  

• Issuing of licensing and permits across all services, 

• Registration functions, 

• Welfare visiting services and the provision of out of hours 
services, 

• Development of the web access channel incorporating 
development of on-line forms, 

• Development of text messaging as an additional access 
channel. 

Page 88



 
3.3 As regards current issues, the team introduced amendments to the 

CRM software during November that will resolve the job scheduler 
problems with the ERIC Service and address all but two of the 
technical issues that are preventing Pest Control and other potential 
users making full use of the mobile solution. 

 
4 COMMON ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES 
 

Overview 
 
4.1 Service provision is underpinned by common administrative 

processes that have evolved over time often independently from one 
department to another. This has resulted in a lack of standardisation 
across the organisation leading to inconsistency in the use of systems 
and information technology.  

 
4.2 This inconsistency has led to inefficiencies such as duplication of 

effort, manual processing and heavy reliance on paper based 
systems which are often labour intensive and open to error. There has 
also been a growth in duplicate databases, created to hold data 
locally that has already been captured centrally. This has been 
generally in response to the inability to obtain accurate management 
information from central sources. 

 
4.3 These processes utilise a variety of ICT applications. 
 

Range of common administrative processes 
 
4.4 To date, the major focus of the Change Team has been to examine 

corporate activities covering procurement, HCM, expenses, post 
rooms, case management, meeting events, mileage claims, petty 
cash and income recovery.  The intention is to review all significant 
procedures and so ensure efficient and effective administration.  For  
the immediate future, the programme includes the following activities:- 

• Payments – invoices, income & cash collection, payroll, petty 
cash, mileage claims, expenses and suppliers, 

• Employees – recruitment, absence management, training and 
development,  

• Meetings & events - bookings, scheduling, 

• Maintain business & citizen records, 

• Post, document management, corporate scanning and archival, 

• Highways and Engineering Services contract management 
(HESPE), 

• Case Management - legal services, anti social behaviour team. 

Page 89



 
Potential Benefits example – Corporate Mail handling  

 
4.5 Departments have their own post service and procedures, except at 

Wallasey, employing various postal contracts, equipment and 
procedures to deliver postal services.  A review to develop a postal 
service requirement and strategy interfacing with other developments, 
eg scanning, EDRM, print strategy and renegotiating appropriate 
contracts will be taken forward. This will deliver short-term efficiencies 
from economies of scale. Long-term efficiencies will be realised by 
delivering post electronically, speeding up processes and avoiding 
lost post, and having out-going post directed electronically to one print 
facility which will produce the hardcopy and envelope and post the 
item. 

 

Process Details Annual 
indicative 
costs 

Potential saving 

Delivering post Wirral has many post room 
operations. These are 
building or complex based. 
Five of them process the 
majority of inbound and 
outbound post. Different 
equipment, processes and 
contracts with Royal Mail 
are used. Most 
deliver/collect mid morning 
and afternoon.  

2006/07 figures 
indicate a total 
spend of 
£746,000 on 
postal services 
(excl staff costs) 
£246,000 of 
which was spent 
on franking 
credits.  

Reduction in the 
number of collection 
points and the 
physical transfer of 
post may  save 50% 
of running costs, ie 
£250,000 
 
 

 
Potential Benefits example – HCM administrative processes 

 
4.6 The proposed programme includes actions to address several primary 

administration areas in order to provide improved efficiency to the 
Council to give cashable savings and modernised, fit for purpose 
business processes. 

 
4.7 As an example, following the Cabinet decision 23 July 2008 to 

implement Oracle HCM, the key processes relating to people and 
their payments will be made more efficient by the introduction of self-
service functionality.  This will reduce the need to process information 
manually.  This approach to self-service will be underpinned by the 
principle of collecting data electronically at source and using the data 
repeatedly for all HCM administrative processes.  This will replace 
duplication, manual systems, improve HCM management information 
and stop the tendency for local managers to hold their own 
databases. 

Page 90



 
4.8 Currently there are just under 70 central staff at a cost of around 

£1.5m dealing with payroll and related HR administration.  Preliminary 
investigation of some HCM processes provides an insight into the 
potential to provide the service at reduced operational cost.  The 
following table gives a simple overview of the initial results.  

  

Process Details 
Annual 
indicative 
costs 

Potential saving 

Absence 
recording 

Central staff spend 204 
hours and departmental 
staff spend an estimated  
450 hours each week to 
complete the process of 
recording each employee’s 
attendance. 

£135,000  
central staff 
 
£365,000 for 
departmental 
staff (non-
cashable) 
 
 

The use of self-
service removes 
duplication and 
enables departmental 
staff to enter the 
data.  The immediate 
savings would be in 
central staffing. 

Processing of 
sick pay 

The current payroll 
procedure for sick pay is 
automatic for teachers.  But 
for the remaining 12,000 or 
so staff, an additional stage 
of perusing and checking 
every individual’s 
calculation of sick pay is 
performed.  This takes 
around 270 hours per week. 

£140,000 Any improvement in 
the system 
calculation or data 
collection will result in 
a reduced need for 
this level of manual 
intervention. 

Postage 
(Recruitment 
packs) 

The current process guides 
applicants to request a 
recruitment pack. This takes 
central staff 28 hours to 
assemble and post. 
Additionally there is external 
postage and printing costs 
of the applications. 

£64,000 Savings would occur 
on postage and data 
handling, if applicants 
are able to apply 
online using the 
integrated HCM 
system with its i-
Recruitment 
functionality.  

Recruitment 
administration 

The current centralised 
manual processing from 
request to fill a vacancy 
through to employment is to 
be researched. 

Costs to be 
determined 

The self service 
functionality of i-
Recruitment enables 
end users to manage 
recruitment. 

Time 
management 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There are 3000 employees 
submitting timesheets that 
take them an estimated 500 
hours per week.  Central 
staff then take a further 272 
hours to check and input 
this information each week. 

£140,000 for 
central staff 
 
 
£260,000 for 
employees (non-
cashable) 
 

The online time and 
labour function of the 
HCM system would 
enable timesheets to 
be input online by 
those employees 
who have access to 
the system or by 
local administrators. 

Page 91



Process Details 
Annual 
indicative 
costs 

Potential saving 

Online Payslips This is currently being 
investigated. 

Not determined Self Service provides 
online payslips. 

Training, skills 
audit and 
equality 
monitoring  

Not investigated Not determined Oracle HCM provides 
for these functions. 

 
4.9 As reported to CIG, the HCM project team met on 18 September 2008 

but could not complete the project initiation document in line with the 
Cabinet decision to implement Oracle HR and Payroll.  The project 
remains suspended. The Director of Law, Human Resources and 
Asset Management should be reporting to the Cabinet on 15 January 
2009 regarding the future of this project. 

 
HESPE 

 
4.10 The award of the service to an external contractor requires the urgent 

innovative use of current ICT applications to meet the go live date of 
April 2009.  The project team has outlined proposals for an integrated 
use of the Council’s current core systems and those of the contractor.  
This proposal will replace manual systems and will provide a single 
management database for controlling the contract and reporting 
performance. 

 
Integrated Financial System (IFS) 

 
4.11 The Change Programme 2009-10 includes a major improvement for 

the Treasury Management function in managing the borrowing and 
loan portfolio and cash flows.   

 
4.12 As regards the current programme, the Income Review has 

progressed onto the next stage - to review the methods of collecting 
income with a view to reducing costs.  The Procurement Project Team 
has reported on High Risk Procurement, e-Sourcing and 
Coordination.  These are being reviewed and will be reported to CIG.  

 
Electronic Document Records System (EDRM) 

 
4.13 The Change Programme 2009-10 focuses upon how the Council 

stores types of data and on using workflow to provide improved case 
management processes.   

 
4.14 The programme incorporates projects such as maintenance, problem 

solving and development of the current electronics document records 
management software, mail distribution, corporate scanning centre, 
and linking to legacy systems. 

Page 92



 
Geographical Information System (GIS) 

 
4.15 The 2008/09 work plan continues on target with data from Technical 

Services being loaded into the CRM for access by the Call Centre in 
January 2009.  The second phase provides access of data by the 
public by April 2009. 

 
4.16 Work is also progressing on integrating addresses within 

departmental systems with the corporate Local Land and Property 
Gazetteer.  Suitable systems are being identified that will enable 
straightforward synchronisation. 

 
Regeneration Review and Reengineering  

 
4.17 The Change Programme 2009-10 will build upon the current work 

undertaken by both the Change Team and the Customer Services 
Development Team and will encompass the administration review, 
agile working pilot with Environmental Health and the work 
undertaken with the Pest Control Section. 

 
Transport Review 

 
4.18 The final report on options for change in future transport provision is 

due to be completed on schedule in January 2009.  The Change 
Programme 2009 -10 will seek to implement the recommendation and 
outcomes of the work done in 2008-09. 

 
5 ICT STRATEGIC TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS 
 
5.1 This group of projects concerns the mandatory changes and major 

maintenance that underpin the applications, infrastructure and 
superstructure needed to use the ICT.   

 
ICT Continuity 

 
5.2 ICT Continuity projects completed since the last report include a 

contract with O2 in place for supporting Computers for Pupils and 
PC’s for Public Services Archives installed. 

 
5.3 Aside from general activity, I expect to complete the review of the 

Connect Server in the next period.  Work continues on reviewing 
Oracle Release 12, and patching of Oracle CRM, which should 
resolve a series of technical issues.  

Page 93



 
Government Connect 

 
5.4 This programme will enable the secure exchange of information 

between Wirral Council and public sector partners.  It will enable 
Wirral to respond to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) 
revised communication requirement and support the continued 
exchange of information with DWP on Benefit Claimants in support of 
delivery of Housing Benefit and the In and Out of work project. 

 
5.5 The Department for Children, Schools and Families also requires the 

Council to use the process to exchange certain levels of confidential 
information by email with partners. 

 
6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 As part of the development of the proposed programme, departments 

agreed to identify any savings arising from their proposals.  
 
6.2 The following table summarises those projects where savings were 

identified.  The table also identifies: 

• Costs of those schemes, 

• If the savings have already been built into the 2009/10 budget 
process (marked as ‘declared’), 

• If the savings would be capital or revenue, and whether or not 
the figures have been verified, 

• Projects which provide benefits but which will not result in a 
budget reduction (shown as non-cashable). 

 

Project 
description and 

owners 
Cost 

Savings per 
annum 

Comment 

Human Capital 
Management (Paul 
Bradshaw) 

£200,000 to procure 
an implementer  
 

£85,000 
(Declared) 

Costs and savings yet to be 
fully evaluated.  Potential 
savings up to £0.5m 
identified.  

Automation of 
desktop support 
(Geoff Paterson) 

£64,000  £100,000  
(Declared) 

 

Regeneration: 
Environmental Health 
review (Phil Dickson) 

Existing change 
resources 

£138,000 target 
(Declared) 

Scale, source and nature of 
the savings have yet to be 
determined from the review 

Equality Training  
Cylix (Russ Glennon) 

£20,000 (Cabinet 
approval required for 
any additional 
funding) 

£65,000 
(Avoidance of 
non-budgeted 
future training 
costs) 

Non-cashable savings. 
(Cabinet Report 12 June 2008 
has no details of costs or 
savings) 

CCTV in Wirral (Ian 
Lowrie) 

£450,000 (Capital) £100,000  Capital Bid received.  But, ICT 
Network implications not yet 
assessed. Costs and savings 
not fully evaluated. 

Page 94



Project 
description and 

owners 
Cost 

Savings per 
annum 

Comment 

Training & 
development 
database (Paul 
Bradshaw) 

£2,000 £11,000 (Based 
upon time saved 
by staff across the 
Council in filling 
out forms) 

Non-cashable  

Case management 
(Legal Services – 
Simon Goacher) 

Estimated £30,000 £20,000 Costs and savings not 
evaluated.   

Case management  
(Antisocial Behaviour 
– Caroline Laing) 

Estimated £16,000 £51,000 (Based 
upon time saved 
by staff involved in 
the process) 

Non-cashable as the time 
saved does not result in any 
staff reductions. 

CYPD Application 
Rationalisation (Moira 
Curran) 

£87,500 £15,100 One year saving. 

Streetscene – use of 
CAS functionality and 
self service. 

Not identified. £100,000 in 
2009/10. 
£180,000 from 
2010/11 

Reduction in staff. 

 
7 STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. The Change Programme may have significant implications across the 

Council. These will be clarified at the scoping stage of each project. 
 
8 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising form this report. 
 
9 HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
10 LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1. There are none arising from this report. 
 
12 PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
13 LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1 There are none arising from this report. 

Page 95



 
14 BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
14.1 None. 
 
15 RECOMMENDATION 
 
15.1 That the change programme 2009-12 be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 IAN COLEMAN 
 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FNCE/295/08 
 

Page 96



 

 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: COMMON ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

HESPE: Highway 
Services Management 
System. 

Base arrangements in 
operation using a 
combination of core 
systems to enable the 
issue, monitoring and 
accounting of work to 
new contractor. 

- Full electronic exchange 
of works with contractors 
system and development 
of management 
information.   
- Cessation of legacy 
Engineers’ Systems and 
manual procedures. 

Development of a single 
Asset Management, 
Geographical Information 
System (GIS) for 
Engineering assets 
including Gullies, Street 
Lighting, Bridges and 
street furniture.  

 

Human Capital 
Management and 
payment of expenses. 

- The HCM Project Team 
to start implementation of 
Oracle Self Service and 
underlying payroll system 
having appointed a 
partner to assist them. 
- Complete testing of the 
electronic storage of HR 
records. 
(Self Service means the 
direct access and use of 
the corporate HR 
administrative systems by 
managers and 
employees to replace the 
manual, centrally based 
processing)  

- Oracle payroll replaces 
the current system for all 
for all employees and 
self-service implemented 
for first tranche of staff 
and their managers.  
Self-service includes 
recruitment, absence 
management, training 
administration, online 
time sheets and 
expenses. 
- Integrate electronic 
storage of CYPD HR 
records. 

- Complete go live of self-
service for all staff and 
managers with system 
access.  
- Legacy system archived 
and released. 
- Develop Training, Skills 
Audit and Equality 
Analysis functionality of 
Oracle HCM. 
- Expand use of 
electronic HR records. 

- Oracle HCM fully 
implemented. 
- Complete the re-
engineering of HR/Payroll 
central sections. 
- Extend self-service to 
remaining staff through 
proxy administrators.  
 

Case management – 
legal services 

System procured.  Proposal implemented 
leading to savings of 
£20,000 through the 
reduction of 1 FTE post. 

  

P
a
g
e
 9

7



 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: COMMON ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

Case management – Anti 
Social Behaviour 

System procured. 
 

Proposal implemented 
leading to £51,000 in non 
cashable savings through 
more efficient processing 
across 
departments/sections 

  

Income Collection Eliminate duplicated 
manual entries and 
improve reconciliations 
by completing the e-
Return system’s 
implementation. 

Implement the Income 
Review’s proposals on 
expanding the use of 
Direct Debits for income 
and so reduce collection 
costs. 

  

Procurement  Complete the review and 
adopt proposals for 
improvement in the 
Procure to Pay process. 

Implement proposals 
concerning:- 
- Replacing manual 
invoice processing, 
- Increased Catalogue 
coverage and reducing 
Purchase Coordinators 
workloads. 

Realise staff savings for 
those involved with 
payments and 
procurement. 

 

Corporate Mail.  Review and provide a 
plan, recommendations 
and business case for 
replacing manual post 
processes with a 
corporate scanning and 
workflow system to 
distribute and manage all 
incoming mail using all 
electronic channels. 

If the business case is 
proved, initiate a 
Corporate Electronic Mail 
Room, scanning and 
associated workflow for 
an initial tranche of 
services and locations. 

Complete the Corporate 
Mail Room Project.  

P
a

g
e
 9

8



 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: COMMON ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

Electronic Storage and 
Retrieval of Documents. 

CYPD HR records pilot 
completed and used to 
create an approach for 
extending the storage of 
general records to other 
services. 

Expand the use of the 
general system to other 
services. 

  

Appropriate access to a 
corporate database of 
geographical and 
property data to support 
service provision.  

- Mapping data available 
to all members of staff. 
- Call centre and OSS 
staff will have maps and 
similar data overlays to 
support customer 
enquiries. The most 
useful overlays to be 
made available are being 
identified.  
- Integrate the corporately 
held address information 
to prevent supplicate 
records. 

- Make appropriate data 
available to the public via 
the Council web site from 
June 2009. 
- Information available to 
be agreed with service 
providers.  
- Additional data layers 
made available to staff. 
- Further integration of 
the LLPG with Council 
systems 

Additional data layers 
made available on the 
website. 

 

Development of web and 
online forms – linked to 
Customer Access 
Strategy 

- Ensure that the IT 
solution supports 
improved access to 
services over the WEB,  
- Review the feel and 
content of the solution,  
- Develop a plan for 
rolling out to services.  

- All online forms made 
ready for implementation.  
- Content review and 
duplication checks 
completed. 
 

Integrate forms into the 
website. 

Integrate forms into back 
office systems  

DASS administration Implemented revised 
business processes with 

   

P
a
g
e
 9

9



 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: COMMON ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

a reduced operational 
cost of £100,000 

Regeneration - Implemented revised 
business processes with 
a reduced operational 
cost of £138,000. 
- Co-location of 
administrative staff 
across Regeneration, 
Corporate services and 
Law, HR & Asset 
Management (through 
Strategic Asset Review) 

   

Transport Implementation of interim 
arrangements for 
provision of transport 

Development of long term 
strategy for cost effective 
provision of transport 

Implementation of long-
term strategy.   

 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
0



 

 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

Streetscene (Services such as 
Abandoned vehicles and 
exchange bins use a 
system whose support 
licences will expire May 
09.) 
 
Move those services 
affected over to the Wirral 
Service Delivery System. 

Remaining Streetscene 
services will be using 
Wirral’s Service Delivery 
System.  Such disabled 
parking bay applications, 
requests for road safety 
actions. 
 
Pilot the passing of 
incidents of refuse 
collection failure 
electronically to the waste 
contractor (Biffa). 

Extend the range of 
electronic exchange of 
data with the waste 
contractor and the Wirral 
Service Delivery System. 
 
This will enable call 
agents to see the 
response to service 
requests. 

Complete the project. 

Licensing & Permits Initial range of processes 
will be scoped and focus 
on those in Technical 
Services. 

Technical Services 
licences and permits 
implemented. 
 
Regeneration cross-
departmental licenses 
and permits scoped, and 
implemented. 

Review and implement 
remaining licences and 
permits where 
practicable. 

 

Registration functions 
and corporate booking 

 Complete scope and 
begin implementation 
initially for births, deaths 
and marriages.  

Project extended to other 
identified services. 

 

Welfare visiting and 
provision of out of hours 
services 

  Complete scope to 
rationalise and introduce 
efficiencies to welfare 
visiting and out of ours 

Project completed. 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

service. 

Use of reminder text 
messages to confirm 
service times and 
appointments.(To reduce 
the current cost of failed 
services deliveries, e.g., 
Bulky collection at £15 a 
time) 

Agree implementation 
plan with appointed 
supplier and roll out to 
initial services. 

Roll out to Bulky 
Collections, Pest Control. 

Continue roll out to 
corporate booking 
services and similar. 

 

Use of responsive text 
messages for the public 
to make reports to the 
Council (Examples 
Benefits Fraud, Youth 
Parliaments, Register for 
Tourist events)  

Agree implementation 
plan with appointed 
supplier and roll out to 
initial services. 

Continue roll out.   

Mobile working for Pest 
Control 

Complete scoping 
exercise. 

Mobile solution 
implemented for Pest 
Control. 

  

Central Advice and Duty 
Team (CADT)  

Agree role and function of 
CADT and frontline 
service provision with 
DASS and CYPD. 

Proposals implemented.   

Aids and Adaptations 
service 
 

Establish the project 
scope and potential 
improvements. 

Proposals implemented.   

Homeless People 
Services (Enquiry and  
information) 

Complete scoping 
exercise with partners 
and implement initial 
process changes. 

Complete project   

P
a
g

e
 1

0
2



 

 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: ICT STRATEGIC TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

Efficient and secure 
exchange of information 
within the public sector. 
(Government Connect) 

Identify members of 
Council requiring secure 
exchange of information. 
 

-Implement secure email.  
- Support the continued 
delivery of revenue and 
benefit system by 
provision of secure route 
between Council and 
DWP. 
- Enable In and out of 
Work project to be 
implemented.  
- Enable exchange of 
encrypted information.    

  

Oracle release 12  Oracle maintenance 
programme to be 
documented and agreed 

Oracle 12 upgrade 
completed. 

Maintenance programme 
delivered. 

 

Wirral Service Delivery 
system 

Evaluate future 
requirements and agreed 
a development plan. 

Implement plan.   

Business continuity  Review requirements   Implement agreed 
solution 

  

Remote support. 
 

Continue implementation Complete implementation   

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: ICT STRATEGIC TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

Corporate Network: 
Provision of network 
equipment and services. 
Presently supplied by BT. 
This project will also 
respond to the Council’s 
requirement for agile 
working, intranet, 
Government Connect, 
telephony, WiFi and 
CCTV.  

Identify requirement and 
process for acquisition.   

Implement and review.     

Council Information 
Security  -  Firewalls –
Authentication (internal) - 
Authentication (external) 
– Intrusion 
detection/prevention 

Identify requirements to 
meet standards required 
of the Council 

Implement and manage 
revised standard. 

  

Major review of storage 
and computing power  

Go to tender Contract in place by June 
2009.  Completed for 3 or 
5 years depending on 
tender outcomes. 

  

Virtualisation.  To reduce 
the number of the central 
servers saving licence, 
hardware and power 
consumption costs. 

Initial test services to be 
implemented and proven. 

Live services to be 
implemented.  Savings by 
reducing hardware 
maintenance on 6-10 
smaller servers and less 
power consumption due 
to these servers being 
closed down. 

Power and maintenance 
savings. 
 

 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
4



 

 

APPENDIX 1: THREE YEAR OUTCOMES: ICT STRATEGIC TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS 

Project Group By April 2009 By April 2010 By April 2011 By April 2012 

Development reminder 
text messaging for use by 
the Wirral Service 
Delivery System. 
 
Development of a 
responsive text 
messaging for specific 
applications. 

Procure a supplier who 
will provide this service in 
conjunction with the 
Wirral Service Delivery 
Team and other users. 
 

Support the 
implementation plan. 

Support the 
implementation plan. 

Support the 
implementation plan. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
FINANCE AND BEST VALUE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 JANUARY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
CORPORATE RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. This report provides information to Members on recent progress in these 

services and anticipated developments in the coming months. 
 
2. INSURANCE MANAGEMENT PROGRESS 
 
2.1. The results of the liability cases heard in court since the previous report has 

been disappointing with only one success in the 6 cases. With no changes 
having been made to the previously successful claims handling criteria or 
philosophy the reduced success rate is considered an anomaly. However the 
approach continues to be regularly monitored and revised as appropriate. The 
success rate across the public liability account as a whole, inclusive of non 
litigated matters, continues to exceed 80%. 

 
 2.2. The quarter to the end of December 2008 saw significant developments in 

various ongoing historical abuse cases. This is a rapidly developing area of 
law with new precedents being established frequently and recent case law 
has moved the balance in favour of individual redress over general public 
interest in these matters. These complex cases are handled in conjunction 
with our insurers and in line with current understanding of the legal position 
and senior Counsel advice. There are currently two cases that may progress 
to the House of Lords in order that a definitive position can be established on 
limitation, the length of time in which a claim can be brought. This is an 
important legal principle and therefore the legal costs in these cases will be 
funded by the relevant insurers who have an interest in supporting the 
defendant local authority community. 

 
2.3. Following the agreement by the Cabinet on 27 November 2008 of the 

Insurance Fund budget for 2009/10 further work was undertaken on the 
charges to schools and the apportionment of costs between Children & Young 
People Department and Schools Budgets. This involved the desktop analysis 
of each schools potential asset and liability exposure in conjunction with a 
detailed review of recent loss history, and equitable premiums have now been 
calculated for each school. These have been benchmarked against 
commercially available packages and, despite some increases, still represent 
excellent value in terms of both cost and policy coverage. This process of 
aligning school premiums more precisely to risk is to be continued in 2009/10 
with the roll out of a physical inspection and risk management project for all 
secondary school sites, the results of which are likely to have a further impact 
on premiums. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 107



 
2.4. The tender for insurance broking and consultancy services resulted in the 

appointment of Griffiths & Armour, a locally owned and based firm, to replace 
the service previously provided by AON. Joint working between Insurance and 
Risk Management and Procurement on this tender resulted in this specialist 
contract being awarded on a one year basis with an optional one year 
extension based on performance. 

 
2.5. The Risk & Insurance Team has met departments to begin developing the 

specification and award criteria for the tender for the Engineering Inspection 
and Insurance contract. Work has also started in relation to the Motor 
Insurance contract, both of which expire on 31 March 2009. 

 
2.6. Preparations have begun for renewal of the Liabilities, Computer and Foster 

Carers Legal Expenses policies which expire on 31 March 2009. Contract 
renewals are currently expected to be in line with long term agreements and 
budgets.  

 
2.7. The last quarter has seen an improvement in the service levels of the liability 

claims handlers following the introduction of their new IT systems. A high 
quality is key to the strong performance of the liability account and the recent 
changes are the subject of continued discussions with representatives at a 
senior level. 

  
2.8. After extensive negotiation, a payment for £1,453,612 in settlement of the 

Rock Ferry High School fire has been received from insurers. This is the final 
fire claim from the 2003/04 account year for which settlements totalling 
£200,000 were reported to the last Committee. Negotiations in respect of the 
Liscard Hall fire continue but indications from an independent commercial 
property expert are that the pre-fire commercial value of the property will be 
limited. 

 
3. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT – PROGRESS 
 
3.1. The entry in the Risk Management category of the 2008 Local Government 

Chronicle Awards was highly commended in the awards ceremony on 3 

November 2008. 
 
3.2. On 13 November 2008 Chief Officers undertook the annual review of issues 

on the Corporate Risk Register in the light of the refreshed Corporate Plan. 
The Register was then the subject of a report to Cabinet on 10 December 
2008. 

 
3.3. Departments have been working on identifying their critical risks and their 

contribution to the improved management of the Corporate Risks as part of 
the 2009/10 service planning process. 

 
3.4. The Risk & Insurance and Corporate Policy teams have continued to work 

closely to ensure that an improved risk management framework is an integral 
part of the governance arrangements for the Local Area Agreement (LAA). 

 

Page 108



3.5. The Risk & Insurance Officer has been assisting the Department of Adult 
Social Services with risk management arrangements for a major project to 
evaluate options for future service provision. 

 
3.6. The Risk & Insurance Team has developed an introduction to risk 

management that will be incorporated within the corporate induction training. 
The Team is also working with the Human Resources Division to produce a 
set of risk management competencies for staff of different levels within the 
organisation. 

 
4. INSURANCE MANAGEMENT – ISSUES FOR NEXT PERIOD 
 
4.1. Liability claims statistics to 31 December 2008 will be compiled. 
 
4.2. There are currently three claims scheduled for an initial court hearing in 

January and February 2009. It is also envisaged that there will be an 
increasing workload in respect of the historic liability and abuse claims. 

 
4.3. The new broker will formally advertise the Motor and Engineering Insurance 

contracts with the outcome of these exercises to be reported to Cabinet. 
 
4.4. Terms for the renewal of the Liabilities Computer and Foster Carers Legal 

Expenses policies will be agreed with insurers. As these policies are subject 
to Long Term Agreements until 31 March 2010 little change in premiums or 
the extent of cover is anticipated. 

 
4.5. The Risk & Insurance Team plan to investigate the feasibility of 

commissioning a study to provide a more accurate indication of the level of 
funding required to meet liabilities relating to those periods where insurers 
cannot be identified or have become insolvent. 

 
4.6. Officers will also consider the necessity of commissioning the regular 

Insurance Fund actuarial report. Previously procured annually the current 
stability in the liability account and officers knowledge of the account could 
suffice for the 2009/10 funding requirements with a further formal study then 
commissioned for April 2010. 

 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT – ISSUES FOR NEXT PERIOD 
 
5.1. The Corporate Improvement Group will carry out the next quarterly review of 

the Corporate Risk Register to inform the Financial and Performance 
Monitoring Report to Cabinet on 19 March 2009. 

 
5.2. The Corporate Risk Register will be updated and refined with the information 

contained within Departmental Service Plans for 2009/10. 
 
5.3. The Risk & Insurance Officer will undertake an audit of the quality of the 

information on key risks in Departmental Service Plans and provide feedback 
to individual departments to assist with continuous improvement. 

 

Page 109



5.4. The Risk & Insurance Officer will continue to work with the Policy and 
Performance Division over preparations for the introduction of Comprehensive 
Area Assessment (CAA) in April 2009. 

 
5.5. Risk management arrangements for the LAA, including the creation of 

baseline risk assessments for each of the Priorities for Improvement, will be 
developed further. 

 
6.  FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
8. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
9. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
 
9.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
10. LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
11. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
11.1. Responses to Request for Quotations from insurance brokers and evaluation 

sheets for interviews. 
 
11.2. Data from the Figtree claims database 
 
11.3 Liability claim statistics. 
 
12. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
13. RECOMMENDATION 
 
13.1. That a further update be presented to the next meeting. 
 
 
  IAN COLEMAN 
  DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
FNCE/4/09 

Page 110



WIRRAL COUNCIL 
 
FINANCE AND BEST VALUE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
21 JANUARY 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
TRANSFORMING ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES- ACHIEVING A STABILISED AND 
SUSTAINABLE BUDGET 

 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1 A report was presented to a Special Meeting of the Finance and Best Value 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 22 December 2008 which detailed the 
projected budget overspend; the resources necessary to monitor the budget 
and the procedures to ensure robust commissioning and procurement systems 
exist.  Whilst only a few weeks have passed since that meeting Committee 
requested that a further report be brought to this meeting to assess progress.  

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Committee, at it meeting 22 September 2008, received a report entitled 

“Transforming Adult Social Services – Achieving a Stabilised and Sustainable 
Budget”,  previously  considered by Cabinet on 4 September 2008.  The 
Cabinet had resolved that: 

 
(i)  the continuing efforts of officers to manage within resources, 

recognising the high probability of overspends of £3.483m in 2008/09 
and £0.761m in 2009/10, which are likely to require funding from 
balances, be noted; and  

 
(ii)  The Director of Adult Social Services be requested to present a further 

report to its meeting of 6 November 2008 on options to stabilise the 
department’s medium term budget and deliver further efficiencies 
towards the corporate target. 

 
2.2 Senior managers from DASS with the cabinet member attended Committee on 

22 December 2008 to address concerns expressed in relation to the budget 
shortfall.  Following the presentation of that report it was requested that a 
further report be made to the next meeting outlining progress being made. 

 
3 Projected Outturn  
 
3.1 The figures reported at the December 2008 meeting were based on the data in 

the books of account as at 31 October 2008 and identified financial pressures 
of £7.8m.  Projected efficiencies and additional PCT funding reduced this 
figure to a projected deficit of £5.5m. The report included a number of 
initiatives to mitigate the position and it was stated that the projected 
overspend for 2008/09 remained at £3.5m. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 111



3.2 Since the meeting it has been possible to review the detailed expenditure 
contained within the accounts as at 30 November 2008.  The accounts confirm 
a reduction in expenditure and identify current financial pressures of £7.5m.  

 
3.3 Further efficiencies and additional funding previously reported of £2.3m, 

together with a contribution of £0.2m from the Children’s & Young Peoples 
Department towards the Emergency Duty Team and SWIFT system reduce 
the projected deficit to £5.0m. 

 
3.4 In order to address immediately the projected deficit of £5.0m the Department 

is continuing to implement a number of management actions: all external 
training has been stopped; all requests for recruitment are vetted by Heads of 
Branch and only internal recruitment is permitted; overtime has ceased and 
“Panels” have been established to assess the eligibility of service users’ needs 
with revised guidance and support to managers and staff on matching 
resources to assessed needs. 

 
3.5 The report presented in December outlined a number of other initiatives to 

further mitigate the position these are in the process of being implemented and 
included:  

 

• working closely with NHS – Wirral to develop new service models that 
develop improved services for people at home, including the expansion of 
the HART service and support for people who use services with complex 
health conditions  who have previously been supported through social care 
funding;  

 

• the standardisation of meals charges in day services to £2.60 per full meal, 
to be implemented from 1 February 2009 

 

• The use of independent sector providers for standard home care and 
correct care packages being delivered by the most appropriate and efficient 
care providers.  This will be facilitated by the early voluntary retirement of a 
number of in house home care staff that is being considered for approval by 
Cabinet on 15 January 2009; 

 

• The specialist review team for learning disability services continues to fully 
consider that packages of care allocated to individuals with a view to 
implementing more appropriate regimes 

 
3.6 Whilst little time has passed since the December report to assess the impact of 

these actions it is anticipated that they will deliver efficiencies to stay within the 
original overspend forecast of £3.5m.  

 
 
4. FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 This report has revisited the financial position of the Adult Social Services 

Department.  It has been highlighted an amount of £5.0m has been identified 
as being the projected over commitment and that management action is being 
taken to ensure the final position does not exceed the previously projected 
over budget figure of £3.5m. 

   
5. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 

Page 112



 
5.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
6. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are none arising directly from this report. 
 
7. LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
8. PLANNING IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
9. ANTI POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
10. SOCIAL INCLUSION IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
11. LOCAL MEMBERS SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no specific implications for any member or ward. 
 
12. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
12.1 None used in the preparation of this report. 
 
13. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
13.1 It is recommended that Committee note the progress being made to achieve a 

sustainable budget for DASS  
 
 
 
JOHN WEBB 
DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 12

Page 115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 22/12/2008 Finance and Best Value Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 07/01/2009 Finance and Best Value Overview and Scrutiny Committee

	3 Financial Monitoring Statement
	4 General Financial Matters
	5 Projected Budgets 2009-2011
	6 Financial and Performance Monitoring
	7 Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) - Use of Resources
	Appendix

	8 Change Programme
	9 Corporate Risk and Insurance Management
	10 Transforming Adult Social Services - Achieving a Stabilised and Sustainable Budget
	12 Corporate ICT Systems Back Up and Recovery

